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Shareholders’ Meeting

Chairman Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A., 
represented by José Lourenço Soares

Secretary Companhia de Seguros Mundial-Confiança, S.A., 
represented by José Filipe de Sousa Meira

Secretary            Gerbanca, S.G.P.S., S.A., 
represented by Salomão Jorge Barbosa Ribeiro

Board of Directors

Chairman Carlos Jorge Ramalho Santos Ferreira
Deputy Chairman António Manuel Maldonado Gonelha
Board Member Jorge Humberto Correia Tomé
Board Member António Carlos Bastos Martins
Board Member Gonçalo Vaz Gago da Câmara de Medeiros Botelho
Board Member Luis Lopes Laranjo

Sole Auditor

Acting Deloitte & Associados, S.R.O.C., S.A. 
represented by Luis Augusto Gonçalves Magalhães

Deputising Carlos Manuel Pereira Freire, R.O.C.
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Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, SA

Shareholders’ Meeting

Chairman António Pereira Grada Ferreira  
Secretary Carla Maria Gomes dos Santos 

Board of Directors

Chairman Alcides Saraiva de Aguiar
Board Member José Manuel Carreiras Carrilho
Board Member Vasco Maria de Portugal e Castro de Orey

Sole Auditor

Acting Deloitte & Associados, SROC, SA, (statutory auditors)  
represented by Luis Augusto Gonçalves Magalhães

Deputising Carlos Luís de Melo Loureiro, R.O.C. (statutory auditor)

Caixa Capital, SCR, SA

Shareholders’ Meeting

Chairman Caixa Banco de Investimento, SA, 
represented by António Pereira Grada Ferreira    

Secretary Caixa Banco de Investimento, SA, 
represented by Maria Alice Marques de Paiva Nunes

Board of Directors

Chairman Caixa Banco de Investimento, SA, 
represented by Alcides Saraiva de Aguiar

Board Member José Manuel Carreiras Carrilho
Board Member Vasco Maria de Portugal e Castro de Orey

Sole Auditor

Acting Deloitte e Associados, SROC, SA, (statutory auditors)  
represented by Maria Augusta Cardador Francisco

Deputising Luis Augusto Gonçalves Magalhães, ROC (statutory auditor)

8 Statutory Bodies (Venture Capital)

Statutory Bodies 
(Venture Capital)



Markets and Sales Division
Francisco Santos  

Customer Division  
Leandro Silva

Corporate Debt Finance Division 
Paulo Serpa Pinto

Corporate Equity Finance Division  
Jorge Cardoso

Project Finance  and Infrastructures Division 
Daniel Amaral

Planning, Risk Control and Organisation Division 
António Gregório

Operations Division
Miguel Freire

Variable-Income Research Office
João Lourenço

Fixed-Income Research Office
Rui Dias

Legal Affairs Office
Grada Ferreira

Information Systems Office
Ema Campos

Human and Administrative Resources Office
Manuel Cunha

Compliance Office
Fernando Oliveira
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11Summary of Consolidated Operations

Summary of Consolidated 
Operations

Year

Income from securities 15,910 10,882 11,146 46.2%   

Income from financial operations 4,105 7,849 2,158     -47.7%

Commissions (net) 43,191 35,369 35,043     22.1%

Net operating income 63,206 54,100 48,347     16.8%

Structural costs (general adm.costs+depreciation) -23,053 -21,468 -19,443    7.4%

Provisions / Impairments -518 -1,255 -491     -58.7%

Other costs and income (net) -243 1,371 -1,134     -117.7%

Income before tax 39,391 32,748 27,279     20.3%

Income tax -9,345 -7,744 -5,038     20.7%

Net income 30,046 25,004 22,241     20.2%

CASH FLOW 40,959 35,066 28,912     16.8%

Year end

Credit portfolio 785,456 639,037 407,134     22.9%

Securities portfolio 607,473 471,783 534,609     28.8%

Customer deposits 105,639 109,220 81,068     -3.3%

Net assets 1.909,504 1.782,739 1.096,888   7.1%

Share capital 81,250 81,250 81,250     0.0%

Shareholders’ equity

(prior to appropriation of net income) 240,251 222,138 174,585     8.2%

Solvency ratio (separate)

Solvency 9.91% 13,76% 13,32% -28.0%

Performance ratios

ROE 12.51% 11.26% 12.74% 11.1%

ROA 1.57% 1.40% 2.03% 12.2%

Adjusted structural costs/net operating income** 33.97% 36.10% 37.81% -5.9%

2006 2005 2004 * % Growth

 thousand  thousand  thousand 2006/2005

*  Adjusted for the impact of IAS in transition year.

**Adjusted for inclusion of income generated from employees on loan.





2006 was an excellent year for Caixa – Banco de Investimento (CaixaBI), translating  high quality performance, in which
the bank cemented its role as an indisputable investment banking benchmark operator, in substantively moving across
national borders. CaixaBI’s net income was 20% up over the preceding year to 30m; with a 16.7% growth in net
operating income over the preceding year from 54.1m to 63.2m.

CaixaBI further consolidated its position, this year, in terms of market share, product range and capacity to originate
operations.

CaixaBI’s business approach was based on a consolidation of its market strategy, in proactively dynamic terms, through
the development of its commercial relations with customers, origination of investment banking operations and its lead,
organisation and structuring of operations. 

CaixaBI also reinforced its international presence in the Spanish market through its highly dynamic Madrid branch,
which was one of the principal sources of operations.

The bank’s performance enabled new levels of excellence to be recognised and achieved, as summarised below: 

Debt Capital Market

CaixaBI was the leading Portuguese bank in the Bloomberg ranking of national issuers in 2006.

The data for the year in question, as compiled by Bloomberg, not only rank CaixaBI as the leading Portuguese bank in
terms of bond loans, but also rank it fourth (and the only Portuguese institution in the top ten) in global terms, in
domestic bond issue leads, only supplanted by three global institutions.
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Relevant Events

€
 t

ho
us

an
d

0

10,000

54,100

63,206

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

Years
20062005

Net Operating Income

2006 Ranking - Bonds Issued by National Entities1

Ranking Bank Share (%)
Amount

(€m)
Number
of Issues

Source: Bloomberg. Only the top ten banks are listed. 
The global statistics include 30 banks and a total issue volume of €21,747m.
  Country of Issuer: Portugal (risk). Issue Maturity / Call / Put >= 18 months.1

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Citigroup
Barclays Capital

Deutsche Bank AG
CaixaBI

Societe Generale
Calyon

BNP Paribas Group
Morgan Stanley

Nomura Holdings Inc
Lehman Brothers

16.4
14.3
10.5
7.9
7.2
4.5
4.4
4.3
3.4
3.4

11
12
9
8
5
3
3
2
2
3

3,558.33
3,110.12
2,278.33
1,727.50
1,570.00
979.69
960.64
933.33
750.00
750.00



Bond issues realised by CaixaBI include several benchmark operations, in 2006, such as the launch of the new Republic
of Portugal 4.20% October 2016 Treasury Bonds benchmark operation for the amount of €3bn.

This was the first  Portuguese covered bonds issue (Caixa Geral de Depósitos mortgage bonds, with CaixaBI operating
as joint lead manager and book runner. This was Portugal’s biggest non-sovereign bond issue, comprising  an amount
of €2bn, and was realised under a €10bn mortgage bond programme in which CaixaBI operated as co-arranger); and
two operations for REFER, for the global amount of €1,100m. 

CaixaBI was involved in a total number of 19 bond issues, with a global issue volume of around €19.1bn, having been
the lead manager in 11 such issues comprising a total issue volume of around €7.1bn. 

In the sovereign debt segment, CaixaBI enjoys formal status as a specialist treasury securities trader - a role hitherto
performed within CGD Group, by Caixa Geral de Depósitos.

Equity Capital Market 
The prestigious Euromoney magazine classified CaixaBI as the “Best Equity House in Portugal”, in 2006.

Caixa BI consolidated its number one position in the capital market in Portugal, last year, as the leading Portuguese
investment bank in terms of the number of operations completed (based on information supplied by securities
watchdog CMVM).

CaixaBI was also the leading Portuguese investment bank in the financial advisory area, in 2006, as the market leader
in the mergers and acquisitions sector in Portugal, measured by the volume of transactions completed, according to
the Bloomberg ranking.

14 Relevant Events

4.20% Benchmark 
Treasury Bonds 

due 2016

€ 3,000,000,000

Joint Lead Manager

July 2006



In one of the year’s most emblematic operations, the bank was a joint global co-ordinator and book runner for the 
4th stage of the Galp Energia SGPS, SA reprivatisation. The 173,388,769 shares comprising the biggest public offer for
sale, in Portugal, since 2000 fuelled new capital market dynamism. The sales operation, totalling €1,100m, was the
6th biggest in Europe, in 2006. CaixaBI´s placed 70% of institutional and 40% of retail market shares.

Project Finance

CaixaBI was the principal Portuguese bank in the project finance area, as mandated lead arranger. According to
Dealogic’s league tables, CaixaBI was the 3rd major bank in the Iberian Peninsula and 6th in Europe.

Project Finance International’s “Renewable Deal of the Year” was awarded to ENERSIS group’s wind and hydro assets
finance structuring operation. The group comprises a collection of companies, acquired, in the meantime by BABCOCK
& BROWN, as part of a combined operation totalling €865m as the biggest ever operation in the structured energy
sector in terms of project finance in Portugal. 
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4th Reprivatisation Stage

€ 1,091,293,993

Global Co-ordinator and Bookrunner

2006

League Table - Mergers and Acquisitions - 2006 (Portugal)

Ranking # Advisor Amount USDm Transactions #

Source: Bloomberg

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

JP Morgan
Morgan Stanley

CaixaBI
Millennium BCPI
BES Investimento

Rothschild
CIBC

Goldman Sachs
Banco BPI

ABN AMRO Bank

3
2
10
6
12
4
1
2
1
2

2.050
2.006
1.413
991
963
698
601
585
542
347

Ranking 2006 - European Project Finance Loans

Rank # Mandated Lead Arranger Value $m Deals %Share 2005

Source: Dealogic

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Royal Bank of Scotland
Caja Madrid

BSCH
Dexia

Calyon
Caixa Geral de Depósitos / CaixaBI

BBVA
HBOS

BES Investimento
NATIXIS

1
4
8
6
3
22
9
10
30
64

33
26
22
28
11
14
15
14
10
13

3.927
2.343
2.318
1.933
1.825
1.536
1.514
1.390
1.387
1.357

11.0
6.6
6.5
5.4
5.1
4.3
4.2
3.9
3.9
3.8



The bank was mandated lead arranger for £6,970m of senior debt for the project for the acquisition of the British
Airports Authority by the consortium led by Ferrovial Infraestruturas.

CaixaBI was also mandated lead arranger for £2,370m of senior debt for the project for the acquisition of Associated
British Holdings plc by Borealis Infrastructure Management, GIC SI Special Investments, Goldman Sachs Investment and
Infracapital Partners consortium.

Equally significant was Tejo Energia’s debt refinancing operation and the financing of 696m in new pollution control
equipment in which CaixaBI was also the mandated lead arranger.

Financial Intermediation

Improvement in the share volume trading ranking, from third to second position in 2006, and on the rise, as shown by
the consecutive leads achieved in November and December. Electronic brokerage channels also achieved very
significant growth.

CaixaBI was awarded “specialist treasury securities trader” status for treasury bonds, in 2006.

The number of issuers for which the bank operates as a liquidity provider increased to seven, in the year in question.

Private Equity

The venture capital area invested a total amount of 44.1m in 2006 of which amount 34.2m was invested in new
subsidiaries and 9.9m in reinforcing portfolio investments. 

New operations particularly included:

a 12% equity investment in Parque Eólico da Penha da Gardunha, Lda., a company with majority (76%)
ownership by Enersis Group and owning 25% of a consortium bidding for the second stage of the public tender
for electricity to be generated by wind farms, and;

a 5% equity investment in La Seda de Barcelona, S.A., a Spanish company listed on the Madrid Stock Exchange

16 Relevant Events

Refinancing of EnersisHydro 
and Wind Portfolio

 985,500,000

October 2006

Mandated Lead Arranger

PORTUGAL

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

BESI
CaixaBI

BPI
Fincor

Lisbon Brokers
Millennium BCPI

BSNP
Banco BPI

BCP
Finibanco

1
3
6
2
5
4
7
11
8
-

16.3%
10.2%
7.7%
7.6%
7.2%
7.2%
4.8%
3.9%
3.9%
1.8%

13,114,946
8,202,661
6,176,689
6,155,911
5,825,599
5,799,775
3,853,623
3,174,210
3,162,542
1,444,467

53%
35%
34%
-2%
23%
7%
21%
131%
99%
2%

Ranking 2006 - Financial Intermediation

Ranking#
2006

Financial
Intermediary

Volume %
Year-on-Year

#
Ranking#

2005

Source: CMVM

2 8,202,661 10.2% 35% 3CaixaBI

.

.



whose biggest shareholder is the Portuguese group Imatosgil and which organised a major capital increase
operation of 418.7m to finance its growth strategy with the aim of becoming the European market leader in
PET production. The equity investment in La Seda de Barcelona, S.A., was 34.16m.

Reference should also be made, in this chapter, to CGD’s maintenance of its AA- medium and long term Fitch Ratings
rating. This is the best rating for Portuguese banks and is identical to the principal Spanish banks, whose importance,
in terms of credibility and financial strength is also shared by CaixaBI as CGD Group’s investment banking arm. 

Reference should, lastly, be made to management control, in which equally positive results were achieved with an
improvement in the cost-to-income ratio to 34%, in comparison to the previous year’s figure of 36.1%.
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International Economy

Overview

World economic growth remained relatively high, notwithstanding existing risk factors, particularly associated with
significant oil price hikes  in international markets (during most of 2006, having reached all-time highs both in London
and New York) and also including most raw materials and the continuation of a geopolitically unstable environment.
The IMF’s most recent forecasts put world economic growth over the last year at 5.1%, in comparison to the year 2005
figure of 4.9%.

High raw materials prices, particularly oil, could have medium and long term consequences, reducing growth potential
in most countries and fuelling inflation. 

We continue, however, to consider the impact of the rise in oil prices on economies to be weaker than in former energy
crises. This derives from various factors: (1) the rise in oil prices, in addition to aspects related with geopolitical
instability, is essentially explained by increased demand, particularly from countries with the highest GDP levels, such
as China and India, which account for an important proportion of the consumption of this raw material, which sustains
the high world economic growth rates; (2) it stimulates greater energy efficiency, in addition to the quest for alternative
energy sources, particularly renewable energies and especially so in the more developed countries; (3) the capacity of
the principal production countries, notably OPEC, to tailor production to demand; (4) it helps to promote international
trade with less developed countries, which are usually the main producers of raw materials, leading to higher rates of
GDP over the long term.  
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Operating 
Context

Brent WTISource: Reuters
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(next futures contract)

Eurozone
 Germany
 France
 Spain
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 Italy
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Japan
Brazil

World

0.5%
0.0%
0.9%
2.9%
-1.1%
0.3%
2.5%
3.0%
1.4%
0.5%

4.0%

1.8%
1.0%
2.0%
3.1%
1.0%
1.1%
3.3%
4.4%
2.3%
4.9%

5.3%

1.3%
0.9%
1.2%
3.4%
0.4%
0.0%
1.9%
3.5%
2.6%
2.3%

4.9%

2.4%
2.2%
2.4%
3.4%
1.5%
1.5%
2.7%
3.1%
2.7%
3.6%

5,1%

2.0%
1.3%
2.3%
3.0%
1.8%
1.3%
2.7%
2.8%
2.1%
4.0%

4.9%

GDP Growth Rates

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007e

Source: IMF, INE (National Statistics Office), ESN, CaixaBI Research

Eurozone 0.5% 1.8% 1.3% 2.4% 2.0%

World 4.0% 5.3% 4.9% 5,1% 4.9%



In a less positive environment for the US, resulting from high oil prices, increases in interest rates and a slowdown in
the property market, the US economy, in 2006, grew more than 3%, with the most recent forecasts for 2007
suggesting a figure of between 2.5% and 3.0%, comprising a downturn in comparison to the previous estimates. The
US economy, however, is expected to continue to derive benefit from buoyant domestic demand, reflecting favourable
labour market conditions, although a less expansionary monetary policy could lead to a slowdown in the rate of growth
of the principal activity measurement indicators. 

The principal European institutes are currently reviewing upwards their growth forecasts for the European economies,
translating the greater dynamism occurring over the last few months, both in terms of private consumption and
investment as well as exports, after having, over a relatively long period of time, been penalised by their loss of
competitiveness vis-à-vis the developing countries of Asia and Eastern Europe, which enjoy competitive advantages in
several areas. Domestic demand is being supported by improved unemployment rate trends in which unemployment
is currently at its lowest level since the start of the decade, in addition to an across-the-board improvement in
confidence indicators. External demand, in turn,  translates higher productivity by European industry which is not
unconnected with the decrease in the size of the public deficits in the major Eurozone economies. 

In monetary policy terms, it is generally held that the FED has completed its intervention rates normalisation procedure.
The Fed Funds rate increased from 4.25% to 5.25%, in 2006. By means of a gradual rise in its intervention rates (the
US interest rate rise process has extended over a period of around 2 years), the FED’s primary aim has been to render
monetary policy more neutral to growth/inflation variables. The future behaviour of US monetary policy is expected to
be contingent on the most relevant GDP growth/inflation indicators.

The Bank of England, once again, increased its intervention rates slightly (by 0.25% to 4.75%), in response to the more
positive indicators of the British economy but also with the objective of attenuating the increase in inflationary pressures.

The European Central Bank (ECB) continued to implement its monetary policy adjustment procedure, put into effect at
end 2005, having increased its intervention rates on several occasions with the refi rate now standing at 3.5%. The
ECB’s nominal and real intervention rates, however, are still relatively low and are expected to rise again in 2007.

Domestic Economy

Overview

Real GDP growth in the Portuguese economy, in 2006, is estimated at between 1.2% and 1.5%, against the preceding
year’s figure of 0.4%. 

The greater buoyancy of the Portuguese economy over the last year largely derives from the highly favourable evolution
of foreign trade, particularly major export growth, estimated by the Bank of Portugal at probably more than 9.0% in
2006, which may have permitted a slight recovery in Portuguese industry’s market shares after the significant losses of
previous years. The evolution of Portugal’s exports translated the improvement of economic conditions in her principal
export markets, particularly the major European markets. 

20 Operating Context | Domestic Economy

ECB FED BOESource: Reuters
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Private consumption was also positive, although domestic demand remains pressurised by the downturn in investment
and greater restrictions on public consumption, as a result of the implementation of measures designed to correct the
budget deficit.

Reference should, however, be made to the improvements achieved in terms of budget consolidation during the last
year (budget deficit decrease from 6.0% to 4.6% of GDP), notwithstanding the restrictive short term economic effects,
which have improved medium term growth prospects.

The growth in consumer prices, by around 1% to close to 3.0%, in 2006, is explained, inter alia, by the staged effects
of the July 2005 increase in the standard rate of VAT and higher prices of many raw materials.

Currency Market

The euro’s performance against the US dollar, in 2006,  contrasted with its track record in 2005. The euro appreciated
from 1.18 US dollars at end 2005 to 1.32 US dollars at end 2006 (with an average of 1.26 US dollars and a December
maximum of 1.33 US dollars).

The euro also increased in value from 139 to 157 yen, increasing steadily in value since June 2005.

The change factor against sterling during most of 2005 was maintained in 2006 (between £0.67 and £0.70). The euro,
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GDP
 Private Consumption
 Public Consumption
 Investment
 Domestic Demand
 Imports
 Exports

Inflation

Unemployment

Budget Deficit to GDP (%)

Public Debt to GDP (%)

-1.1%
0.0%
0.7%

-10.0%
-2.2%
-0.5%
3.7%

3.3%

6.3%

-2.9%

57.0%
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5.3%

2.4%

6.7%

-3.2%

58.6%

0.4%
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1.7%
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-4.6%

67.4%
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1.5%
0.5%
2.0%
1.0%
4.6%
6.5%

2.5%

7.6%

-3.7%

68.5%

Economic Data- Portugal

2003 2004 2005 2006e 2007e

Source: IMF, INE (National Statistics Office), ESN, CaixaBI Research
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however, has been losing value against sterling since May (with the extremes being equal to the limits referred to in
the preceding range. The euro was worth an average £0.68.

Money Market

Money market trends, in 2005, were naturally the result of the market outlook based on the performance of the European

Central Bank. Improved economic conditions in the Eurozone, together with a more significant possibility of higher

inflation, pushed Euribor rates upwards, in a continuation of the trend starting in fourth quarter 2005. The 3 months

Euribor rate increased from the 2.5% recorded at the start of the year to 3.7%, with a similar behaviour of the 12 month

rate to a year end figure of 4%.

Capital Market

Shares

The principal Portuguese share index, PSI20, recorded a 29.9% increase in share prices, in 2006, as opposed to the 12%
recorded in the same period 2005. The Euro Stoxx 50 benchmark index increased in value by 14% in the same period,
whereas the IBEX, in Spain, rose 31%. The PSI20’s performance was based on the more positive outlook for the Portuguese
economy, in addition to announcements of large and mid-small caps M&A operations.

22 Operating Context | Domestic Economy
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Bonds

The flattening of the German sovereign curve was a reality in 2006, with the 30-2 years curve falling from 128 to 
60 base points. The changes were, naturally, more significant over the short term with the market discounting the
European Central Bank’s more restrictive approach. Reference should also be made to the support provided to the long
maturities by higher demand from institutions such as pension funds in their endeavours to match liabilities and assets.

The German 10 year rate began the year at close to 3.33%, hitting a peak of 4.12%, a trough of 3.25% and an
average of 3.78%.

In terms of public debt issues, Portugal issued 11.8bn in treasury bills (cf 16.8bn in 2005) in 2006 gross and 3.2bn
(cf 2.5bn in 2005) net. A total amount of 13.9bn (cf 16.7bn) gross of treasury bonds was issued in 2005 with a
net figure of 7.5bn (against 10.6bn in 2005).

Summary of Portuguese Public Debt Auctions and Syndications  

Jan – 1,000,000,000 3.20% 2011 Treasury Bonds Auction 
Feb – 1,000,000,000 3.20% 2011 Treasury Bonds Auction 
Mar – 3,000,000,000 4.10% 2037 Treasury Bonds Syndication 
Apr –       1,000,000,000 3.95% 2009 Treasury Bonds Auction 
May –  900,000,000 4.10% 2037 Treasury Bonds Auction 
Jun –    1,000,000,000 3.20% 2011Treasury Bonds Auction 
Jul –    3,000,000,000 4.20% 2016 Treasury Bonds Syndication 
Aug –   800,000,000 5.00% 2012Treasury Bonds Auction 
Sep– 1,000,000,000 4.10% 2037 Treasury Bonds Auction 
Oct– 1,000,000,000 4.20% 2016 Treasury Bonds Auction 
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Jan-06 Dec-06Source: Reuters
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Business Structure

CaixaBI is Caixa Geral de Depósitos (CGD) Group’s investment banking arm and operates autonomously (although its
commercial structures are aligned with those of CGD), in developing products and services for customers operating in
its target market segments of large and medium sized enterprises, public institutes and local councils, institutional
investors and major domestic and regional project promoters, as well as singular persons with investments in the
financial instruments trading area. 

With a transversal business origination area encompassing both domestic and international component parts, CaixaBI
is in an advantageous position to compete in the Portugal – Spain – Brazil business triangle. The bank, organised into
product divisions, has been concentrating on cross-selling operations in conjunction with other CGD Group areas while
also developing its own operations, in Spain, through its Madrid branch as well as in Brazil

CaixaBI provides highly specialised financial services focussing in the following areas:

Medium and long term domestic and international credit

Structured finance

Corporate debt finance

Corporate equity finance

Capital market

Corporate risk management advisory

Project finance

Financial intermediation/financial instruments trading

Venture capital/private equity

The bank also provides an independent research service, integrated with the European Securities Network (pan-
European investment banks) – providing it with an indispensable European profile to operate in such markedly
globalised markets.

Its research areas monitor the evolution of national and international financial markets with the aim of assisting
investors’ asset management-linked decision-making processes. 

Consolidated Performance

The following pages provide a comparative analysis between 2006 and 2005 on the principal consolidated balance
sheet and financial statements headings, in addition to the economic-financial indices extracted from them:

Consolidated net assets were 7% up in 2006, i.e. 126,765 thousand to 1,909,504 thousand as against the end
of the preceding year’s 1,782,739 thousand. Operating growth was, however, much more significant – at around 
38% - as 2005 closed with a transitory deposit associated with an operation for more than 400m, which distorts
the analysis.

Activity

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t
| 2

00
6 

  

25Activity | Business Struvcture

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.



The credit portfolio contributed an amount of 146,419 thousand to such growth, i.e. a 23% increase to 785,456
thousand, in comparison to the 639,037 thousand with which it closed the year. 

Growth in the securities portfolio was also significant – 135,690 thousand or 29% – totalling 607,473 thousand
at end December against 471,783 at the end of the preceding year.
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Information on the assets structure, comparing the situation at the close of the last two years, is set out below: 

The bank’s separate solvency ratio was eroded, in December 2006, owing to several significant derivatives
operations, whose compensation contributed to a reduction of this indicator to 9.91% against 13.76% at end 2005.
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Reference should be made to the following as regards the respective analysis of CaixaBI’s net income, in 2006:

Consolidated net income grew 20.2%, i.e. up 5,042 thousand from 25,004 thousand in 2005 to this year’s
30,046 thousand. Information on its principal component parts is provided below, in net operating income.

There was a 12.6% improvement in return on equity (prior to the appropriation of net income for the year), at end
2006, in comparison to 11.3% at end 2005.

There was also an improvement on return on assets, from the year 2005 figure of 1.4% to 1.57% at close 2006. 
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Net operating income totalled 63.2m against 54.1m, with commissions comprising 68% of the total.                 

.

The bank’s consolidated cash flow was 16% up to 40,627 thousand at year end against 35,066 thousand at 
end 2005.
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The behaviour of net interest income was highly positive although the year 2005 figures were negatively influenced
by the impact of a venture capital operation. Growth over the year 2005 was 46% with 15,910 thousand for the
year against the preceding year’s 10,882. Even without the referred to distortion, net interest income would have
grown by 32%, on the basis of the above referred to credit and securities portfolio growths.

Income from financial assets, in 2006, was down 48%, to 4,105 thousand against the year 2005 figure of 
7,849 thousand which had been influenced by the recognition of capital gains on available for sale assets, which
situation did not occur on the same level this year.

Net commissions, in 2006 were 43,191 thousand against the year 2005 figure of 35,369 thousand i.e. up 22%
by 7,822 thousand, reinforcing its role as the bank’s principal income originator.
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The net change in provisions/impairments account headings comprised a reinforcement of 518 thousand, against
the preceding year’s reinforcement of 1,255 thousand. Its breakdown shall be analysed in the notes to the accounts. 

Relations and Credit Area

Introduction

Reinforced leadership, origination and structuring of diverse financial operations, in various debt finance-related
aspects, have helped to increase CaixaBI’s market share of the major enterprises market. CaixaBI has, at the same time,
continued to endeavour to secure the transversal origination of operations in collaboration with product areas,
focussing on the capital market (commercial paper and bond loan) operations, corporate equity finance (financial
restructuring operations, mergers and acquisitions) and interest rate risk management.

Pursuant to these attributions, the bank continued to manage CaixaBI’s credit portfolio, agencying syndicated
corporate credit and equity market operations – commercial paper issue programmes and bond loans.  The support
provided in terms of the agencying of operations performed by the bank’s product areas, in addition to CGD itself, has
been fundamental in terms of optimising CGD Group’s structural costs.

The bank remained close to CGD’s “Empresas e Soluções” commercial network, in 2006, translating into a significant
increase in investment banking and capital market transactions. 
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Domestic Activity

The bank acted as the lead manager for several operations in 2006. The following is a chronological list based on
innovative structure, amount involved or relevance of the parties:

Financial advisory services to EGREP – Entidade Gestora de Reservas de Produtos Petrolíferos, E.P.E.
enabling it to obtain a long term syndicated loan for a maximum amount of 310,000,000 for the acquisition
of strategic oil products reserves;  

Lead management, organisation and underwriting, for latter syndication, of a long term loan to Companhia
Carris de Ferro de Lisboa, SA, for the amount of 100,000,000, combining risk/return margins enabling
CaixaBI to avoid pressures from the competition.

Lead management, organisation and underwriting of a commercial paper issue programme for the Estoril Sol
Group, for a global amount of 50,000,000 to consolidate the company’s financial liabilities.

Lead management and organisation of a rated commercial paper issue for Visabeira Group, for the global
amount of 40,000,000 and financial advisory services for the group’s financing strategy.

Sogevinus, SGPS, SA – Organisation and structuring of acquisition finance for the full share capital of Porto
Barros and latter debt refinance for a global amount of 80,000,000.

Altri, S.L. – Organisation, structuring and joint syndication of acquisition finance for the full share capital of
Celbi and latter global financial debt refinance of 400,000,000.

Auto Industrial, S.A. – Organisation and structuring of a disintermediated commercial paper issues programme
for the amount of 10,000,000.

Parque Expo, SA – Organisation and structuring of a disintermediated commercial paper issue programme for
the amount of 10,000,000. 

EDA – Empresa de Electricidade dos Açores, S.A. – Organisation and structuring of a disintermediated
commercial paper issues programme for the amount of 20,000,000.

Caima Indústria, SA (Altri SGPS Group) – Interest rate hedge of 310,000,000, for risk management
associated with the above referred to finance of 400,000,000. 

DEFLOC – Interest rate swap for the amount of  264,490,448, associated with finance for the acquisition of
EH 101 helicopters.

Petrogal/Galp Energia – Commercial paper issue programme for the amount of 100,000,000 to
complement the company’s financial requirements.

EPUL – First tranche (12,000,000) of the 35,000,000 loan agreement signed in July 2005 and respective
commissions charges associated with such use.

OGMA – Oficinas Gerais de Material Aeronáutico, S.A. – Commercial paper issue programme with a
subscription guarantee via a current account facility of 10,000,000. The operation was designed to refinance
a part of the company’s liabilities.

Luís Simões, SGPS, S.A. – Disintermediated commercial paper issue programme for the amount of
10,000,000 to complement the company’s financial needs.

Alves Ribeiro/Alrisa – Commercial paper programme, for the amount of 5,000,000 to complement the
company’s financial needs.

EDP – Medium term revolving credit facility for the amount of 1,100,000,000 with CaixaBI having the status
of mandated lead arranger underwriting the amount of 75,000,000.

Cinveste, SGPS, S.A. – Commercial paper issue programme for the amount of 50,000,000, collateralised by
financial investments.
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Lisgráfica – Restructuring of commercial paper programme, for the amount of 3,750,000, with a
reinforcement of guarantees to offset the extension of the agreed maturity period, completed in July 2006.

Construtora Abrantina – Restructuring of commercial paper programme, for the amount of 7,832,131 with
a reinforcement of guarantees to offset the extension of the agreed maturity period, completed in August 2006.

CaixaBI agencied 84 commercial paper programme issues, with 400 issues worth more than 10bn, in 2006. The bank
also agencied 24 bond loan operations, for an aggregate amount of more than 4.5bn of which 50% were secured
this year.

International Activity

There was significant growth in terms of CaixaBI’s international activity, particularly in Spain, in which the bank’s branch
continued to evidence the highly dynamic approach already demonstrated. It is currently one of the principal
originating units, not only on account of its generation of investment banking opportunities but also the number of
completed operations.

Special reference should be made to the following completions, based on the dimension and importance of operations
to the bank’s image and operating account:

Saprogal Group – Secondary buyout of 150,000,000 with CGD’s participation as arranger underwriting
15,000,000.

Parques Reunidos – Refinance of 338,200,000. CGD Group participation of 45,000,000.

Telefonica – Refinance of acquisition of O2 for an amount of between 350,000,000 and a maximum of
700,000,000 comprising a “club deal” with the Spanish “Cajas”. CGD Group participation of 60,000,000.

INAER – Finance for Investindustrial's  acquisition of Inae for the amount of 91,500,000.  CGD participation
of 7,000,000 as arranger.

Yelmo Cineplex – Participation in refinance for Yelmo Cineplex for the amount of 38,000,000. CGD Group
participation of 8,000,000 as co-arranger.

ENCE Group – Finance of 400,000,000. CGD Group participation of 30,000,000 as lead arranger.

Aspro Ocio – Finance of 180,000,000. CGD Group participation of 45,000,000 as mandated lead arranger.

United Surgical Partners Europe – Finance of 126,100,000. CGD Group participation of 10,000,000 as
co-arranger.

Panrico – Refinance of Panrico leveraged buyout operation for the amount of 789,000,000. CGD Group
participation of 25,000,000 as lead manager.

Prisa Group – Participation in finance of 1,600,000,000 for Prisa Group. CGD Group participation of
50,000,000 as arranger.

Caprabo Group – Participation in finance of 475,000,000 for Caprabo Group. CGD Group participation of
25,000,000 as lead arranger.

Alteco Gestión y Promoción de Marcas S.L. and Mag-Import S.L. – Participation in finance of
2,160,000,000 to Alteco Gestión y Promoción de Marcas S.L.U and Mag-Import S.L. for Metrovacesa take-over
bid. Participation in underwriting 250,000,000 as mandated lead arranger.

Pullmantur – Participation in finance of 220,000,000 to Pullmantur Cruises group. Participation of
20,000,000 as mandated lead manager.

Levantina – Acquisition leverage finance of 358,000,000. CGD Group participation as arranger underwriting
30,000,000.

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t
| 2

00
6 

  

33Activity | Relations and Credit Area

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.



Ferrovial Infraestructuras – Equity finance for acquisition of BAA, for a total amount of £1,850,000,000. CGD
Group participation underwriting £150,000,000.

La Seda de Barcelona – Finance of 470,000,000. CGD Group participation as mandated lead arranger
underwriting 70,000,000.

Blinker Group – Refinance and recapitalisation of 31,500,000 for Blinker Group, with CaixaBI operating as
mandated lead arranger and book runner for the full amount of the finance.

Angulas Aguinaga – Finance of 105,000,000 pursuant to the acquisition process by private equity interests.
CGD Group participation as arranger, underwriting 15,000,000.

Cementos Portland Valderrivas – Finance of part acquisition of Uniland for the amount of 1,580,000,000.
CGD Group participation as mandated lead arranger underwriting 150,000,000.

CaixaBI’s international activity, other than in Spain, particularly included, inter alia, the following operations:

Isolux/Cobra/Elecnor consortium – Issue of a standby letter of credit guarantee to the consortium awarded
the contract for several high voltage transmission lines in Brazil, for the total amount of USD 235,000,000. CGD
Group participation of USD 35,000,000. 

Endesa Fortaleza – Finance of USD 67,500,000 via an IFC B Loan for a new natural gas combined power
station  in Fortaleza - Brazil. CGD Group participation of USD 22,500,000.

Martifer SGPS – Group - Finance (“club deal”) of 25,000,000 for Biomart Energy SL and Agromart Energy SL,
two subsidiaries in Romania, for the development of a bio diesel project. CGD Group participation of
10,000,000.

In the institutional relations sphere, contacts, already made with several entities considered fundamental for CaixaBI’s
consolidation as an international investment bank, were reinforced, particularly, inter alia, contacts made through 
IDB - Inter-American Development Bank and IFC – International Finance Corporation.

Corporate Debt Finance

CaixaBI continued to play a leading role in the debt capital market area, in 2006, namely as the lead Portuguese bank
in terms of bond issues.

The data for the year in question, compiled by Bloomberg, not only rank CaixaBI as the leading Portuguese bank in
terms of bond loans, but also rank it fourth (and only Portuguese institution in the top ten) in terms of the global
ranking of national bond issues, only supplanted by three global institutions.
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Ranking Bank Share (%)
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(€m)
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Source: Bloomberg. Only the top ten banks are listed. 
The global statistics include 30 banks and a total issue volume of €21,747m.
  Country of Issuer: Portugal (risk). Issue Maturity / Call / Put >= 18 months.1
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4.5
4.4
4.3
3.4
3.4
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5
3
3
2
2
3

3,558.33
3,110.12
2,278.33
1,727.50
1,570.00
979.69
960.64
933.33
750.00
750.00



CaixaBI was involved in a total number of 19 bond issues, in 2006, with a global issue volume of around 19.1bn, as
the lead manager for 11 issues, comprising a total issue volume of around 7.1bn. 

In the sovereign debt segment, Portuguese public debt continues to comprise one of CaixaBI’s operating priorities, with
the bank having also been awarded the formal status of “specialist treasury securities trader”, hitherto performed,
within CGD Group, by Caixa Geral de Depósitos. Special reference should be made, in this segment, in 2006, to:

the role of joint lead manager for the inaugural placement of the new Portuguese Republic Ten Year Treasury
Bond (4.2% Treasury Bond October 2016), for the amount of 3bn;

the allocation of Co-Lead Pot bonds in respect of the initial placement of the Republic of Portugal 30 years
benchmark (Treasury Bond 4.1% April 2037), reflecting the high quality of investors’ orders secured by CaixaBI
as the operation’s co-lead manager. 

In the private debt market in which the bank was involved in 16 bond issues, in 2006, involving an amount of around
8.1m, reference should be made to: 

the first issue of Portuguese covered bonds (Caixa Geral de Depósitos mortgage bonds), in which CaixaBI acted
as joint lead manager and book runner. The referred to operation, for the amount of 2bn (making it Portugal’s
biggest non-sovereign bond issue), was made under a 10bn mortgage bonds programme in which CaixaBI was
the co-arranger. The huge success of this issue was, inter alia, visible in the final price achieved (4 points above
the swap curve) and the dimension and quality of the order book (around 6bn placed by more than 130
investors from 23 countries);
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CaixaBI was also the lead manager in the following issues for 50m or more : 

CaixaBI also reinforced the programme of commercial paper portfolio led and agencied by it, in 2006, with an
additional 36 programmes totalling around 707m.

Of the 36 new programmes, in 2006, reference should be made to the following in terms of dimension:
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In the structured finance sphere, CaixaBI operated as the organiser and joint lead manager of a structured finance
operation for the amount of around €277m, enabling the Portuguese state to authorise the Portuguese air force to
purchase 12 new tactical transport and coastal surveillance aircraft under a leasing arrangement.

Reference should be made to the following CaixaBI interventions, in 2006:

Arranger for two structured finance operations, involving the assignment of future credits by two Portuguese
municipalities.

Financial advisor to Caixa Geral de Depósitos for the sales procedure involving an overdue residential mortgage
credit portfolio (already successfully completed) and an overdue corporate credit portfolio (still in progress);

In the sphere of structured leasing operations in which the bank is still the only domestic institution with effective
competence and experience, the organisation of a structured leasing operation for a major domestic corporation
on an innovative class of assets in Portugal. The operation’s close has been forecast for 2007.

Corporate Equity Finance

1. Sectoral Environment

1.1. Equity Capital Market

The PSI2 appreciated by 30%, in 2006, recording one of the strongest rises in terms of worldwide equity markets. A
major contribution was made by the launch of various take-over bids which had an energising effect on the market,
generating expectations of latter competing bids and a revitalising process for the Portuguese economy, in addition to
public distribution offers (i.e. public offerings). The domestic equity capital market also benefited from the appreciation
of most European and world markets.

In line with secondary market dynamism were Sonae Group’s take-over bid for Portugal Telecom and PT Multimedia
and BCP’s take-over bid for BPI. 

Primary market recovery was also noticeable, particularly the initial public offering on Galp Energia shares, which
produced an excellent after-market performance in both volume and price.
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1.2. Financial Advisory

As in the preceding year, mergers and acquisitions operations, in 2006, grew significantly. The most significant
improvement occurred in Europe, with a change of 56.3%. Worldwide growth totalled 44.3%.

2. Activity

The bank successfully completed the following equity capital market operations, in 2006: 

Global coordinator and book runner for the 4th stage of Galp Energia SGPS, S.A.’s
reprivatisation;

Organisation and structuring of public subscription for Cofaco – Comercial e Fabril de
Conservas, S.A. – Sociedade Aberta’s shares; 

Organisation and structuring of R.L. – SGPS, S.A.’s takeover bid for Tertir – Terminais de
Portugal, S.A.;
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4th Reprivatisation Stage
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Global Co-ordinator and Bookrunner
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2006
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on the shares of

€17,560,704
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Organisation and structuring of R.L. – SGPS, S.A.’s takeover bid for Ternor – Sociedade de
Exploração de Terminais, S.A.; 

Global coordinator and book runner for Novabase, SGPS, S.A.’s private bid;

Co-lead for the Banco Espírito Santo, S.A. public subscription; 

Organisation and structuring of the distribution (public offering) for Abbott Laboratories,
Inc’s workers rights issue;

Organisation and structuring of Tecnoholding, SGPS, S.A.’s take-over bid for Efacec Capital
– SGPS, S.A..
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Caixa BI consolidated its leading position in the equity capital market in Portugal, in 2006, as the lead Portuguese
investment bank in number of completed operations, as shown in the following table supplied by securities watchdog
CMVM.

Of operations taking place in 2006, reference should be made to the successful completion of Galp Energia’s initial
public offering pursuant to which Parpública disposed of 23% of the company’s share capital for the global amount
of 1,091,293,993 (4th reprivatisation stage). The operation comprised a domestic public offering and direct sale to
a number of financial institutions, that then sold the shares on to domestic and international institutional investors. The
Galp Energia initial public offering was the biggest in Portugal since 2000 and the six biggest IPO in Europe, in 2006,
having helped to fuel new dynamics in the domestic equity capital market.

CaixaBI was the operation’s global coordinator and book runner, making a decisive contribution to its enormous
success in which the retail offer was 21 and the institutional offer 16 times oversubscribed. 

3. Financial Advisory

The bank successfully developed and completed the following projects in 2006:

Financial advisory services to SAG Gest – Soluções Automóvel Globais, SGPS, SA for the
joint-venture with Santander Consumer Group in the vehicle leasing area;

Financial advisory services to Parpública – Participações Públicas, SGPS, S.A. for the
economic-financial assessment of Galp Energia SGPS, S.A. produced as part of the 4th
reprivatisation stage;
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Financial advisory services to Altri, SGPS, S.A. for its acquisition of the full amount of Celbi
– Celulose Beira Industrial, S.A.’s share capital;

Financial advisory services to Sogevinus SGPS, S.A. for its acquisition of the full amount of
Barros Almeida & Cª – Vinhos, S.A.’s share capital;

Financial advisory services to Martifer, SGPS, S.A. for its economic-financial assessment and
production of the respective strategic plan;

Financial advisory services to Sumolis and Caixa Desenvolvimento as part of the disposal of
the full amount of Nutricafés’ share capital;

Financial advisory services to A. Silva & Silva, SGPS, S.A. for the acquisition of an equity
investment in Sopol – Sociedade Geral Construção e Obras Públicas, S.A.
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Reference should be made to the financial advisory services to Altri, SGPS for the acquisition of the full amount of the
share capital of Celbi – Celulose Beira Industrial, in 2006. The success of this operation was borne out by the 13%
increase in the value of Altri’s shares immediately after the announcement of the operation. Reference should also be
made to the financial advisory services to Sumolis and Caixa Desenvolvimento for the disposal of the full amount of
Nutricafés’ share capital, in addition to the financial advisory services to A. Silva & Silva for an equity investment in Sopol.

The bank continued to develop cross-border operations pursuant to CaixaBI’s internationalisation, particularly in Brazil
and Spain. Pursuant to the above, special reference should be made to advisory services to Sogevinus SGPS, which acts
as an umbrella organisation for Caixanova’s wine sector investments, for its acquisition of Barros Almeida & Cª –
Vinhos, S.A. Other financial advisory services, with good prospects of a successful conclusion are also currently in
progress. Reference should, lastly, be made to the diverse endeavours to secure fresh mandates in conjunction with
CaixaBI’s customer areas. 

CaixaBI was the major Portuguese investment bank in the financial advisory services area,  in 2006, having led the
mergers and acquisitions segment, in Portugal, in terms of volume of completed operations, according to the
Bloomberg ranking.

Project Finance Area 

2006 was a particularly positive year for project finance, both as regards the volume of mandates secured as in the
number of completions, enabling us to achieve our best ever year in terms of commissions and volume of credit under
management.

Particular reference should be made, during the year, to operations in the Spanish market, a considerably successful
area  based on four project completions with mandated lead arranger status, in a highly competitive market.

CaixaBI was the principal Portuguese bank in the project finance area, as mandated lead arranger. According to the
Dealogic League Tables, CaixaBI was the 3rd major bank in the Iberian Peninsula and 6th in Europe.
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Ranking 2006 - European Project Finance Loans

Rank # Mandated Lead Arranger Value $m Deals %Share 2005

Source: Dealogic

1
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5
6
7
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Royal Bank of Scotland
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NATIXIS

1
4
8
6
3

22
9

10
30
64

33
26
22
28
11
14
15
14
10
13

3.927
2.343
2.318
1.933
1.825
1.536
1.514
1.390
1.387
1.357

11.0
6.6
6.5
5.4
5.1
4.3
4.2
3.9
3.9
3.8

League Table - Mergers and Acquisitions - 2006 (Portugal)
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Source: Bloomberg
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3
2
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6
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4
1
2
1
2
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2.006
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991
963
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601
585
542
347



Project Finance International's “ Renewable Deal of the Year” - CaixaBI was also the mandated lead arranger for the
senior debt of 1,056m for Babcock & Brown’s acquisition of Enersis II SGPS in the wind power area.

Special reference should be made to the following projects during the year:

Participation in financing a shadow-toll road concession in the Barcelona region with a majority holding by
CEDINSA;

Structuring of 122.5m in finance for a financial vehicle with a majority holding by SACYR
VALLEHERMOSO, as the shadow-toll concessionaire for a series of road sections referred to
as the AS-18 and AS-17 Concession located in the Asturias;

Structuring of 140m in finance for a financial vehicle with a majority holding by SACYR
VALLEHERMOSO, as the shadow-toll concessionaire for a series of road sections referred to
as the CV-35 Concession located in Valencia;

Financial consultancy to PARPÚBLICA, Ministry of Finance and Public Administration and
Ministry of Public Works, Transport and Communications for the resolution of the dispute
between the Portuguese state and the AENOR concessionaire for which CaixaBI successfully
proposed a solution involving a global debt refinancing solution;

Structuring of a finance operation for SACYR VALLEHERMOSO Group company VALORIZA, for a biomass energy
generating plant operating in Spain;

Structuring of a finance operation for TEJO ENERGIA for fully refinancing its existing liabilities
and financing its environmental investment. CaixaBI also provided advisory services on the
production of the supporting financial model for the company’s projections in accordance
with its new financing structure;
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Financial consultancy and financial structuring for CGD Group company EPS, for the public tender to establish
a PPP for the design, plans, installation, financing and  operation of the “SNS - Serviço Nacional de Saúde”
(National Health Service) reception centre;

Structuring of an 80m financing operation for the design, plans, supply, assembly, construction, management
and maintenance of an integrated digital trunking technology system for the Portuguese emergency and security
network;

Participation in financing a treatment of solid urban waste concession, referred to as UTE Los Hornillos, with a
majority holding by SACYR VALLEHERMOSO Group company SUFI;

Financial consultancy to the HPP and Teixeira Duarte consortium as part of stage two of its bid for the
management contract tender for the design, plans, construction, finance, conservation  and operation of the
new Cascais Hospital;

Structuring of a global finance operation of 195m for two wind farm portfolios in France,
totalling 120 MW, owned by BABCOCK & BROWN and EUROWATT;

Participation as mandated lead arranger, for part financing FERROVIAL’s acquisition of BAA,
current owner of most airport assets worldwide, totalling a global amount of £8,970m;

Participation as mandated lead arranger, for part financing of the amount of the acquisition of AB PORTS, one
of the principal players in the UK ports sector, totalling £2,370m;

Financial consultancy for INDÁQUA’s bid (in the meantime declared winner) in the international public tender for
the concession of the operation and management of the municipal public services for the collection, treatment
and processing of waste water in the municipal district of Matosinhos;

Structuring of finance for the reorganisation of ENERSIS Group’s wind and hydro assets, a
collection of companies in the meantime acquired by BABCOCK & BROWN, in a combined
operation totalling 865m which, in addition to comprising the biggest ever operation in
the structured energy sector in project finance terms, in Portugal, was recently awarded the
“Deal of the Year” in Europe for the renewable energies sector, in 2006;
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Structuring of a finance operation of 363m for a financial vehicle with a majority holding
by CINTRA (FERROVIAL Group), as the shadow-toll concessionaire for a collection of road
sections on the island of São Miguel in the Azores;

Structuring of a finance operation of 257M for GLOBAL 3 ENERGIA, for the construction
of a 277MW combined cycle power station in Spain.

Markets and Sales Area

CaixaBI made alterations to its organic structure in the year in question, leading to a merger between its Brokerage
and Sales and Financial and Investment Divisions to form a single Markets and Sales Division, integrating the fixed-
income area into the same division.

The principal objectives were to integrate the sales force, both in the fixed and variable-income segment under a set
of common guidelines and organisation, in addition to reorienting brokerage activity to sales and international markets,
clearly committed to increasing commissions and growth on Caixa Directa Invest’s internet trading platform.

The results in terms of financial intermediation activity and sales were clearly visible immediately after the first four
months of implementation, with the success of the primary market GALP IPO in terms of variable-income; the success
of the CGD mortgage bonds placement in fixed-income terms; with the growth in income from financial operations
originated by hedge strategies in the operating income area and in achieving second place, in 2006, in the national
financial intermediation ranking, in which significant growth was also recorded on electronic brokerage channels.

In the sphere of refreshing the range of products available to CaixaBI customers and to provide the bank with the
necessary tools to enable it to keep pace with market practice, work was carried out on an assessment of several
proposals in terms of their technological and operational component, designed to achieve growing integration with
current middle and back office systems.

We recorded a 36.6% increase in the number of orders processed by back office systems in 2006,  with a ratio very
close to the positive evolution of markets.

The bank is engaged on optimising its support systems, namely after-trading processes involving communication and
confirmation of customers’ orders and expects to increase the automation of settlement processes.
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Corporate Risk Management  Structuring and Advisory Services 

Interest rate increases, both in Europe and the US, were determining factors in the increase in customers’ requests for
interest rate hedges. Another positive factor was increased cross-selling between the various business areas and CGD
Group’s and CaixaBI’s commercial units, with a leading role in securing interest rate risk hedging operations for project
finance operations.

Fixed-income

The Portuguese public debt curve, in 2006, remained relatively stable, with small gains over the swap curve and also
retained its position in terms of value against the Greek and Italian public debt curves. The Portuguese curve remained
stable in accompanying interest rate increases in Europe, owing to the scarcity of debt in the market in comparison to
its peers and the announcement of reforms which could enable the government to achieve its public deficit objectives

Information on CaixaBI’s positive annualised share is set out below:

CaixaBI enjoyed co-leader status in the March 4.10% Treasury Bond 2037 issue and lead manager status in the July
4.20% Treasury Bond 2016 issue.

The 4.10% Treasury Bonds 2037 allocations, were in the region of 54,000,000 with a ratio of 1.80% on the initial
issue volume.

Allocations of the 4.20% Treasury Bonds 2016 issue, were in the order of 178,000,000, with a ratio of 7.43% on
the initial issue volume.
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Corporate Debt

CaixaBI was involved in the following corporate debt segment operations:

SEMAPA 4.268% 04/16 (175,000,000) – CaixaBI was the co-leader for this issue, being responsible for 50% of the
placement.

EDP FINANCE BV 4.25% 06/12 (500,000,000) – CaixaBI was co-manager for this operation, succeeding in originating
11.16% of the issue’s total demand.

REFER 4,25% 12/21 (500,000,000) – CaixaBI was the joint-leader for this operation, accounting for 14% of the book.

REFER 4.047% 11/26 (600,000,000) – CaixaBI was joint-leader for this state-backed operation, accounting for 70%
of the book. 

CGD 3.875% 12/16 (2.000,000,000) – CaixaBI was joint-leader for this state-mortgage bonds operation, accounting
for 37% of the book.

CaixaBI expanded its customer base, achieving highly positive performance levels in the distribution of the referred to
issues, consolidating its lead position among Portuguese banks for the origination and distribution of public and
corporate issuers in Portugal.

CaixaBI’s performance was also highly positive in terms of the broadening of its international distribution base, in
playing a relevant role in overseas placements of domestic issues. 

CaixaBI was responsible for organising the REFER and CGD placements, in 2006 - in this case mortgage bonds -
comprising road shows for the referred to corporate issues in Madrid and Lisbon.

Variable-Income

The bank improved its position in this segment in terms of the volume of the share trading ranking, from third to
second, in 2006. The continued improvement in this performance is evidenced by the consecutive November and
December leads. Equally positive were the significant growths in electronic brokerage channels.

Activity as a liquidity provider for various securities listed on Euronext Lisbon, such as Cofina, Novabase, Orey Antunes,
Reditus, Altri, Inapa and Ibersol kept up a good pace in market-making terms. 

Euronext recognised the bank’s activity by awarding CaixaBI its highest “A” rating for all securities and classes.

CaixaBI was one of the three largest ESN participants in achieving its highest ever levels in terms of volume and
commissions sent to the partnership, in 2006, with growths of 283% in the volume sent and 466% in commissions
paid within the ESN.

CaixaBI was GALP’s international road show leader in Lisbon, Madrid and Paris, where it organised one-to-one
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meetings; and also with investors in London and Dublin, evidencing CaixaBI’s leading role in terms of the IPO and also
providing the ESN with a high visibility European profile.

CaixaDirecta Invest

Year 2006 growth was in line with market evolution, comprising a corresponding share of around 6%. This translated
into a 70% increase in the number of orders and 74% increase in trading volume.

Improvements made to the site particularly include the possibility of providing sight deposit accounts in non-European
currencies in support of the market’s native currency operations, without the need to translate into euros. Other minor
improvements, such as support for the number of variable decimal places in market listings, were also made. 

Venture Capital

1. Introduction

As in previous years, CGD Group’s venture capital activities continued to be performed by two companies:

Caixa Capital - Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A., which, in addition to concentrating all operating activity, also
manages three venture capital funds (FIQ Grupo CGD, FIQ Energias Renováveis FIQ PME), and

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A., geared to larger scale interventions.

Based on its characteristics, activity, in 2006, continued to be influenced by Portugal’s macroeconomic environment,
comprising modest economic growth  in a context in which the European economy, in general, grew at higher levels
than in previous years. Taking this environment and the continuation of a certain retraction of private investment into
account, the number of new investment opportunities submitted for Caixa Capital’s analysis, remained stable in
comparison to the previous year.

Sixty four projects or investment opportunities were analysed during the year, of which 77% were rejected or filed and
6 were approved, representing a success rate of 9.4%. Accordingly, notwithstanding the similarity between the number
of projects analysed in 2005 (65), there was a slight improvement in the approval rate from the 2005 figure of 7.1%
to the already referred to 9.4%, thus confirming the slight improvement in the adequacy of project submissions vis-à-
vis the investment policy furthered in this business area.

Considering the projects analysed, by sector of activity, industry and services were responsible for 53% of the projects
received. As regards this indicator, special reference should be made to the analysis of nine private equity funds
investment opportunities, as a continuation of the growth trend in this type of opportunities, already visible over the
last two years.

48 Activity | Venture Capital

23,4%

29,7%

14,1%

6,3%
6,3%

6,3%

7,8%

3,1%
3,1%

Sectoral Distribution

Services CommerceIndustryPrivate EquityInformation Technology

Biotechnology EnergyAgro-IndustrialOthers

.

.



By type of  operation and as in previous years, expansion and start-up projects accounted for 70% of new investment
opportunities submitted to Caixa Capital. Reference should also be made to the growing number of acquisition projects
(of companies or minority interests), comprising 22% of project analyses in 2006.

2. Investments

The venture capital area invested a total amount of 44.1m, in 2006, of which 34.2m in new subsidiaries and 9.9m
in reinforcing portfolio investments.

New operations particularly included:

a 12% equity investment in Parque Eólico da Penha da Gardunha, Lda., with an Enersis Group investment of
76% and 12% by Espírito Santo Capital – Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A., and which owns 25% of a
consortium bidding for the second stage of the public tender for wind farm electricity generation.The
consortium comprises Enersis Group (30%, of which 25% via Parque Eólico da Penha da Gardunha), Galp Power
(34%), Martifer Group (32%), Efacec (2%) and REpower Systems (2%). Investment to-date consists solely of the
acquisition of a 12% equity investment in the company, with future investment being contingent upon the
tender’s outcome, and ;

an equity investment of 5% in La Seda de Barcelona, S.A., a Spanish company listed on the Madrid stock
exchange, whose major shareholder is the Portuguese group Imatosgil and which undertook a major capital
increase operation of 418.7m to finance its growth strategy with the aim of becoming the European market
leader in PET production. The equity investment in La Seda de Barcelona, S.A., was 34.16m, comprising a
subscription for 16.8m ordinary shares, in addition to the purchase of 4,038,733 shares in normal stock
exchange operations, totalling 20,838,733 shares. The investment was made by FIQ Grupo CGD (75%), Caixa
Capital (15%) and Caixa Desenvolvimento (10%).

Reference should also be made to the fact that this share capital increase operation was principally for the acquisition
of Sabanci Group’s, PET and PTA preshapes production assets in the European market, which include manufacturing
plants in the UK, Turkey and Romania. The company is currently negotiating with the Portuguese government for the
construction of a PTA manufacturing plant in Sines (considered by the Portuguese Investment Agency to be a project
of national interest). 

Projects approved, but not realised,  involve a potential investment of 33.8m by CGD Group’s venture capital area
comprising: (i) a venture capital fund promoted by a large number of universities and other entrepreneurially-related
institutions to support the launch of projects at their seed and start-up capital stages; (ii) participation in the
restructuring operation and increase in the dimension of Fundo NovEnergia 2010, leading to the probable creation of
a new investment vehicle; (iii) joint acquisition, with Hipogest, S.A., of 75.1% of the share capital of Salgadus -
Indústria e Comércio de Produtos Alimentares, S.A., with a forecast direct acquisition by CGD Group’s venture capital
area of 27.5% of the company, and; (iv) participation in the share capital increase of FomentInvest, SGPS, S.A., likely
to involve an amount of 2m comprising a 15.4% equity investment in the company.
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Reference should be made to CGD Group venture capital area’s global investment of around 1.5m in 36,300
Salgadus - Indústria e Comércio de Produtos Alimentares, S.A. shares, on 04 January 2007.The investment was split
between Caixa Capital (2.5% of share capital comprising the acquisition of 3,300 shares) and Caixa Desenvolvimento
(25% of share capital comprising the acquisition of 33,000 shares).

Under the terms of the FomentInvest operation, Caixa Capital will be making an interim investment, comprising 7.5%
of the company’s share capital, in January. The share capital is expected to be realised immediately after the annual
general meeting for the approval of the accounts.

In addition to the investments in new subsidiaries, investments in the following companies were also increased: 

SICAV NovEnergia 2010 – FIQ Energia Renováveis acquired FIQ Grupo CGD’s  and Companhia de Seguros Fidelidade-
Mundial’s investments in this company. The operation comprised a reinforced investment of 9.2m, making FIQ
Energias Renováveis  the major Fundo NovEnergia investor, with 20.06% of the capital.

Silger, SGPS, S.A. – Taking advantage of the company’s shareholding structure, with the departure of the international
partner Dragados S.A., FIQ Grupo CGD matched other shareholders’ investment reinforcements, having acquired
16,905 shares for the total amount of 845,250.

CGDE / PP3E –  Following the endeavours to find a solution for FIQ Grupo CGD’s investment in the company,  a Private
Transaction Instrument for the company was agreed, on 26 August 2005, pursuant to which HLC Energia and HLC
Brasil will pay FIQ Grupo CGD a total of R$7m  (approximately 2.3m at the exchange rate fixed as at the date of the
signing of the contract), in 12 quarterly instalments, beginning October 2005, under which FIQ received a total amount
of R$ 1.11m, in 2006. To increase the flexibility of the procedure for the registration and transfer of the amounts
received, a loan contract was agreed between FIQ and Caixa Geral de Depósitos (currently at its formulation stage).

In addition to these operations, Caixa Capital continued to collaborate on a series of Caixa Geral de Depósitos’
entrepreneurial initiatives. Reference should be made to its committed participation in the European Venture Summit
(on investments in new technologies), attended by more than 500 participants from various investment areas on 04
and 05 December, including corporate and venture capital investors and new technology entrepreneurs from Portugal
and the rest of Europe. This participation also involved the presence of Caixa Capital and Caixa – Banco de Investimento
representatives on the European Venture Summit’s advisory board. The holding of the summit in Lisbon enabled not
only a discussion of the “Innovation Agenda” but also comprised a forum for contacts between entrepreneurs and
investors in Europe.

The event, sponsored by Caixa Geral de Depósitos, IAPMEI and the government’s Technology Plan Office also
encompassed four parallel events viz: (i) 15th European Tech Investment Forum, (ii) 12th Biotech & Finance Forum, (iii)
2nd Industrial Biotech & Finance and (iv) 1st Energy Forum.

3. Disinvestments

Seven disinvestments were made, in 2006, in the following companies:

Biomediche, Lda – Inactive since 2001, the year in which it sold off its industrial equipment and transferred its
personnel to another company in the same field, which was also at the time in question a Caixa Capital subsidiary
(which investment was, in the meantime, successfully disposed of). It completed the procedure for settling its liabilities,
in 2006, by using its premises to discharge its commitments to Caixa Geral de Depósitos, after which the company was
dissolved and liquidated.

Fertagus, S.A. – As established in the shareholders’ agreement and after obtaining advance authorisation from the
state, provided for in the concession contract, entered into on 23 February 2005, FIQ Grupo CGD disposed of its
investment in Fertagus S.A., for the amount of 4,025,208, making total capital gains of 1,531,080.

Finpro Infraestruturas, S,A, – Finpro Infraestruturas, 60% owned by Finpro SGPS and 40% by CGD Group (venture
capital area), was formed in 2002 with the objective of investing in corporate infrastructure concessionaires in Portugal,
namely toll and shadow tolls road concessions. Considering the company’s inactivity and the unlikely prospect of its bidding
for new projects, it was decided, in agreement with the shareholder Finpro SGPS, to dissolve and liquidate the company.

Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A. – Following Caixa Capital’s resolution, in December 2005, to anticipate its disinvestment in
the company, the full amount of the investment in this company was disposed of for the amount  of 2,128,538. All

50 Activity | Venture Capital



of the partners loans’ to the company were also paid off at their nominal value plus the interest accrued to-date. The
disposal of this investment translated into capital losses of 56,171 on the initial investment, which amount was
provisioned.

Sinalemp, S.A. – Disposal of the full amount of Caixa Capital and FIQ PME’s investments, for the amounts provided
for in the shareholders’ agreement, with a global realisation price of 1,504,510, comprising capital gains of
378,942.

Sun Co, S.A. – Following the failure of innumerable endeavours to make the Sun Co project viable and following API
Capital’s resolution to dispose of its investment and its loans to the company to non-institutional shareholders, Caixa
Capital reached an agreement on the sale of the investment and loans made by FIQ PME for the total amount of
57,462. The investment represented 25% of Sun Co’s share capital, and was sold off to the remaining shareholders
in proportion to their respective investments in the company’s share capital. The disposal of the investment translated
into capital losses of 329,362

VCM – Vidro Cristal da Marinha, SGPS, S.A. – VCM was declared insolvent at the end of 2006, pursuant to which
the company was written off from the FIQ Grupo CGD and FIQ PME investments portfolio. VCM was formed on 
04 October 2000 to finance a project for the recovery of the former Mandata, a glass and crystal company in Marinha
Grande, successor to the former Manuel Pereira Roldão e Filhos. Owing to disputes between VCM’s shareholders on
Mandata’s recovery process, the company eventually applied for the special recovery and bankruptcy status established
by Decree Law 132/93, ceasing to operate in fourth quarter 2001.

Part disposals were also made in the following two subsidiary companies:

Ferraço – Ferros e Aços Industriais, S.A. – Corporate disinvestment was furthered with FIQ PME’s disposal of another
11,250 shares for the amount of 95,623, with the company also having repaid another 74,820 in partners’ loans.
The disposal enabled the Fund to realise capital gains of 20,803.

Torre Confecções, S.A. – In accordance with the shareholders’ agreement, corporate disinvestment continued, in
2006, with the redemption of shares comprising 30% of the amount of FIQ Grupo CGD’s investment, with the
company having settled the provisional amount determined in 2006, i.e. 295,737, making capital gains of 54,537.
The conclusion of the assessment dossier for fixing the redemption’s final price is still pending.

Tradingpor, S.A. – In conformity with the opportunely established schedule, the company repaid a total amount of
196,250 of partners’ loans, at year end.

Disinvestments therefore totalled around 9.1m, not including the SICAV NovEnergia 2010 “transfer” from FIQ Grupo
CGD to FIQ Energias Renováveis.

4. Monitoring of Subsidiary Companies

Monitoring activities were performed on the portfolios of the subsidiary companies of Caixa Capital, the three Funds
for Qualified Investors (FIQ) under its management and Caixa Desenvolvimento.

The following chart evidences a significant 129% increase in the amount invested in the subsidiary companies portfolio
over the last three years, which saw a 27% reduction in the number of subsidiary companies during the same period.
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In addition to the above, as regards the characterisation of investments and disinvestments, reference should be made
to the following relevant facts in terms of the remaining subsidiaries:

Compal, S.A. – Last year’s developments  in respect of the subsidiary company Compal – Companhia Produtora de
Conservas Alimentares, S.A. (ex-Inbepor – Investimentos em Bebidas Portugal, SGPS, S.A.), included the following:

acquisition, on  31 January 2006 and still under the name of Inbepor – Investimentos em Bebidas Portugal, SGPS,
S.A., of the full amount of the share capital and additional capital payments of Compal – Companhia Produtora
de Conservas Alimentares, S.A., after the issue of the non-opposition resolution by the Competition Authority.
A shareholders’ meeting was held after the alteration to the company’s shareholding structure which nominated
Compal's board of directors chaired by Caixa Desenvolvimento;

31 March 2006, saw the completion of the structured disposal procedure for the full amount of the share capital
of Nutricafés – Cafés e Restauração, S.A. to a consortium of private equity investors led by Explorer Investments,
also including a fund managed by the Spanish company MCH Private Equity;

the public deed for Inbepor’s incorporation of subsidiary company Compal – Companhia Produtora de Conservas
Alimentares, S.A. was signed on 28 June 2006, which document also included the alteration of the registered
office, the company’s name and corporate object with Inbepor taking the name “Compal – Companhia
Produtora de Conservas Alimentares, S.A.”. Following the preceding operation, the share capital of the new
Compal (ex-Inbepor) was increased to 10m through the issue of 9.95m shares with a nominal value of 1 each,
through the conversion of additional capital payments;

third quarter saw (i) the final adjustment to the acquisition price of Compal – Companhia Produtora de Conservas
Alimentares, S.A., resulting in additional investment of 3.95m by the new Compal  and (ii) the final adjustment to
the acquisition price of the sale of Nutricafés – Cafés e Restauração, S.A., resulting in a higher sales price and
consequently 683,000 in capital gains, realised by the new Compal thus completing the company’s disposal process.

The company has been monitored on a monthly basis, particularly as regards the most relevant commercial
performance and operating profit indicators, encompassing the diverse business divisions, linked with our subsidiary
company’s financial information area.

Grupo Pestana Pousadas, S.A. – To permit the execution of the network expansion plan and compliance with the
constraints on shareholders’ equity, including those deriving from the SIVETUR application (under PRIME), Caixa Capital
and Caixa Desenvolvimento decided to authorise the conversion of partners’ loans into additional capital payments,
totalling 915,000 and 1,372.5 thousand respectively. To support the GPP’s investments in the expansion of its
“pousadas” network, which were also planned to lengthen the operating concession period for an additional five years
from the date of the contract entered into with Enatur, a decision was taken, in December,  in line with the investment
board’s recommendation, to authorise up to 1.5m in new partners’ loans, in proportion to the amounts realised by
the other shareholders, with interest payable under the terms of the agreement.

Sicav NovEnergia 2010 – FIQ Energias Renováveis, a venture capital fund managed by Caixa Capital which came into
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operation in 1st quarter 2006, acquired the Sicav NovEnergia 2010 investments held by FIQ Grupo CGD and
Companhia de Seguros Fidelidade-Mundial. A total amount of 9.2m was invested by FIQ Energias Renováveis, the
biggest investor in the Fundo NovEnergia, with 20.06% of the capital.

Stab Vida, SGPS, S.A. – In light of the subsidiary company’s evolution and in due consideration of the failure to
comply with the shareholders’ agreement, it was decided to activate the said agreement, implementing the clause
providing for the sale of the majority of the share capital, which steps were taken in conjunction with PME Capital.

Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A. – Owing to the company’s difficult financial situation, the creditor banks agreed to
convert loans into capital, which was implemented in second quarter. This operation significantly diluted Caixa
Desenvolvimento’s 10% investment. However, after the above referred to loan conversion operation CGD Group
increased its investment in the VAA Group to 19.9% (14% CGD and 5.9% Caixa Desenvolvimento).

Investments in Institutional Bodies  – It was decided to write-off the portfolio of investments in institutional bodies,
effective starting 2007, in due compliance with the audit recommendations, while also anticipating the guidelines
provided for in the proposal for the alteration of the legal regime pertaining to venture capital companies, currently at
its public consultation stage at the offices of securities watchdog CMVM.

5. Fund Management

Caixa Capital was responsible for managing three venture capital funds for qualified investors, in 2006, FIQ Grupo CGD
- Caixa Capital, FIQ PME - Caixa Capital and FIQ Energias Renováveis – Caixa Capital.

The Fundo de Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados Energias Renováveis –  Caixa Capital (50m) was fully
subscribed for on 16 January with 13.3m having already been paid up.

The following table provides information on the distribution of funds under Caixa Capital management, at end 2006,
in terms of the investors’ structure:
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FIQ Grupo CGD - Caixa Capital

Investor Investment Units Subscribed and Paid Up

Amounts in euros

CGD
D. G. Tesouro
Caixa Capital
Total

1,198
100
2

1,300

59,755,988
4,987,979

99,760
64,843,727

CGD
IAPMEI
Total

365
215
580

9,103,062
5,362,077
14,465,139

FIQ PME - Caixa Capital

Amounts in euros

Total 580 14,465,139

Investor Investment Units Subscribed and Paid Up

FIQ Energias Renováveis - Caixa Capital

Investor
Investment Units

No. Value
Paid up
Capital

Unpaid
Capital

Amounts in euros

Caixa Banco de Investimento, S.A.
FEI Caixagest Energias Renováveis
Total

1,820
180

2,000

45,500,000
4,500,000

50,000,000

36,700,000
0

36,700,000

8,800,000
4,500,000
13,300,000



Paid up fund capital comprised a total of 92.6m, plus 48m in funding obtained, with the respective portfolios
comprising paid up global investment of around 130.3m. Credits received on assets sales totalled 5.1m, with an
amount of 16.8m being available for fresh investments.

Venture Capital Fund capital under Caixa Capital management, in 2006, grew 27.3m, of which 13.3m, in fresh
capital and 14m from profit earned during the year.

Management Control

Management control is an area of constant concern to CaixaBI’s board of directors and comprises a collection of
fundamental rules regulating CaixaBI’s internal control system:  

1. Administrative organisation of structural organs
2. Risk control
3. Compliance
4. Information system
5. CGD Group internal audit structure

The control function underpins each of the bank’s areas and the board of directors is ultimately responsible for
periodically revising CaixaBI’s strategies, policies and objectives, in addition to implementing its organic structure,
promoting a culture favouring such an understanding.

The definition of CaixaBI’s organic structure is the first step towards the implementation of the diverse management
control levels. Structural organs’ contributions’ to effective internal control procedures, use the following references to
obtain and control the existing information, reliably and promptly:

Definition of commercial objectives in terms of non-quantified target markets and submitting all credit
applications to credit councils, both in CaixaBI and CGD;

Separation of functions, pursuant to which any transaction is approved, executed, processed and recognised and
continually monitored and controlled by independent structures;

Daily control of financial information on transactions, performed on the immediately preceding weekday;

Daily control of market risks and reports thereon mirroring the bank’s various positions at the preceding day’s
close sent to the administration and other relevant organs. The market risk control system allows all positions to
be reconciled daily between support and business organs;

Reassessment of derivatives exposure, assessing potential and global risk by counterpart or customer.

CaixaBI subscribes to internal control principles in subordinating its structure to the above referred to mechanisms:
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a) compliance with established management objectives;
b) economic and efficient use of resources;
c) adequate risk control and custodian services;
d) reliability and integrity of financial and management information;
e) compliance with legislation, regulations and internal procedures.

Risk control is permanently evolving, to comply with the dispositions of Community directive 2000/12/CE giving rise to
a set of procedures known as Basel II. Liability and the respective determination of balance sheet risks - credit and
market risks (including interest rates, exchange rates and prices in addition to liquidity) - belong to CGD’s Risk
Management Division, monitored by the bank with a view to moving towards the integrated management of various
risks, i.e., preparations for the addition of operating risks (failure to comply with internal procedures, information
systems failures and human resources errors, external causes), in the first instance, followed by legal and regulatory
risks and reputational and compliance risks.

The aim is to equip CaixaBI’s management team with a series of measures and procedures designed to control bank risk,
in a context of integration with CGD Group but always from a viewpoint of contributing to achieving consistently positive
financial income levels, with prudent management of liquidity, capital investment and control of assumed risks, i.e.

assessing, at each point in time, the bank’s financial status and assumption of risks;

assessment of compliance with regulatory obligations, namely capital, solvency and liquidity requirements;

The compliance function was spun off in 2006, increasing its flexibility within the organisation and facilitating
functional aspects, both on an instructive basis to other structural organs as in analytic terms to verify adequate
conformity with all of the standards and procedures implemented in CaixaBI. 

The information system is a fundamental pillar enabling management to perform more effective control. The principal
control instrument used by the board of directors is the Activities Plan and Budget, whose effectiveness is both
quantitative and qualitative, fixing annual objectives measured by risk assessment and budgeted with each area’s
collaboration. To permit monitoring and supervision of respective performance, the bank’s structural organs are
responsible for the practical implementation of the board of directors’ directives, maintaining an organic structure
which provides a clear definition of responsibility, authority and reporting relations, eliminating grey areas and
enforcing the definition of efficient communication channels to enable suitably qualified employees to perform the
functions which have been allocated to them. 

Lastly, CGD Group’s internal audit structure, being distant from daily control functions in terms of transactions and
operations, enjoys the prerogative of independently assessing the bank’s activity. 

Structural Costs

Cost-to-income is the most significant indicator of balance between control of the bank’s structural costs and its
business structure. CaixaBI has consistently achieved better than benchmark values i.e. less than 50% for the sector.

Control of structural costs, in 2006, and the substantial growth in net operating income, enabled the bank to achieve
a further productivity gain with a ratio of 34.0%.

Human Resources  

CaixaBI manages its human capital in its full awareness of its fundamental importance for the development of its
activity. Both staff retention and recruitment are treated, within CaixaBI, on the basis of rigorous ethical and technical
standards. The bank designs and annually revises an adequate training plan for its business and back-office areas,
providing employees with opportunities to improve their levels of specialist training, by taking financial area masters
degrees and other postgraduate courses, higher Banking Management courses given by the Instituto de Formação
Bancária (Bank Training Institute) in addition to English and Spanish language courses and several one-off seminars or
training actions, in Portugal and abroad.

The bank has a very young human structure in which 55% of workers are under 39. CaixaBI annually takes on several
young graduates which, in addition to contributing  to lowering the average employee age is also indicative of one of
the bank’s social concerns.
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CaixaBI considers its human structure adequate to meet market challenge and has the capacity to innovate in
pioneering its expected growth of activity in its business areas. The bank, as a separate entity, at end 2006, had 157
employees as against the end of 2005 figure of 162.

The following chart provides information on distribution by operating areas as regards the bank’s consolidated
operations which, standing at 174 employees, is also 5 down over the end of the preceding year. 
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The Portuguese economy is expected to record stronger growth in 2007, with most forecasts suggesting a figure of
1.5% - 2.0%. The economic upturn is expected to be essentially sustained on the back of external demand, although
reference should be made to the expectation of more positive behaviour by investment (GFCF) which is expected to
record positive growth after two consecutive years of downturn. Domestic demand, however, is expected to maintain
growth rates of less than 1.0%. In this context, the outlook for mergers and acquisitions activities are moderately
positive, benefiting from a higher level of large scale investments to be made by companies at a time of an upturn in
economic growth, although these may be prejudiced by a trend towards higher interest rates and an eventual reduction
of market liquidity.

The equity capital market, next year, is expected to be dynamic, fuelled by the probability of several privatisation
operations forecast in the state budget for 2007. The said budget provides for the privatisation operations of REN -
Rede Eléctrica Nacional, INAPA - Investimentos, Participações e Gestão, EDP - Energias de Portugal (7th reprivatisation
stage) and TAP. The decision on the privatisation of ANA - Aeroportos e Navegação de Portugal should be taken based
on the consideration of the contractual option used for the new Lisbon airport.

In general, the upturn in economic activity and above referred to privatisation operations are expected to have a
positive effect on the bank’s corporate finance operations next year, particularly in terms of the equity capital market.
On a financial advisory services level, the bank intends to continue to perform cross-border operations pursuant to
CaixaBI’s internationalisation process both in Brazil and in Spain. CaixaBI has been making major investments in the
international area, principally after the formation of its branch in Spain, in 2004, having, over the last few years secured
several cross border mandates and been intensely involved in securing fresh mandates.

In the transversal customers area, the bank envisages greater dynamism in its origination activities for internal
structuring operations and joint development with other bank areas, accompanied by the increase in quality of service
standards targeted at the creation of value for our customers.

We strongly believe that the growing dynamism of our operations in Spain will also make a decisive contribution
towards achieving our proposed objectives.

Expectations, in project finance terms, are for the European market to continue to be dominated by infrastructure
projects, based on growing demand for these kinds of assets, resulting from the creation of a considerable dimension
of Funds specifically geared for the purpose in question. CaixaBI, as in 2006, with the operations involving the
acquisition of BAA and AB Ports, will endeavour to play a leading role in the principal operations likely to occur in 2007. 

The principal focus, in Portugal, is also expected to be in the infrastructures assets area, although several important
projects in the energy sector, namely combined power stations and wind power assets are likely to be completed.

In strategic terms, CaixaBI will endeavour to maintain a regional diversification trend in allocating assets, centred on
the development of its relations with the principal Spanish players in structuring projects in Spain or in other markets
in which they operate provided that they meet the bank’s requirements in terms of country-risk.   

There are good prospects in the financial intermediation area for reinforcing the market share in equity capital market
with the possibility of a degree of correction in the markets during the year, but which could lead to increases in
commissions in the secondary market.

The bank will reinforce its international placement capability for variable-income products through its development of
the partnership with ESN. It will, at the same time, endeavour to develop sales of fixed-income products, by improving
its level of contacts in Spain.

MTS (market for trade and settlement) implementation will help CaixaBI reinforce its competence in fixed-income
trading, particularly private debt.

In secondary market terms, the bank will commit to reinforcing its share of the secondary market as a specialist treasury
securities trader.

We also expect to see increased product offer on all channels (derivatives, CFDs,  warrants and international investment
funds); 

The bank intends to increase the visibility of its profile, in 2007, in international bond syndicates.
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Provisions have been made for the expansion of the financial advisory services on risk management to companies in
the Spanish market, in co-ordination with Banco Caixa Geral and the CaixaBI branch in Spain. 

We expect to significantly reinforce paid up capital in the venture capital funds area, notably fresh investment in FIQ
Energias Renováveis.

CaixaBI’s management control, in 2007, will encounter new developments with the adaptation of procedures to be
defined by CGD Group in the operating risk area and subordinated to the Financial Instruments Market Division (DMIF),
particularly as regards demands for information to be provided to customers.
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The year 2006 confirmed CaixaBI’s position as a benchmark investment bank in Portugal. This would never have been
possible without the contributions of its diverse stakeholders and the Board of Directors wishes to underline the
indispensable trust customers continue to place in CaixaBI’s management. 

CaixaBI wishes to express its gratitude for the institutional collaboration of the monetary authorities, members of the
shareholders’ meeting, sole inspector and auditors. 

We also wish to express our gratitude for the permanent support and indispensable confidence of our shareholders
and other Caixa Geral de Depósitos Group companies.

Last but not least, the Board of Directors wishes to underline the dedication and committed performance of its
employees.
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Considering that the levels of shareholders’ equity are adequate for the company’s performance of its activities, hereby
submits a proposal to the general meeting for the following appropriation of the total amount of 30,771,365 in net
income for 2006:

Legal reserve (10% of net income for year) 3,077,137
Dividends 27,694,228

Lisbon, 27 March 2007
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Gerbanca SGPS, S.A. 68,348,445 shares
89.24% voting rights

Companhia de Seguros Fidelidade-Mundial, S.A. 7,968,827 shares
10.40% voting rights

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t
| 2

00
6 

  

67Qualified Equity Investors

Qualified Equity Investors





Report on CaixaBI’s Governance

The following report has been structured in accordance with CMVM Regulation 10/2005 in addition to the Annex to
CMVM Regulations 7/2001, to provide up-to-date information on Caixa - Banco de Investimento’s governance rules
and practices, in accordance with the said statutes.

I – Disclosure of Information

1. Statutory Bodies

- CaixaBI’s statutory bodies are elected at a general meeting, comprising shareholders with voting rights and entitled
to pass resolutions on all matters put up for its consideration. The bank’s statutory bodies, elected by ballot at the
shareholders’ meeting, have the following characteristics:

Shareholders’ meeting – comprising a chairman and two secretaries elected for a three year term of office;
acting as a liaison between shareholders and the board of directors.

Board of directors – comprising several members responsible for managing the company in strict compliance
with its corporate object and protecting the interests of shareholders and workers. The board of directors elects
an executive board from among its members, comprising members with executive functions to manage the
company’s day-to-day affairs in accordance with the board of directors’ issue of strategic guidelines.

Sole inspector – comprising an acting and deputising statutory audit company performing all activities required
for inspecting the company with a view to ascertaining the veracity and correctness of its accounting records
and compliance with existing legislation.
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C A
Board of Directors

C E
Executive Committee

G C
Compliance Office

D C L
Customers Division

D C A
Corporate Equity
Finance Division

D C D
Corporate Debt
Finance Division

G R F
Fixed-Income

Research Office

G R V
Variable-Income
Research Office

2. Structural Organs

The executive board in performing its management duties, defines the company’s corporate structure and respective
functions. CaixaBI’s organisational chart is set out below:



D O P
Operations Division

D P F
Project Finance and

Infrastructures Division

D M V
Markets and 
Sales Division

D P O
Planning, Risk Control

and Organisation
Division

G A J
Legal Affairs

Office

G R H
Human and Administrative

Resources Office

G S I
Information Systems

Office



3. Responsibilities

The board of directors delegates responsibility to the executive board although it retains overall responsibility in terms
of strategic management in addition to several other responsibilities, particularly including:

- representing the bank;
- defining the bank’s corporate structure;
- defining its organic and operating structure;
- defining the bank’s mission and management;
- contracting-out audit services
- annual approval of the activities plan and budget;
- preparation of proposals for submission to the general meeting, including the annual report.

The board of directors meets whenever called by its chairman and at least every three months.

Resolutions are taken by an absolute majority of the members present or represented with the chairman having the
casting vote.

Board of directors’ resolutions are only valid when more than half of its members are present or represented.

4. Caixa – Banco de Investimento, S.A. Equity Investments

The bank’s corporate structure comprises adequate investments to cater for its business segmentation while enabling
it to leverage CGD Group’s market intervention capacity, through its constant provision of quality, value added services
to its predominantly large and medium sized enterprise customers. Information on CaixaBI’s equity investments is
provided in the following organisational chart:

Caixa Capital (wholly owned subsidiary) – operating in the venture capital market and managing 3 funds.

Caixa Desenvolvimento SGPS (wholly owned subsidiary) – venture capital market operator specialising in
managing equity investments with high growth potential.

Caixa Ireland (wholly owned subsidiary) – providing the bank with a presence in the Dublin International
Financial Services Centre.
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5. Use of New Technologies for Information Disclosure 

CaixaBI provides a considerable amount of information on www.caixabi.pt.

Our aim is to provide more and better information on the bank, providing customers, analysts and the general public
with permanent access to relevant, up-to-date information. 

In addition to the possibility of consulting information on the bank and its respective activity the bank’s research area
provides access to historical and current information of relevance to investors.

6. Share Capital and Dividends Policy

The bank’s share capital comprises eighty one million two hundred and fifty thousand shares with a nominal value of
one euro each.

Shares may be nominative or bearer, registered or not and be reciprocally convertible.

In share capital increases paid up in cash, shareholders will be given preference rights in subscribing for new shares in
proportion to those they already hold unless otherwise decided by the shareholders’ meeting in conformity with
lawfully imposed constraints.

The board of directors may increase the bank’s share capital on one or more occasions in the form of cash payments
until its share capital totals the maximum amount of two hundred and fifty million euros.

In accordance with CaixaBI’s articles of association, the shareholders’ meeting shall pass a resolution on the
appropriation of annual profits, without being subject to any obligatory annual minimum limit.

The shareholders’ meeting may decide to provide shareholders with an advance of profits during the course of the year
as permitted by law.

II – Exercising of Voting Rights and Shareholder Representation

Article 10 of CaixaBI’s articles of association states that all shareholders with one thousand or more shares registered
in their name in the company’s share ledgers are entitled to be present at shareholders’ meetings, with each block of
one thousand shares being entitled to one vote in accordance with no. 2 of article 14.

Shareholders with less than one thousand shares may form groups to make up this number and arrange to be
represented by any group member, to be indicated in a letter addressed to the chairman of the shareholders’ meeting.
In the case of the joint ownership of shares, only one of the owners may participate in shareholders’ meetings, and
must be given a power of attorney by the others.

Shareholders may arrange to be represented at shareholders’ meetings by informing the chairman of the meeting, by
letter, prior to the date thereof.

Shareholders who are singular persons may arrange to be represented by other shareholders or the persons to whom
the law attributes such right. Collective persons shall be represented by the person nominated for the purpose in
question.

The chairman of the shareholders’ meeting shall call an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting whenever requested by
shareholders having at least the minimum number of shares required by law and who request the calling of the
meeting in a letter with a notarised signature providing precise information on the issues to be included on the agenda
and justifying the need for the meeting.

A shareholders’ meeting called at the request of shareholders shall only be held if applicants holding the minimum
number of shares required to call the meeting are present.

There are no limitations on voting rights, nor does any shareholder enjoy special rights and there is no knowledge of
any shareholders’ agreement.
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III – Corporate Rules

1. Corporate Codes of Conduct

As banking activities should be governed by strict principles of impartiality and transparency, to be complied with by
all employees, CaixaBI has introduced internal standards governing professional conduct, issuing directives which have
been compiled in a Code of Conduct, of which all employees are informed.

Internal Regulations for Security Market Activities, defining standards and procedures to be complied with in
financial intermediation activities, prepared on the basis of the dispositions on this subject matter, namely the Securities
Code and dispositions issued by the supervisory authorities (Bank of Portugal and Securities Market Commission).
These regulations have also been issued to and are binding upon employees.

2. Internal Risk Control Procedures

A definition of policies and management methodologies covering the bank’s assets and liabilities, proposing standard
procedures and general rules designed to protect the bank’s exposure have been prepared and are in force in CaixaBI,
in articulation with and co-ordinated by CGD Group’s Risk Management Division.

This group structural body is responsible for satisfactory compliance with internal standards and conformity with the
legal dispositions regulating the bank’s activities and reports any facts and situations which deviate from instructions.

The executive committee’s need, on the other hand, for integrated information and analysis on the bank’s balance
sheet risks is a responsibility which has been entrusted to its Planning, Risk Control and Organisation Division (DPO). 

The compliance function has been spun off into an office whose functions apply to the bank’s structure as a whole,
with the following fundamental aims:

Supervision and control of a set of procedures, rules and regulations designed to preserve ethical standards and
organisational discipline;

Production of a report for the Bank of Portugal on the bank’s internal control system;

Production of a supervision and control report for the CMVM;

Production of compliance reports on the bank’s diverse structural bodies for the executive committee;

Securities Portfolio 

Securities portfolio management in the bank’s balance sheet is the responsibility of CGD’s Financial Markets Division
(DMF) and is subject to CGD Group-authorised risk levels and adjusted to the budget approved by the board of
directors. Several basic objectives have also been defined, namely:

the securing of adequate net interest income for the balance sheet of an investment bank;

the establishing of a securities portfolio permitting a normal degree of rotation and adequate return in terms of
capital gains;

the investment portfolio’s composition shall be limited to maximum and minimum exposure levels;

the safeguarding of a minimum liquidity level required of a financial institution.

The return required from a portfolio comprises a CGD Group approved ROE level obtained on the daily valuation
thereof at market prices, net of financing costs.

In calculating the allocation of shareholders’ equity to operations, the necessary requirements for hedging credit,
market and operating risks are considered in accordance with current Bank of Portugal rules.

Tradable instruments comprise bonds, shares, selected asset managers’ funds and their derivatives - futures, options
swaps and forwards traded with the treasury or Forex positions in CGD’s trading room.
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Credit Portfolio 

CaixaBI’s credit council (CCC) was created as part of the formal loop for the submission of credit applications. It is made
up of executive committee members and officers in charge of the commercial divisions, in any way, involved in
extending credit.

The production of commercial proposals for submission to the credit council is the responsibility of structural organs
(business/product divisions), which should obtain the risk opinion of CGD’s Risk Management Division.

Proposals are then submitted to the group’s credit councils to which, in accordance with CGD Group credit policy,
CaixaBI’s competence in credit approvals has been committed.

IV – Board of Directors 

1. Composition

CaixaBI’s board of directors comprises the following members. Members marked with an asterisk are executive board
members: 

Chairman  Carlos Jorge Ramalho Santos Ferreira (a)

Deputy Chairman António Manuel Maldonado Gonelha (a)

Board member* Jorge Humberto Correia Tomé
Board member* António Carlos Bastos Martins (b)

Board member* Gonçalo Vaz Gago da Câmara de Medeiros Botelho (b)

Board member* Luis Lopes Laranjo (a)

(a) Coopted at the board of directors’ meeting of 30 November 2005
(b) Coopted at the board of directors’ meeting of 07 July 2005

2. Offices held by members of the board of directors
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Corporate Office Held
CARLOS JORGE RAMALHO DOS SANTOS FERREIRA

Statutory Board Position
Term of
OfficeCompany Nominated by

Date of
Nomination

Board of Directors

Vogal

Board of Directors

Chairman

Chairman

Chairman

Chairman

Chairman

EDP - Energias de Portugal

Banco Nacional Ultramarino, S.A.

Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A.

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Caixa Seguros SGPS, S.A.

Gerbanca, SGPS, S.A.

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

2006/2008

2005/2007

2005/2007

2004/2007

2005/2007

2006/2008

30-06-2006

30-09-2006

30-11-2005

04-08-2005

13-02-2006

28-03-2006

Corporate Office Held
ANTÓNIO MANUEL MALDONADO GONELHA

Statutory Board Position
Term of
OfficeCompany Nominated by

Date of
Nomination

Board of Directors

Chairman

Chairman

Chairman

Chairman

Deputy Chairman

Deputy Chairman

Deputy Chairman

Director

Wages Committee

Chairman

Chairman

Banco Caixa Geral

Bandeirantes, SGPS, S.A.

Caixa - Participações, SGPS, S.A.

Caixa - Internacional, SGPS, S.A.

Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A.

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Caixa Seguros SGPS, S.A.

Gerbanca, SGPS, S.A.

SIBS-Soc. Interbancária de Serviços, S.A.

UNICRE-Inst. Financeira de Crédito, S.A.

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Caixa-Participações, SGPS, S.A.

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

2005/2008

2006/2008

2006/2008

2006/2008

2005/2007

2004/2007

2005/2007

2006/2008

2004/2006

2004/2006

10-10-2006

23-10-2006

11-05-2006

20-10-2006

30-11-2005

01-10-2004

15-07-2005

28-03-2006

19-04-2004

19-04-2004



3. Remuneration of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of article 23 of CaixaBI’s articles of association, the remuneration payable to members
of statutory bodies shall be defined by the shareholders’ meeting or a remuneration committee appointed by it for
three year periods.

Corporate Office Held
JORGE HUMBERTO CORREIA TOMÉ

Statutory Board Position
Term of
OfficeCompany Nominated by

Date of
Nomination

 Board of Directors

Chairman

Chairman

Director (Chairman Exe. Com.)

Director

Director

TREM - Aluguer de Mat. Circulante, ACE

TREM II - Aluguer de Mat. Circulante, ACE

Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A.

Caixagest - Téc. de Gestão de Fundos, S.A.

Portugal Telecom, SGPS, S.A.

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

2000/2006

2001/2006

2005/2007

2005/2007

2006/2008

20-03-2002

07-03-2002

07-07-2005

31-03-2005

21-04-2006

Corporate Office Held
ANTÓNIO CARLOS BASTOS MARTINS

Statutory Board Position
Term of
OfficeCompany Nominated by

Date of
Nomination

  Board of Directors

Director of Executive Committee Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. 2005/200707-07-2005

Corporate Office Held
GONÇALO VAZ GAGO DA CÂMARA DE MEDEIROS BOTELHO

Statutory Board Position
Term of
OfficeCompany Nominated by

Date of
Nomination

  Board of Directors

  Director of Executive Committee    

  Internal Audit

Member

Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A.

Portugal Telecom, SGPS, S.A.

2005/2007

2006/2008

07-07-2005

21-04-2006

  Board of Directors

  Director of Executive Committee Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. 2005/200730-11-2005

Corporate Office Held
LUÍS LOPES LARANJO

 Board of Directors

Statutory Board Position
Term of
OfficeCompany Nominated by

Date of
Nomination
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Report on CaixaBI’s Social Responsibility and Sustainability

Social responsibility is understood and practised in Caixa – Banco de Investimento (CaixaBI ) as being transversal to the
whole of its activity. The characteristics of a socially responsible entity, as adopted by CaixaBI, are as follows:

An involvement based on ethical business values;

A desire to achieve continuous progress;

Comprehension and acceptance of the company’s interdependence with its environmental surrounds;

Long term vision based on liability to future generations;

Principle of prudence as a decision-making rule;

Regular dialogue and consultation with all parties involved, including the most sensitive issues;

A desire to inform linked with transparency;

Capacity to accept liability for its decisions, accounting for the direct and indirect consequences of its activity.

The sustainable development principle governs the bank’s financial performance and is reflected in its concern to
implement business guidelines to safeguard correlated social and environmental effects. Issues such as the protection
of a clean environment, good natural resources and human resources management, linked with quality of life, form
part of the notion of sustainability put into effect by CaixaBI on an interdisciplinary basis.

The Three Ps or Triple Bottom Line 

Agenda 21, the sustainability plan for the 21st century adopted at the Rio de Janeiro summit of 1992, established three
sustainable development areas - economic, environmental and social - also referred to as the triple bottom line or three
Ps - People, Planet, Profit.

With society’s growing awareness of this issue, CaixaBI was one of the first institutions to stress the importance of the
three referred to areas for the community in which it operates: the economic axis represents wealth creation for all
through durable production and consumption; the ecological axis refers to resource conservation and management
and the social axis reflects equity and the participation of all social groups.

CaixaBI considers responsibility for each of the above dimensions to be indissoluble from good business practice:

Economic

The economic dimension of sustainability is measured by organisations’ impacts on the economic conditions of its
interested parties in the economic system at all levels, complying with a long term view which should embrace the
disciplines of the environment, social aspects and human resources.

The interdisciplinary nature of economic performance embraces all aspects of economic interactions that may exist
between an organisation and its interested parties, including the income traditionally recognised in financial balance
sheets. Such financial balance sheets give preference to indicators related with the company’s profitability because they
are geared to providing information to managers and shareholders.

Sustainable development indicators, however, cater for other priorities and should permit the implications of corporate
activity in terms of the well-being of its stakeholders – shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees, government,
banks and other social partners – to be perceived .

CaixaBI accordingly prepares its activity plans and endeavours to execute them under a sustainable development
strategy, reconciling profit ratios required by shareholders, with the need to revitalise the business environment
comprising its customers, therefore impacting the positive effects of its economic and financial health on the
community. The bank is therefore in search of new contexts of economic efficiency, conscious of the fact that its
corporate mission also involves sustained value creation for its stakeholders, pursuant to its offer of products and
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financial services of recognised quality, supported by its membership of Caixa Geral de Depósitos Group which is the
largest Portuguese financial group and enjoys the best long term, domestic, financial system rating AA- from Fitch, Aa3
from Moody´s and A+ from Standard & Poor’s.

Subject to such behavioural parameters, CaixaBI has succeeded in recognising and exceeding its customers’
expectations, improving performance levels and quality, acting as a benchmark market operator owing to the
difference of its proposals which are based on ethical standards and responsibility, consolidating customers’ faith in
CaixaBI.

Environmental

Although the financial sector is not an area of activity which entails the greatest environmental risks, its possible
intervention role must not, however, be underestimated, in terms of internal operations - power consumption, water,
paper, consumables, fuel, recycling, materials re-use, waste reduction, supplier selection, are, inter alia, part of the
principal direct environmental impacts to be provided for.

In addition to such direct intervention, the financial sector’s role, however, is fundamental as from the time when
promoters of projects having an environmental impact apply for advisory services and/or finance.

CaixaBI’s activity, in this context, as an entity supplying credit to companies and investors in the financial market has a
indirect environmental impact.

The introduction of environmental criteria and assessment of environmental risks in terms of project analyses and
companies eligible for support, represent a fundamental contribution to environmental protection.

In procedures involving the prospecting for and structuring of operations (either corporate or project finance) the bank
is concerned to assess the environmental impact of the activity of its corporate customers and includes an analysis of
environmental effects in its corporate assessment and financing charges.

CaixaBI has made important investments in projects in the environmental area, namely wind farms, hydroelectric power
plants and other renewable energy sources, waste processing and basic sanitation, which projects have an enormous
environmental impact, involving complexity at all levels, including approvals and environmental monitoring. CaixaBI, in
conjunction with renewable energy promoters, is committed to the successful achievement of the objectives of
government authorities in achieving 12% of installed electricity generation from renewable energy sources (excluding
large hydroelectric power plants) by the end of the decade.

Social

Social performance is assessed by an analysis of the organisation’s impact on its interested parties - employees,
suppliers, consumers/customers, community, government and society in general - locally, nationally and globally.

A socially responsible company, therefore, encourages personal development through training and regular monitoring
of its employees’ health.

CaixaBI therefore considers the immediate responsibility to provide its employees with a healthy working environment
– providing them with a medical plan which also covers their direct family members (spouses and children) and
monitoring the health of its employees in the workplace, arranging for respective annual check-ups – and their
professional career development, providing a multiplicity of training actions, ranging from attendance at seminars to
postgraduate courses and MBAs. The bank also provides its employees with a complementary retirement plan.

In terms of the social dimension, CaixaBI publishes its Corporate Governance Report, assuming a totally transparent
attitude in its relations with all stakeholders. The bank has published internal regulations designed to ensure the high
ethical standards of its employees, in addition to preventative and inspection procedures, having a Compliance Office
to verify compliance with the standards and regulations in force. In addition to having a Code of Conduct binding upon
all employees to prevent fraud, CaixaBI has also published a Money Laundering Handbook providing for collaboration
with supervisory authorities.

As a CGD Group member, the bank is also directly and indirectly involved in diverse sponsorships, particularly the
organisation of artistic events in the Culturgest auditorium and helping to promote national cultural heritage, providing
continuity to an abundant cultural heritage as a catalysing force in consolidating a community identity.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets as at 31 December 2006 and 2005
(amounts in Euros)

Cash and balances with central banks 5 11,026,457 – 11,026,457 1,441,790 

Liquid assets in other

credit institutions 6 3,636,448 – 3,636,448 430,463,087

Loans and advances to credit institutions 7 16,806,307 – 16,806,307 20,164,327 

Securities portfolio and derivatives:

Financial assets recognised at 

fair value through profit and loss 8 578,448,652 – 578,448,652 450,382,009 

Available for sale financial assets 9 29,024,404 – 29,024,404 21,401,521

Loans and advances to costumers 11 792,968,107 (7,512,393) 785,455,714 639,036,851 

Non-current assets held for sale 12 413,944,823 – 413,944,823 66,540,860

Other tangible assets 13 19,753,401 (8,283,545) 11,469.856 11,767,469 

Intangible assets 14 3,939,775 (3,551,662) 388,113 424,117

Investments in associated companies 15 1,901,321 – 1,901,321 1,181,838 

Current tax assets 16 1,422,999 – 1,422,999 1,269,021

Deferred tax assets 16 4,505,159 – 4,505,159 3,729,860 

Other assets 17 58,142,173 (6,667,956) 51,474,217 134,935,997 

Total assets 1,935,520,026 (26,015,556)  1,909,504,470 1,782,738,747

ASSETS
Gross

Assets

Notes Impairment and

Amortisation

Net

Assets

Net

Assets

2006 2005
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Other credit institutions’ resources  18 1,080,225,060 1,218,922,896 

Customer resources and other loans 19 105,638,706 109,220,048 

Financial liabilities recognised at fair value through profit and loss 10 101,028,814 17,382,371 

Negative revaluation of hedge derivatives 10 1,619,826 2,539,975 

Non-current liabilities held for sale 12 291,600,680 5,540,860  

Provisions 20 3,472,915 3,537,717 

Current tax liabilities 16 5,302,108 2,603,310 

Deferred tax liabilities 16 2,360,850 2,555,442  

Other liabilities 21 47,958,983 173,294,184  

Total liabilities 1,639,207,942 1,535,596,803

Capital 22  81,250,000 81,250,000  

Own shares 22  (5,999,453) (5,999,453) 

Fair value reserves 23 5,780,288 548,013 

Other reserves and retained earnings 23 99,691,220 91,199,590  

Income for year attributable to the bank’s shareholders’ 23 30,045,764 25,004,347 

Minority shareholders’ interests 24 59,528,709 55,139,447  

Total shareholders’ equity 270,296,528 247,141,944 

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,909,504,470 1,782,738,747 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Notes 2006 2005
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Consolidated Income Statements for the Years Ended
31 December 2006 and 2005

(amounts in Euros)

Interest and similar income 25 89,291,226 35,678,244 

Interest and similar costs 25 (73,437,815) (24,927,727)

Income from capital instruments 56,484 131,484 

Net Interest Income 15,909,894 10,882,001 

Income from services and commissions 26 44,744,010 36,717,777 

Costs of services and commissions 26 (1,552,619) (1,348,496)

Income from financial operations 27 4,105,063 7,848,524

Other operating income 28 446,034 898,704

Net Operating Income 63,652,382 54,998,510

Employee costs 29 (14,280,881) (12,833,070) 

Other administrative expenses 30 (7,722,348) (7,572,828)

Depreciation and amortisation  13 e 14 (1,050,267) (1,062,518)

Provisions net of cancellations 20 64,802 33,957 

Credit impairment net of reverseals and recoveries 31 135,909 (1,063,969)

Impairment of other financial assets net of 

reversals and recoveries 31 (718,843) (224,537)

Income from associated companies 15 (800,068) (638,232) 

Income before Tax and Minority Shareholders’ Interests 39,280,686 31,637,313 

Income tax

Current 16 (10,196,479) (6,903,932) 

Deferred 16 851,015 (839,587) 

(9,345,464) (7,743,519) 

Consolidated income prior to minority shareholders’ interests 29,935,222 23,893,794

of which income after tax on discontinued operations 28 (187,764) –  

Minority shareholders’ interests 24 110,542 1,110,553

Net Income Attributable to

Bank’s Shareholders 30,045,764 25,004,347

Shares in circulation 22 76,592,000 76,592,000 

Earnings per share 0.39 0.33 

2006Notes 2005
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statements for the Years Ended
31 December 2006 and 2005

(amounts in Euros)

Cash Flows Generated by Operating Activities

Interest and commissions received 132,576,981 72,754,098

Interest and commissions paid (78,834,365) (23,041,464)

Payment to employees and suppliers (22,347,884) (20,558,011) 

Payment of income tax (7,651,658) (6,872,773) 

Other income 2,188,275 1,375,747

Operating income prior to changes in operating assets 25,931,349 23,657,597 

(Increases) decreases in operating assets

Financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss (110,838,405) 7,401,170 

Available for sale financial assets (15,571,916) 47,865,876

Loans and advances to credit institutions 3,352,485 (6,761,481)

Loans and advances to customers (145,119,772) (234,582,957)

Other assets 79,977,724 (25,374,889)

(188,199,884) (211,452,281)

(Increases) decreases in operating liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading 82,726,294 7,076,746 

Other credit institutions' resources (134,828,913) 512,030,682

Customer resources and other loans (2,769,942) 27,610,178

Other liabilities (182,159,568) 76,773,232

(237,032,129) 623,490,837

Net cash from operating activities (399,300,664) 435,696,153 

Cash Flows Generated by Investment Activities

Acquisitions of tangible and intangible assets (731,751) (867,393)

Income from other investments (696,841) 505,716

Net cash from investment activities (1,428,592) (361,677) 

Cash Flows Generated by Financing Activities

Payment of dividends (16,512,716) (16,173,725)

Net cash from financing activities (16,512,716) (16,173,725) 

Increase (decrease) net of cash and equivalents (417,241,972) 419,160,752 

Cash and equivalents at beginning of period 431,904,877 12,744,125 

Cash and equivalents at end of period 14,662,905 431,904,877

2006 2005
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Statement of Changes to Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity
for the Years Ended 31 December 2006 and 2005

(amounts in Euros)

Balances at 31 December 2004 - PCSB 81,250,000 – –

Impact of Adopting of IFRS 34 – (5,999,453) –

Balances at 31 December 2004 - pro forma 81,250,000 (5,999,453)  _ 

Distribution of profit for 2004:

Distribution of dividends by bank 23 – – – 

Transfer to reserves and retained earnings – –  – 

Impact of adopting of IAS 39 as at 01 January 2005 34 – _ (1,059,163)

Valuation of available for sale financial assets

Accruals 9 – – 2,088,545

Recoveries 9 – – (398,333) 

Fiscal effect 16 – – (83,036) 

Formation of Inbepor 24 – – –

Other – – _

Profit for year – – – 

Balances at 31 December 2005 81,250,000 (5,999,453) 548,013 

Distribution of profit for 2005:

Distribution of dividends by bank 23 – – – 

Transfer to reserves and retained earnings – – – 

Valuation of available for sale financial assets

Accruals 9 – – 6,396,724

Recoveries 9 – – (1,205,775) 

Fiscal effect 16 – – 41,326

Formation of FIQ Energias Renováveis 24

Other – – _

Profit for year – – – 

Balances at 31 December 2006 81,250,000 (5,999,453) 5,780,288 

CapitalNotes Own Shares Fair Value

Reserves
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(amounts in Euros)

46,153,349 52,331,965 98,485,314 21,551,685 _ 201,286,999

– 848,770 848,770 689,482 _ (4,461,201)

46,153,349 53,180,735 99,334,084 22,241,167 _ 196,825,798

– 983,618 983,618 (17,157,342) – (16,173,724)

3,772,690 1,311,135 5,083,825 (5,083,825) _ _

– (14,201,936) (14,201,936) – _ (15,261,099)

– – – – – 2,088,545

– – – – – (398,333)

– – – – – (83,036) 

– – – – 56,250,000 56,250,000

(1) – (1) – – (1)

– – – 25,004,347 (1,110,553) 23,893,794

49,926,038 41,273,552 91,199,590 25,004,347 55,139,447 247,141,944

– 1,004,233 1,004,233 (17,516,949) _ (16,512,716)

6,803,804 683,594 7,487,398 (7,487,398) _ _

– – – _ _ 6,396,724

– – – _ _ (1,205,775)

– – – _ _ 41,326

– – – _ 4,500,000 4,500,000

– (1) (1) _ (196) (197)

– – – 30,045,764 (110,542) 29,935,222

56,729,842 42,961,378 99,691,220 30,045,764 59,528,709 270,296,528

Minority Shareholders’

Interests

Total

Other Reserves and Retained Earnings

Reserves Retained 

Earnings

Total Profit for 

Year
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1. Introductory Note

Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. (“bank”) was formed by a public deed of 12 November 1987, having absorbed all assets
and liabilities of the Portuguese branch of Manufacturers Hanover Trust Company, in conformity with the terms of Ministerial
Order no. 865-A/87 of 06 November, jointly issued by the Presidency of the Council of Ministers and Ministry of Finance. 

The bank is Caixa Geral de Depósitos (CGD) Group’s investment banking business arm, which includes activities such
as corporate finance, project finance, brokerage, fixed-income, research and venture capital. Its operations are
performed by a branch office in Lisbon and another in Porto, an offshore branch in Madeira and a branch in Spain.  

The bank also has direct and indirect investments in the share capital of several companies in which it has controlling
interests.  These companies comprise Caixa – Banco de Investimento (Group).

As referred to in Note 22, the majority of the bank’s share capital is owned by Caixa Geral de Depósitos Group company
Gerbanca, SGPS, S.A.

The consolidated financial statements, at 31 December 2006, were approved by the board of directors on 26 February
2007.

The bank’s and its subsidiaries’ and associated companies’ financial statements at 31 December 2006 still require the
approval of the respective shareholders’ meetings. The board of directors considers, however, that the said financial
statements will be approved without significant alterations.

2. Accounting Policies

2.1. Presentation Bases

The consolidated financial statements, at 31 December 2006, were prepared on the basis of the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union, in line with European Parliament and Council Regulation
(CE) 1606/2002 of 19 July and the dispositions of Decree Law 35/2005 of 17 February. 

The group submitted its consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 in accordance with
the IFRS as adopted by the European Union. The consolidated financial statements, up to 31 December 2004, were
prepared in accordance with the principles of the Banking System Accounting Plan (PCSB) and other Bank of Portugal
dispositions, in addition to Decree Law 36/92, of 26 March. The principal differences between the two standards and
the transition impacts to IFRS are explained in Note 34.

2.2. Consolidation Principles

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the bank and the entities directly and indirectly
controlled by the group (Note 4).

In terms of associated companies, “subsidiaries ” are those over whose current management the bank has effective
control with the aim of obtaining economic benefit from their operations. Control usually comprises more than 50%
of share capital or voting rights. In addition, as a result of the application of IAS Standard 27 – “Consolidated and
separate financial statements”, the group’s consolidation perimeter includes special purpose entities, notably, venture
capital funds managed by the group and in respect of whose respective activity the group enjoys most of the associated
risks and benefits.

Subsidiaries’ accounts were consolidated by the global integration method. Transactions and significant balances
between the consolidated companies have been eliminated. When applicable, consolidation adjustments are also made
with the aim of ensuring consistency in the application of the group’s accounting principles.

Third party investment in subsidiary companies has been recognised in "minority shareholders’ interests" in
shareholders’ equity.

Consolidated income derives from the combined net income of the bank and its subsidiaries, in proportion to their
respective effective equity investments, after consolidation adjustments i.e. the elimination of dividends received and
capital gains and losses generated between companies included in the consolidation perimeter.
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The fiscal years of the companies Caixa Ireland Limited and Caixa Investments Ireland terminate on 30 November. The
provisional, interim financial statements, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, were used for the year 2006 and 2005
consolidation process, respectively.

2.3. Combinations of Business Activities and Goodwill

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are recognised in conformity with the purchase method. The cost price comprises the
aggregate fair value of the assets delivered or liabilities incurred, or assumed, for obtaining control over the acquired
entity plus the directly incurred costs attributable to the operation. On the acquisition date, identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities meeting the recognition requirements referred to in IFRS Standard 3 - “Combinations of
business activities” are recognised at their respective fair value. 

Goodwill comprises the positive difference between a subsidiary’s cost and the effective percentage acquired by the
group in terms of the fair value of its respective assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Goodwill is recognised as an
asset and is not amortised. Impairment tests are, however, performed at least once a year.

Until 01 January 2004, as permitted by the accounting policies defined by the Bank of Portugal, goodwill was fully
deducted from shareholders’ equity in the year of the acquisition of the subsidiaries. As permitted by IFRS Standard 1,
the group did not make any alterations to this entry for which the goodwill generated on operations occurring up to
01 January 2004 continues to be recognised in reserves.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries for sale within a period of no more than a year are classified under IFRS Standard 5 – “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” (Note 12).

2.4. Investments in Associated Companies

“Associated” companies are those over which the bank exercises significant influence but over whose management it
does not enjoy effective control. Significant influence is considered to exist whenever the group has a direct or indirect
investment of 20% - 50% of a company’s share capital or voting rights.

Investments in associated companies are valued by the equity accounting method. According to this method,
investments are initially valued at their respective cost whose value is subsequently adjusted on the basis of the group’s
effective percentage of changes in associated companies’ shareholders’ equity (including income).

If there are any materially relevant divergences, the shareholders’ equity used for the equity equivalence calculation of
associated companies is adjusted to reflect the use of the group’s accounting principles.

Goodwill, comprising the positive difference between an associated company’s cost and the effective percentage
acquired by the group in terms of the fair value of its respective assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities continues to
be recognised in the value of the investment upon whose total book value annual impairment tests are performed.

Unrealised income on trading with associated companies is eliminated in proportion to the group’s effective investment
in the said entities.

2.5. Translation of Balances and Transactions in Foreign Currency

The separate accounts of each group entity included in the consolidation are prepared in accordance with the currency
used in the economic context in which they operate (referred to as “operating currency”). All group companies, at 
31 December 2006 and 2005, used the euro as their operating currency. 

Foreign currency transactions are recognised on the basis of the reference rates in force at the transaction date. On
each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into euros on
the basis of the foreign exchange rate in force. Non-monetary assets, which are recognised at fair value, are translated
on the basis of the exchange rate in force on the last valuation date. Non-monetary assets, recognised at their historical
cost, continue to be recognised at the original exchange rate.

Exchange rate differences determined upon exchange translation are recognised in income for the year, with the
exception of income deriving from non-monetary financial instruments, such as shares which are classified as available
for sale and recognised in a specific shareholders’ equity account heading until disposal.
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2.6. Financial Instruments 

a) Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognised at their respective fair value at the agreement date, plus the costs directly attributable to
the transaction. Financial assets are initially recognised in one of the following categories defined in IAS Standard 39:

i) Financial Assets recognised at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
This category includes:

Financial assets held for trading, which essentially include the acquisition of securities with the objective of
realising gains on the basis of short term market price fluctuations. This category also includes financial
derivatives, excluding those complying with hedge accounting requirements; and,

Financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss. 

The European Union endorsed the revision of IAS Standard 39 (including the revision of the “Fair Value Option”),
mandatory, starting 01 January 2006, in November 2005.  

The group, up to the said date, could recognise any financial asset, in the said category, provided that it was irrevocably
classified from its time of initial recognition. Starting 01 January 2006, the use of the “fair value option” is limited to
situations whose application results in the production of more relevant financial information, such as: 

If its application eliminates or significantly reduces an inconsistency in recognition or measurement (i.e.
“accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise occur as a result of the measurement of assets and liabilities or
recognises the respective gains and losses, in an inconsistent manner;

Groups of financial assets, financial liabilities or both which are managed and when the performance thereof is
assessed on a fair value basis, in accordance with formally documented risk and investment management
strategies; and when information on the group is distributed internally to management bodies.

It is also possible  to classify financial instruments containing one or more embedded derivatives in this category, unless:

The embedded derivatives do not significantly modify the cash flows which would, otherwise, be required under
the contract;

It is, with little or no analysis, clear that the separation of the implicit derivatives should not be realised.

As a result of the revision under the scope of the “fair value option”, the bank reclassified its commercial paper whose
book value, at 31 December 2005, totalled 26,919,006 from “other assets recognised at fair value through profit or
loss” to “loans and advances to customers”.

The group also recognised the capital instruments in respect of venture capital activity in this category, in 2006,
whenever the instruments have associated derivatives, i.e. the right or contractual obligation to dispose of the subsidiary
companies pursuant to the scope of the shareholders’ agreements entered into when the investments were made.

The financial assets classified in this category are recognised at fair value and gains and losses generated by the
subsequent valuation recognised in income for the year in the “income from financial operations” account heading.
The interest is recognised in the appropriate “interest and similar income” account headings.

ii) Loans and Accounts Receivable
These are financial assets whose payments are fixed or determinable, not quoted on an active market and not included
in any of the other previously referred to financial asset categories. This category includes loans and advances to the
group’s customers, amounts receivable from other financial institutions and amounts receivable for the provision of
services or sale of assets.

These assets are initially recognised at fair value, less any commissions included in the effective rate, plus all incremental
costs directly attributable to the transaction. The assets are subsequently recognised in the balance sheet at their
amortised cost less impairment losses.
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Interest is recognised on the basis of the effective rate method which enables the amortised cost to be calculated and
the interest split over the period of the operations. The effective rate is the rate that, being used to discount the
estimated future cash flows associated with the financial instrument, enables the current value to be matched with the
value of the financial instrument on the date of the initial recognition.

iii) Available for sale financial assets 
This category includes variable-income securities not classified as assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss,
including stable financial investments and investments in the group’s venture capital area without associated options,
in addition to other financial instruments initially recognised herein and which are not classifiable in the other
categories of the above referred to IAS Standard 39.

Available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with the exception of shareholders’ equity instruments not
quoted on an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and which continue to be recognised at
cost. Revaluation gains or losses are directly recognised in the “fair value reserve” in shareholders’ equity. At the time of
sale or if impairment is determined, the accumulated fair value changes are transferred to income or costs for the year. 

Interest on debt instruments classified in this category is determined on the basis of the effective tax method and
recognised in the income statement.

Dividends on shareholders’ equity instruments classified in this category are recognised as income in the income
statement when the group’s right to receive them has been established.

Fair Value
As referred to above, financial assets classifiable in financial assets categories recognised at fair value through profit or
loss and available for sale financial assets are recognised at fair value.

The fair value of a financial instrument comprises the amount at which an asset or financial liability can be sold or
liquidated between independent, informed parties, interested in realising the transaction under normal market
conditions.

The fair value of financial assets is determined by a CGD Group body which is independent from the trading function,
based on the following criteria:

Closing price at balance sheet date, for instruments traded on active markets;

The following valuation methods and techniques are, inter alia, used for debt instruments not traded on active
markets (including unlisted securities or securities with low liquidity levels):

i) Bid prices published by such financial information services as Bloomberg and Reuters, including
market prices available on recent transactions;

ii) Reference bid prices obtained from financial institutions operating as market-makers;

iii) Internal valuation models based on market data which would be used to define a price for the
financial instrument, reflecting market interest rates and volatility and the liquidity and credit risk
associated with the instrument.

Unlisted shareholders’ equity instruments held under the scope of venture capital activities are valued on the
basis of the following criteria:

i) Prices charged by independent entities for materially relevant transactions during the last six
months;

ii) Multiples of comparable companies in terms of sector of activity, dimension and profitability;

iii) Discounted cash flows;

iv) Settlement price comprising the subsidiary company’s net worth;

v) Cost (only for investments made in the twelve months preceding the valuation).
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In the case of a right or contractual obligation to dispose of the subsidiaries pursuant to shareholders’ agreements
entered into when the investments are made, the respective accounting valuation may not exceed the current amount
of the disposal price.

A discount factor reflecting the securities’ lack of liquidity and/or counterpart credit risk in the agreements entered into
is applied, if justified, to the amounts obtained by  the above referred to valuation methodologies.

Other unlisted shareholders’ equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured (e.g. owing to the
lack of a recent track record) continue to be recognised at cost, less any impairment losses.

b) Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised at the agreement date at the respective fair value, less the costs directly attributable
to the transaction. Liabilities are classified in the following categories:

i) Financial Liabilities Held for Trading
Financial liabilities held for trading comprise the negative revaluation of financial derivatives recognised at their
fair value.

ii) Other Financial Liabilities
This category includes other credit institutions’ and customer resources and liabilities incurred on payments of
services or purchase of assets.

These financial liabilities are valued at their amortised cost. 

c) Derivatives and Hedge Accounting
The bank performs derivative operations as part of its activity to provide for its customers’ requirements and reduce its
exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate and price fluctuations.

Financial derivatives are recognised at their fair value on the date of the agreement. They are also recognised in 
off-balance sheet accounts at their respective notional value

Financial derivatives are subsequently measured by their respective fair value. The fair value is determined:

On the basis of prices obtained on active markets (e.g. futures trading in organised markets);

On the basis of models incorporating valuation techniques accepted in the market, including discounted cash
flows and options valuation models.

Embedded Derivatives
Financial instruments embedded in other financial instruments are separated from the base agreement and processed
as autonomous derivatives under IAS Standard 39, whenever:

The embedded derivative’s economic characteristics and risks are not closely related with the base agreement
defined in IAS Standard 39; and

The full amount of the combined financial instrument is not recognised at fair value, with fair value changes
being recognised in the income statement.

Hedge Derivatives
These derivatives are designed to protect the group’s exposure to a specific risk attached to its activities. Classification as hedge
derivatives and use of the hedge accounting concept, as described below, must comply with the rules of IAS Standard 39.

The group, at 31 December 2006, only employed hedges on the changes in the fair value of financial instruments
recognised in the balance sheet as “fair value hedges”. 

The group prepares formal documentation, for all hedge operations, at the beginning of the operation, to include the
following aspects:

Risk management objectives and strategy associated with the realisation of the hedge operation, in accordance
with the hedge policies defined by the group;
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Description of hedged risk(s);

Identification and description of hedged and hedge financial instruments;

Hedge operation effectiveness appraisal method and frequency of operation.

Hedge effectiveness tests are performed and documented monthly, using a comparison of the change in fair value of
the hedge instrument and hedged item (part attributable to the hedged risk). With the aim of enabling the use of
hedge accounting, under IAS Standard 39, the ratio should fall between a range of 80%-125%. Prospective
effectiveness tests are also performed in order to demonstrate the hedges’ expected future effectiveness.

Hedge derivatives are recognised at fair value, with the results being determined daily and recognised in income and
costs for the year. If the hedge is seen to be effective, the bank will also recognise the change in fair value of the
hedged item, attributable to the hedged risk, in income for the year. The impact of such valuations is recognised in the
“income from financial operations” account headings. In the case of derivatives, such as interest rate swaps, which
have an associated interest component, the periodisation of interest for the period in progress and liquidated flows are
recognised in “interest and similar income” and “interest and similar costs" in the income statement.

Positive and negative revaluations of hedge derivatives are recognised in specific assets and liabilities account headings,
respectively.

Valuations of hedged items are recognised in the account headings in which such assets and liabilities are registered.  

Trading Derivatives
Trading derivatives are all financial derivatives that are not associated with effective hedge operations in accordance
with IAS Standard 39, including: 

Derivatives taken out to hedge assets or liabilities risks recognised at fair value through profit or loss, thus
rendering hedge accounting unnecessary;

Derivatives taken out to hedge risk whose cover is not effective under IAS Standard 39;

Derivatives taken out for trading purposes.

Hedge derivatives are recognised at fair value, with the results being determined daily and recognised in income and
costs for the year. The impact of such valuations is recognised in the “income from financial operations” account
headings. In the case of derivatives, such as interest rate swaps, which have an associated interest component, the
periodisation of interest for the period in progress and liquidated flows is recognised in “interest and similar income”
and “interest and similar costs" in the income statement. The income determined was fully recognised in the “income
from financial operations” account heading, until December 2005.

d) Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
The group periodically analyses the impairment of its financial assets, recognised at amortised cost, notably loans and
advances to customers, loans and advances to credit institutions and other assets.

Signs of impairment are identified individually on financial assets in which the amount of the exposure is significant
and collectively on like-for-like assets, whose debtor balances are not individually relevant.

The following events may suggest impairment:

Failure to comply with contractual clauses, i.e. arrears of interest and principal;

Debtor or debt issuing entities’ significant financial difficulties;

Existence of a high probability of a declaration of bankruptcy by the debtor or debt issuing entity;

Provision of facilities to a debtor in financial difficulties which would not be given under normal circumstances;
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Historical records of collections suggesting that the nominal value will never be fully recovered;

Data indicating a measurable reduction of the estimated value of the future cash flows of a group of financial
assets since the original registration, although such a reduction cannot be identified in the group’s separate
financial assets.

Whenever signs of impairment on individually analysed assets are identified, the eventual impairment loss comprises
the difference between the book value entry at the time of analysis and current value of future cash flows expected to
be received (recoverable value), discounted on the basis of the asset’s effective original interest rate.

Assets upon which specific analyses have not been performed have been included in a collective impairment analysis
and classified for this purpose into like-for-like groups with similar risk characteristics. In addition, individually analysed
assets on which no objective signs of impairment have been observed were also subject to collective impairment
analyses, as referred to in the preceding sub-paragraph. 

Owing to the non-existence of a relevant track record on a bank level, the impairment losses calculated on the collective
analysis were determined on the basis of Caixa Geral de Depósitos group parameters for similar types of credit.

The amount of impairment determined is recognised in costs for the year and separately recognised in the balance
sheet as a deduction from the amount of the respective credit.

The group, whenever applicable, writes off unrecoverable credits from assets through its use of the respective
accumulated impairment with the board of directors’ approval. Eventual recoveries of credit written off from assets are
recognised as a deduction from the impairment losses balance recognised in the income statement.

Available for Sale Financial Assets 
As referred to in Note 2.6. a), available for sale financial assets are recognised at fair value, with fair value changes
being directly recognised in shareholders’ equity in the “fair value reserve”. 

Whenever there is objective evidence of impairment, the accumulated capital losses which have been recognised in the
fair value reserve shall be transferred to costs for the year in the form of impairment losses.

In addition to the above referred to signs of impairment on assets recognised at amortised cost, IAS Standard 39 also
identities the following specific signs of impairment on variable-income assets:

Information on significant changes having an adverse impact on the technological, market, economic or legal
environment in which the issuing entity operates, indicating that the cost of the investment may not be recovered;

A prolonged, significant decline in market value below cost.

On each reference date for financial statements an analysis of the existence of impairment losses on available for sale
financial assets, is carried out.  

Impairment losses on variable-income assets cannot be reversed and therefore, eventual potential capital gains
originated after the recognition of impairment losses, are recognised in the fair value reserve.

The group also periodically carries out impairment analyses on financial assets recognised at cost, notably unlisted
shareholders’ equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. The recoverable value, in this case,
comprises the best estimate of future flows to be received from the asset, discounted at a rate which adequately
reflects the risk associated with holding the asset.

The amount of the determined impairment loss is directly recognised in income for the year. Impairment losses on such
assets cannot be reversed.

2.7. Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Groups of Assets and
Liabilities for Disposal

In accordance with IFRS Standard 5 – “non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”, non-current
assets, or groups of assets and liabilities for disposal are classified as being held for sale whenever their book value is
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expected to be recovered from their sale and not their continued use. For an asset (or group of assets and liabilities) to
be classified in this account heading the following requirements must be met:

There should be a high probability of the sale’s occurrence;

The asset should be immediately available for sale in its current condition;

The sale is expected to take place up to a year from the asset's classification in the account heading.

Assets recognised in this account heading should be valued at cost or fair value whichever the lower, less the costs
incurred on the sale.  

This account heading, at 31 December 2006, included the assets and liabilities of Compal – Companhia Produtora de
Conservas Alimentares, S.A.. The group, as described in greater detail, in Notes 4 and 12, disposed of a part of its
investment in this company, in February 2007 ceasing to be a majority shareholder. Accordingly, Compal’s assets and
liabilities, in addition to the goodwill generated on the acquisition, were recognised in “non-current assets held for
sale” and “non-current liabilities held for sale”.

This account heading, at 31 December 2005, included the assets and liabilities of Nutricafés - Cafés e Restauração, S.A.
(“Nutricafés”). As described in greater detail in Notes 4 and 12, the company was acquired by the group at the end of
2005, for disposal over the short term and which effectively occurred in March 2006.

2.8. Other Tangible Assets

Other tangible assets, except for the those acquired up to 1998, are recognised at cost, less depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The costs of repair, maintenance and other expenses associated with their use are
recognised as a cost for the year, in the “general administrative expenses” account heading

The bank revalued its fixed assets in 1998, under Decree Law 31/98 of 11 February. As permitted under IFRS Standard
1, the book value incorporating the effect of the referred to revaluation was considered as a cost in the transition to
the IFRS, as the proceeds, at the time thereof generally comprised the cost, or amortised cost, in accordance with the
IFRS, adjusted to take alterations to price indices into account.

Depreciation is calculated and recognised as a cost for the year on a systematic basis during the asset’s estimated useful
life, comprising the period in which it is expected to be available for use, i.e.

Land is not depreciated.

Analyses of evidence of tangible assets impairment are periodically carried out in accordance with IAS Standard 36 –
“Assets impairment”. An impairment loss is recognised in the annual income statement whenever the net book value
of tangible assets exceeds their recoverable value. Impairment losses can be reversed and also have an impact on
income for the period if there is an increase in the asset’s recoverable value in the following periods.

The group periodically assesses the adequacy of the estimated useful life of its tangible assets.  

98 Notes to the Bank’s Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2006

Years of useful life

Property 50

Equipment:

Furniture and materials 4 - 10

Transport material 4

IT Equipment 3 - 4

Interior installations 3 - 10

Security equipment 4 - 10

Machinery and tools 5 - 10

.

.

.



2.9. Leasing Operations

Leasing operations are recognised as follows:

Lessee
Leased assets are recognised at fair value in assets and liabilities, with the processing of the respective instalment
payments.

Leasing agreement instalments are split up in accordance with the respective financial plan, pursuant to which liabilities
are reduced by the corresponding payment of principal.  Interest paid is recognised as a financial cost.

Lessor
Leased assets are recognised in the balance sheet as loans, repaid by capital instalments set out in the financial
agreements schedule. Interest included in the instalments is recognised as financial income.

2.10. Intangible Assets

This account heading essentially comprises the costs, development or preparation for use of software used for the
development of the group’s activities. Intangible assets are recognised at cost, less depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. 

Depreciation is recognised as a cost for the year, on a systematic basis, throughout the assets’ estimated useful life for
a period of between 3 - 6 years.

Expenses on software maintenance are recognised as a cost for the year in which they are incurred.

2.11. Tax on Profit

All group companies are taxed separately and those with registered offices in Portugal pay IRC (“Tax on the Income of
Collective Bodies”). The accounts of the bank’s subsidiaries are included in the accounts of its registered office for fiscal
purposes.  In addition to IRC under the referred to terms, income generated by subsidiaries must also pay local tax in
the countries/territories in which they are established. Local tax is deductible from IRC under the terms of article 85 of
the respective tax code and double taxation agreements entered into with Portugal.

The bank’s Madeira Offshore Branch, however, is exempt from IRC up until 31 December 2011 under article 33 of the
Statute of Fiscal Benefits. For the purposes of the application of this exemption, in accordance with the dispositions of
article 33 A of the Statute of Fiscal Benefits, at least 85% of the profit attributable to the entity’s global activity should
derive from operations outside the institutional scope of the Madeira Free Zone.

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A. (Caixa Desenvolvimento) is subject to the fiscal regime on holding companies, in
accordance with the dispositions of Decree Law 495/88 of 30 December (as altered by Decree Law 318/94 of 24
December and Decree Law 378/98 of 30 December). Under this regime, profits paid to Caixa Desenvolvimento by its
subsidiaries are totally exempt from IRC.

Caixa Desenvolvimento also applied the deferred taxation regime, established in the IRC Code, to capital gains and
losses realised in 1999 and 2000 on its exchange or sale of investments or shares. Based on the regime entering into
force on 01 January 2002, the capital gains made on the disposal of investments up to 31 December 2004 in the
referred to years, are being taxed in stages over a ten year period, with the group having recognised the respective
deferred tax liabilities. In 2005, Caixa Desenvolvimento, under the regime of no. 8 of article 32 of the State Budget
Law for 2002, opted to pay tax on 50% of the suspended capital gains, obtained in 1999 and 2000, on securities
which had not been disposed of by 31 December 2004. This option is not conditioned by any requirement for fresh
reinvestment. The respective deferred tax liability on these capital gains was cancelled and only 50% compensated by
the cost recognised as current tax in 2005.

Under the terms of article 31 of the Statute of Fiscal Benefits (EBF), the fiscal capital gains and losses made by Caixa
Capital – Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A. (Caixa Capital) and Caixa Desenvolvimento on their sales of equity
investments, provided that they have been held for a period of not less than one year, in addition to the financial costs
incurred on their acquisition, are not included in taxable income. This regime does not apply to the capital gains made
and financial costs incurred when the equity investments have been acquired (i) from entities with which special
relations exist, under number 4 of article 58 of the IRC Code, (ii) to entities with domicile, registered office or effective
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management in a territory benefiting from a more favourable fiscal regime or (iii) to entities resident on Portuguese
territory and subject to a special tax regime and owned for a period of less than three years.

Also under number 4 of article 31 of the EBF, Caixa Capital may deduct from the amount of IRC payable, until equal
thereto, by way of fiscal benefit, the amount comprising the total of its IRC tax bills for the preceding five years from
the year to which the benefit refers, provided that the amount deducted is used to invest in companies with high
growth and appreciation potential. The amount not deducted under the previously referred to terms may be deducted
at a later date, under the same conditions, in the settlement of tax bills over the following five years. Under article 86
of the IRC Code, the tax settlement may not be less than 60% of the tax assessment if Caixa Capital had not taken
advantage of the above referred to fiscal benefit.

Income earned by venture capital funds are exempt from IRC under article 22 A of the Statute of Fiscal Benefits.

Tax on the profit made by subsidiaries abroad is calculated and recognised on the basis of the regulations in force in
the respective countries.

The total amount of tax on profit recognised in the income statement encompasses current and deferred tax. 

Current tax is calculated on the basis of taxable profit for the year, which is different from accounting income owing
to adjustments to taxable profit resulting from costs or income which are not relevant for fiscal purposes or only for
consideration in other periods.

Deferred tax comprises the impact on the tax to be recovered/paid in future periods and resulting from temporary
deductible or taxable differences between the book value of assets and liabilities and their fiscal basis, used for
determining taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are normally recognised on all taxable temporary differences, whereas deferred tax assets are
only recognised up to the amount by which the existence of future taxable profit, permitting the use of the
corresponding deductible tax differences or fiscal losses, is probable. Deferred taxes are not, however, registered in the
following situations:

Temporary differences resulting from goodwill;

Temporary differences originating from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in transactions which do
not affect accounting income or taxable profit;

Temporary differences resulting from non-distributed profit by subsidiaries and associated companies, to the
extent that the group is able to control their reversal which will probably not occur in the foreseeable future.

The principal situations originating temporary differences in group terms comprise provisions and impairment not
accepted for fiscal purposes, deferred commissions, legal revaluations of tangible assets and revaluations of financial
derivatives, capital gains on the disposal of investments (see above), in addition to fiscal benefits granted to venture
capital activities.

Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates expected to be in force on the date of reversal of the
temporary differences, comprising the approved or substantially approved rates, at the date of the balance sheet.

Tax on income (current or deferred) is recognised in income for the year, except for cases in which the originating
transactions have been recognised in other shareholders’ equity account headings (e.g. revaluations of available for sale
financial assets). In such cases the corresponding tax is also recognised as a charge to shareholders’ equity, and does
not affect income for the year.

2.12. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is set up when there is a current (legal or constructive) obligation resulting from past events involving the
probability of the future expenditure of resources and when this may be reliably determined. The amount of the provision
comprises the best estimate of the amount to be paid to liquidate the liability at the date of the balance sheet. 

When not probable, the future expenditure of resources is considered to be a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities
need only be disclosed, unless the possibility of their payment is remote.
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Provisions are set up for:

Liabilities for the provision of guarantees and other off-balance sheet commitments, being determined on the
basis of a risk analysis on operations and respective customers;

Fiscal, legal and other contingencies.

2.13. Employee Benefits

The bank does not have any retirement pension liabilities to its employees, who are covered by the national social security
regime, owing to the fact that it is not a signatory to the Collective Wage Bargaining Agreement for the Banking Sector.

The bank, however, at its own discretion, set up the “Fundo de Pensões Caixa-Banco de Investimento” (Fund), in 1987,
to provide its employees with additional old age, disability and survivors’ retirement pensions. The aim of the fund is
to guarantee the payment of old age, disability and survivors’ retirement pensions to employees pursuant to the terms
of the agreement. The fund is managed by CGD Pensões – Sociedade Gestora de Fundos de Pensões, S.A.

The bank pays a percentage of 3.5% of each employee’s annual wages into the fund. Pension costs, in 2006 and 2005
were 330,359 and 296,838 respectively (Note 29).

The bank does not have any liabilities other than the above referred to contributions owing to the fact that this is a
defined contribution plan.

The other group companies do not have pensions liabilities.

Short term benefits, including productivity bonuses paid to employees, are recognised in “employee costs” for the
respective period, on an accrual basis.

2.14. Commissions

As referred to in Note 2.6, commissions received on credit operations and other financial instruments, i.e. commissions
charged for originating operations, are included in amortised costs and recognised as income during the period of the
operation using the effective interest rate method.  

Commissions on services performed are usually recognised as income during the period of performance of the service
or as a lump sum if resulting from single acts.

2.15. Securities and Other Items Held Under Custody

Securities and other items held under custody, notably customers' securities, are recognised in off-balance sheet
account headings at their nominal value.

2.16. Cash and Equivalents

For the purposes of the preparation of cash flow statements, the group considers “cash and equivalents” to be the
total amount of the “cash and cash equivalents with central banks” and “cash equivalents in other credit institutions”
account headings.

2.17. Critical Accounting Estimates and most Relevant Judgemental
Aspects in the Application of Accounting Policies

The group’s principal accounting policies are described in Note 2. For the application of the said policies, the bank’s
and group’s board of directors must produce estimates. Estimates with the greatest effect on the consolidated financial
statements include those set out below.

DETERMINATION OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON LENDING
Impairment losses on lending are determined in accordance with the methodology defined in Note 2.6.d).  Accordingly,
the determination of impairment on individually analysed assets derives from the bank’s specific valuation using its
knowledge of its customers’ status and the guarantees associated with the operations in question.
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Impairment on collectively analysed assets was determined on Caixa Geral de Depósitos group parameters for
comparable types of credit.

The bank considers that impairment determined on the basis of this methodology permits the prudent recognition of
the risk associated with its credit portfolio, taking into account the rules defined in IAS Standard 39.

VALUATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT TRADED ON ACTIVE MARKETS
In accordance with IAS Standard 39, the group calculates the fair value of all financial instruments, except for those
recognised at amortised cost. The valuation models and techniques described in Note 2.6. a) are used for the valuation
of financial instruments not traded on liquid markets, including capital instruments used for venture capital activities.
The valuations obtained comprise the best estimate of the fair value of the referred to instruments, at the date of the
balance sheet. The determination of fair value of the capital instruments used for venture capital activities, however,
may, to a certain extent, be subjective.

As referred to in Note 2.6.a), to ensure adequate separation between functions, the valuation of such financial
instruments, excluding capital instruments used for venture capital activities, is determined by a body that is
independent from the trading function.

DETERMINATION OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 
As described in Note 2.6. d), capital losses deriving from the valuation of such assets are recognised as a charge to the
fair value reserve. Whenever there is objective evidence of impairment, the accumulated capital losses which have been
recognised in the fair value reserve shall be transferred to costs for the year.

In the case of capital instruments, including those allocated to venture capital, the determination of the existence of
impairment losses may, to a certain extent, be subjective. The group determines whether or not impairment exists on such
assets through a specific analysis as at each balance sheet date, taking into consideration the definitions provided in IAS
Standard 39 (see Note 2.6. d)). As a general criterion, impairment is always determined when it is considered, that, owing
to the size of the capital loss determined, the full recovery of the amount invested by the group is highly improbable.

DETERMINATION OF TAX ON PROFIT
Tax on profit (current and deferred) is determined for group companies on the basis of the rules defined by the current
fiscal environment. In several cases, however, fiscal legislation may not be sufficiently clear and objective and may give rise
to different interpretations. The amounts recognised in such cases represent the best understanding of the responsible
bank bodies and subsidiaries on the correctness of operations although this may be queried by the fiscal authorities. 

2.18. Adopting of New Standards (IAS/IFRS) or Revision of Already
Issued Standards 

The group used the Standards and Interpretations of the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which are relevant to its operations and effective
for the periods starting 01 January 2006, provided that they have been approved by the European Union.

The only alteration having an impact on the bank’s accounts was the adopting of the revised version of the “Fair Value
Option” in respect of assets classified at fair value through profit or loss, as referred to in note 2.3 b). 

At the date of the board of directors’ approval of these financial statements, based on the group’s activity, the relevant
Standards and Interpretations available for advance application are as follows:

New Standards:

– “IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments – Disclosures”. The standard will be applied, starting 01 January 2007.
– “IFRS 8 – Operating Segments”. This application of this standard is mandatory starting 01 January 2009.

New Interpretations:

– “IFRIC 9 - Revaluation of Embedded Derivatives”. The application of this standard is mandatory for annual periods
starting 30 June 2006..

The referred to standards only have an effect in terms of disclosures and the interpretation is in line with the procedure
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already being followed by the group. The board of directors accordingly anticipates that the adopting of these Standards
and Interpretations in future periods will not have a materially significant effect on the bank’s financial statements.

3. Report by Segments

To comply with the requirements of IAS Standard 14, the bank has adopted business segments representing its areas
of activity by origination type, designed, as a whole, to ensure a dynamic investment banking business platform i.e. 

Corporate Finance 
Including debt and equity financial advisory services in addition to project finance activity.

Trading and Sales 
Including trading and treasury assets and liabilities management. 

Brokerage
Including financial intermediation. 

Commercial Banking 
Including domestic and international transversal business origination.

Venture Capital 
CGD Group’s venture capital operations continued to be performed, in 2005, by Caixa Capital - Sociedade de
Capital de Risco, S.A. (which, in addition to concentrating all operating activity is also the fund manager for two
venture capital funds) and Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A. (principally geared to strategic investments with
the highest appreciation potential).

Other
Other activities not classifiable in any of the former categories.
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Information on income distribution by principal balance sheet account heading and business lines in 2006 and 2005,
is set out below:
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Interest and similar income        15,684,278 57,114,542 316,222 14,962,739 1,051,949 161,495 89,291,225 

Interest and similar costs  (8,641,127) (54,244,864) (212,294) (10,182,495) (3,612) (153,423) (73,437,815) 

Income from 

capital instruments   _ 44,240 _ _ 12,244 _ 56,484 

Net interest income 7,043,151 2,913,918 103,928 4,780,244 1,060,581 8,072 15,909,894

Income from services 

and commissions     22,597,239 1,103,789 9,397,441 9,446,615 2,083,394 115,532 44,744,010 

Costs of services 

and commissions      (70,890) (75,186) (1,379,857) (6,959) (2,061) (17,666) (1,552,619)

Income from financial 

operations     (733,340) 3,776,273 (14,690) 356,877 719,943 _ 4,105,063 

Other operating income 293,444 7,417 141,905 121,508 (118,914) 674 446,034 

22,086,453 4,812,293 8,144,799 9,918,041 2,682,362 98,540 47,742,488

Net operating income 29,129,604 7,726,211 8,248,727 14,698,285 3,742,943 106,612 63,652,382

Provisions net of cancellations    (15,140) 8,456 (7,097) 320,881 _ (242,298) 64,802 

Impairment of credit net 

of reversals and recoveries (1,918,394) (403) 8,626 1,951,444 _ 94,636 135,909 

Impairment of other  

financial assets net of  

reversals and recoveries (225,206) _ _ (14,280) (479,357) _ (718,843) 

(2,158,740) 8,053 1,529 2,258,045 (479,357) (147,662) (518,132)

26,970,864 7,734,264 8,250,256 16,956,330 3,263,586 (41,050) 63,134,250

Others costs and income    (33,088,486)

Consolidated net income     30,045,764

Financial assets recognised 

at fair value through 

profit or loss     _ 550,789,392 68,593 13,476,903 14,113,764 _ 578,448,652 

Available for sale  

financial assets     _ _ 7,297 _ 27,726,407 1,209,700 29,024,404 

Loans and advances 

to customers    380,623,275 _ 7,861,106 388,870,900 _ 8,100,433 785,455,714

Other credit institutions’ 

resources     215,322,250 326,353,006 4,490,035 227,654,947 38,510,078 267,894,744 1,080,225,060

Customer resources 

and other loans     8,691,629 12,176,076 12,352,248 72,418,753 _ _ 105,638,706

Financial liabilities recognised 

at fair value through 

profit or loss     _ 101,028,814 _ _ _ _ 101,028,814

Negative revaluation 

of hedge derivatives   _ 1,619,826 _ _ _ _ 1,619,826 

Total net assets    380,623,275 576,891,379 7,936,996 402,423,676 68,073,930 473,555,214 1,909,504,470

Corporate
Finance 

Trading and
Sales 

Brokerage Commercial

Banking 

Venture

Capital 

Other Total

2006

I

II

III

Total



Interest and similar costs were split up over the various business lines on the basis of the average value of the respective
asset allocations to the said segments.
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Interest and similar income          8,685,837 13,065,892 184,013 10,544,563 3,089,059 108,880 35,678,244 

Interest and similar costs     (6,068,633) (9,128,896) (128,567) (7,367,291) (2,158,268) (76,072) (24,927,727) 

Income from  

capital instruments  _ 41,898 _ _ 89,586 _ 131,484 

Net interest income 2,617,204 3,978,894 55,446 3,177,272 1,020,377 32,808 10,882,001

Income from services 

and commissions      20,639,501 228,344 7,551,571 6,680,928 1,593,899 23,534 36,717,777 

Costs of services  

and commissions     (930) (110,620) (1,184,816) (6,276) (10,257) (35,597) (1,348,496)

Income from financial 

operations     (456,255) 1,663,924 (6,915) 881,993 6,004,668 (238,891) 7,848,524 

Other operating income    194,251 337 41,610 57,640 20,807 584,059 898,704 

20,376,567 1,781,985 6,401,450 7,614,285 7,609,117 333,105 44,116,509

Net operating income 22,993,771 5,760,879 6,456,896 10,791,557 8,629,494 365,913 54,998,510

Provisions net of cancellations      _ _ _ _ _ 33,957 33,957 

Impairment of credit net 

of reversals and recoveries (960,715) (34) (2,043) 19,336 178,528 (299,041) (1,063,969) 

Impairment of other  

financial assets net of   

reversals and recoveries (21,123) _ _ (92,001) (111,413) _ (224,527) 

(981,838) (34) (2,043) (72,665) 67,115 (265,084) (1,254,549)

22,011,933 5,760,485 6,454,853 10,718,892 8,696,609 100,829 53,743,961

Others costs and income     (28,739,614)

Consolidated net income     25,004,347

Financial assets recognised 

at fair value through 

profit or loss     28,865,244 379,549,108 _ 41,967,657 _ _ 450,382,009 

Available for sale  

financial assets     _ 4,601,473 _ _ 16,800,048 _ 21,401,521 

Loans and advances 

to customers     295,291,277 _ 8,876,729 327,093,171 _ 7,775,674 639,036,851

Other credit institutions’ 

resources     221,637,526 274,977,598 67,424,648 589,108,206 42,048,385 23,726,533 1,218,922,896

Customer resources 

and other loans     20,527,258 8,152 6,694,254 81,990,384 _ _ 109,220,048

Financial liabilities recognised 

at fair value through 

profit or loss     _ 17,382,371 _ _ _ _ 17,382,371

Negative revaluation 

of hedge derivatives   _ 2,539,975 _ _ _ _ 2,539,975 

Total net assets     324,156,521 402,169,177 98,612,088 861,601,688 61,497,971 34,701,302 1,782,738,747

Corporate
Finance 

Trading and
Sales 

Brokerage Commercial

Banking 

Venture

Capital 

Other Total

2005

I

II

III

Total



Income distribution by principal balance sheet headings and geographical markets in 2006 and 2005, is set out below:
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Interest and similar income      86,439,482 2.851,743 89,291,225

Interest and similar costs     (72.411.508) (1.026,307) (73,437,815)

Income from capital instruments 56,484 _ 56,484

Net interest income 14,084,458 1,825,436 15,909,894

Income from services and commissions    44,046,992 697,018 44,744,010 

Costs of services and commissions     (1,544,809) (7,810) (1,552,619)

Income from financial operations     4,165,129 (60,066) 4,105,063

Other operating income    445,362 672 446,034

47,112,674 629,814 47,742,488

Net operating income 61,197,132 2,455,250 63,652,382

Provisions net of cancellations     64,802 _ 64,802 

Impairment of credit net of reversals and recoveries 653,162 (517,253) 135,909

Impairment of other financial assets 

net of reversals and recoveries  (718,843) _ (718,843)

(879) (517,253) (518,132)

61,196,253 1,937,997 63,134,250

Others costs and income     (33,088,486)

Consolidated net income     30,045,764

Financial assets recognised at  fair value through profit or loss     539,627,915 38,820,737 578,448,652

Available for sale financial assets 29,024,404 _ 29,024,404 

Loans and advances to customers     724,734,925 60,720,789 785,455,714

Other credit institutions’ resources 1,019,539,587 60,685,473 1,080,225,060

Customer resources and other loans 105,638,706 _ 105,638,706

Financial liabilities recognised at fair value through profit or loss     101,028,814 _ 101,028,814

Negative revaluation of hedge derivatives  1,619,826 _ 1,619,826

Total net assets     1,809,901,014 99,603,456 1,909,504,470

Portugal Rest of

European

Union 

Total

2006

I

II

III

Total



4. Group Companies and Transactions During the Period 

The following is a summary of the financial data extracted from the provisory separate accounts of the entities included
in the consolidation perimeter in the last financial year:

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t
| 2

00
6 

  

107Notes to the Bank’s Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2006

Interest and similar income       34,093,031 1,585,213 35,678,244

Interest and similar costs     (24,562,396) (365,331) (24,927,727)

Income from capital instruments 131,484 _ 131,484

Net interest income 9,662,119 1,219,882 10,882,001

Income from services and commissions     36,584,664 133,113 36,717,777 

Costs of services and commissions     (1,341,280) (7,216) (1,348,496)

Income from financial operations     8,216,096 (367,572) 7,848,524

Other operating income     898,269 435 898,704

44,357,749 (241,240) 44,116,509

Net operating income 54,019,868 978,642 54,998,510

Provisions net of cancellations     33,957 _ 33,957 

Impairment of credit net of reversals and recoveries (1,111,685) 47,716 (1,063,969)

Impairment of other financial assets 

net of reversals and recoveries  (224,537) _ (224,537)

(1,302,265) 47,716 (1,254,549)

52,717,603 1,026,358 53,743,961

Others costs and income     (28,739,614)

Consolidated net income     25,004,347

Financial assets recognised at  fair value through profit or loss     414,861,015 35,520,994 450,382,009

Available for sale financial assets 21,401,521 _ 21,401,521 

Loans and advances to customers     621,266,285 17,770,566 639,036,851

Other credit institutions’ resources 1,201,199,451 17,723,445 1,218,922,896

Customer resources and other loans 109,220,048 _ 109,220,048

Financial liabilities recognised at fair value through profit or loss     17,382,371 _ 17,382,371

Negative revaluation of hedge derivatives  2,539,975 _ 2,539,975

Total net assets     1,729,337,227 53,401,520 1,782,738,747

Portugal Rest of

European

Union 

Total

2005

I

II

III

Total

Caixa-Banco de Investimento, S.A. Lisbon 100.00% 31-12-06 1,579,744,032 30,771,365 186,543,176

Caixa Ireland Limited Dublin 100.00% 30-11-06 39,140,294 991 39,140,152

Caixa Investments Ireland Dublin 100.00% 30-11-06 40,051,580 802,238 39,937,625

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A. Lisbon 100.00% 31-12-06 98,730,468 (1,588,156) 41,523,433

Caixa-Capital - Soc. Capital Risco, S.A. Lisbon 100.00% 31-12-06 28,884,499 4,024,511 27,900,783

Fundo de Capital de Risco para

Investidores Qualificados Energias

Renováveis - Caixa Capital Lisbon 91.00% 31-12-06 51,485,652 1,391,850 51,391,850

Compal - Companhia Produtora de 

Conservas Alimentares, S.A. Lisbon 55.00% 31-12-06 415,309,823 1,177,236 123,709,143

Entity Registered  Percentage  Date Assets Profit/Loss Shareholders’ 
Office  Equity Equity

Investment



The Fundo de Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados Energias Renováveis – Caixa Capital (FIQ Energias
Renováveis) was formed in January 2006, with a subscribed capital of 50,000,000, comprising 2,000 investment
units. The fund’s objective is to invest its assets in the acquisition of equity investments with high growth and
appreciation potential, performing their activities in the generation of electricity from renewable sources.The bank
subscribed for 1,820 investment units for a nominal worth of 45,500,000 of which an amount of 36,700,000 was
unpaid as at 31 December 2006.

Caixa Ireland Limited, acquired by the bank in 1996, is a company with registered office in the Republic of Ireland. Its
assets essentially comprise the equity investment in Caixa Investments Ireland. Caixa Investments Ireland has its
registered office in the Republic of Ireland with the corporate object of investing in securities. The shareholders’ equity
of these companies reflects the appropriation of net income and respective dividends paid to the bank in 2006, for the
amount of 822,000 (260,000 in 2005) (Note 23).

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A., (Caixa Desenvolvimento), formed in 1998, has its registered office in Portugal. Its
corporate object is to manage equity investments in other companies, as an indirect form of performing economic
activities.  

The shareholders’ equity of Caixa Ireland Limited and Caixa Desenvolvimento includes additional capital payments
made by the bank of 39,083,397 and 27,284,245 respectively.

Caixa Capital - Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A. (Caixa Capital) has its registered office in Lisbon and was formed
on 31 December 1990 under Decree Law 17/86 of 05 February. The company’s corporate object is to support and
promote investment and technological innovation by making temporary equity investments in projects or companies.
It is also authorised to provide assistance to the financial, technical, administrative and commercial management of its
subsidiary companies.  

Caixa Desenvolvimento entered into two agreements for the acquisition of the shares of Compal – Companhia
Produtora de Conservas Alimentares, S.A. (“Compal”) and Nutricafés – Cafés e Restauração, S.A. (“Nutricafés”) on 
02 November 2005. The agreements’ principal conditions are as follows:

Caixa Desenvolvimento and Sumolis – Companhia Industrial de Frutas e Bebidas, S.A. (Sumolis), jointly the
“purchasers”, undertook to acquire the full amount of the equity capital of Compal and Nutricafés, in addition
to making partners’ loans and additional capital payments to the said entities.

The price of the shares to be acquired was fixed at 365,000,000 and 61,000,000, respectively for Compal
and Nutricafés shares. The price was determined on the basis of presuppositions in respect of Compal’s and
Nutricafés’ financial indicators at 30 September 2005 and may be adjusted if the referred to financial indicators
are not certified by audits to be performed on the said entities’ accounts.

Under the terms of the agreements, the shares will be acquired by a company to be formed, 80% of whose
share capital will be owned by Caixa Desenvolvimento and the remaining 20% by Sumolis. This context saw the
formation of Inbepor – Investimentos em Bebidas Portugal, SGPS, S.A. (Inbepor), in December 2005, with a
capital of 50,000, with shareholders having made additional capital payments of 124,950,000 in 2005.
Caixa Desenvolvimento assigned 25% of the Inbepor’s share capital to the Fundo de Capital de Risco para
Investidores Qualificados Grupo CGD – Caixa Capital.

At the date of the agreements, the cost of the acquisition and shares was immediately deposited in an escrow
account with Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. (Note 6). The completion of the transactions, however, was subject
to the need to obtain authorisations/declarations of non-opposition from the Competition Authority. Before
obtaining the referred to authorisations, the purchasers could not appoint any person to the management
boards of the companies to be acquired nor exercise any control over their management. 

The declaration of non-opposition from the Competition Authority on the Nutricafés acquisition was decided on
23 December 2005 with the management of the company having been transferred to the purchasers in the
same month. Nutricafés was, therefore, included in the consolidation perimeter in 2005. However, owing to the
intention to sell off this investment over the short term, it was registered under IFRS 5 – “Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations” (Note 12).  

This operation was affected by the following developments in 2006:
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The Competition Authority issued a declaration of non-opposition in January 2006, with control over Compal
having latterly being transferred to the purchasers;

Inbepor disposed of its equity investment in Nutricafés, in March 2006, making capital gains of 6,808,139;

An increase in Inbepor’s share capital from 50,000 to 10,000,000 through the incorporation of additional
capital payments was approved in June 2006. Compal was also incorporated into Inbepor, its sole shareholder.
Under the terms of the merger, Inbepor took Compal’s name, registered office, corporate object, activity,
operations and assets and liabilities, ensuring the performance of Compal’s rights, fulfilment of its duties,
obligations and commitments.

The final price of the Compal acquisition was decided in third quarter 2006; resulting in an additional investment of
around 4 million. 

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A. sold 600,000 shares comprising 6% of Compal’s share capital to Fundo de
Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados Grupo CGD – Caixa Capital, on 02 February 2007, in addition to
making additional capital payments of 6,900,000 at their respective nominal value. The operation gave the
group indirect control over 49% of Compal’s share capital, pursuant to which the equity investment in Compal
was recognised under IFRS Standard 5 - “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” (Note 12).

Compal, Companhia Produtora de Conservas Alimentares, S.A.’s shareholders’ equity, at 31 December 2006, included
shareholders’ loans totalling 115,000,000, of which 63,250,000 made by Caixa Desenvolvimento.

5. Cash and Deposits with Central Banks

This account heading comprises the following:

The sight deposits with the Bank of Portugal account heading includes the deposits providing for the demands of the
“Minimum Reserve Requirements of the System of European Central Banks” (SEBC). Interest is paid on these deposits
which comprise 2% of the deposits and debt securities with a maturity of up to two years, excluding deposits and
government bonds subject to SEBC minimum reserve requirements.

6. Cash Assets with Other Credit Institutions

This account heading comprises the following:

The “sight deposits” balance at 31 December 2005, includes 426,000,000 in respect of a deposit made by Inbepor
with Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. for the acquisition of investments in Compal and Nutricafés (Note 4).
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Cash 2,846 2,846

Sight deposits with central banks 11,023,611 1,438,944

11,026,457 1,441,790

2006 2005

Cheques pending collection

Portugal 102 1,903

Sight deposits

Portugal 2,563,522 429,380,877

Abroad 1,072,824 1,080,307

3,636,346 430,461,184

3,636,448 430,463,087

2006 2005



7. Loans and Advances to Credit Institutions

This account heading comprises the following:

Loans and advances to credit institutions, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, maturing in the first quarter of the following
year, were denominated in euros at the following average annual interest rates:

8. Financial Assets Recognised at Fair Value 
through Profit or Loss

These account headings comprise the following:
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Interbank money market _ 2,000,000

Term deposits

Portugal 16,711,011 18,063,496

16,711,011 20,063,496

Interest receivable 95,296 100,831

16,806,307 20,164,327

2006 2005

Interbank money market _ 2.32%

Term deposits 3.87% 2.96%

2006 2005

Debt instruments

Public issuers     

Bonds 9,862,723 12,082,817 21,945,540 18,968,501 48,331,776 67,300,277 

International financial 

organisations _ 1,267,573 1,267,573 _ 1,263,632 1,263,632 

Other issuers

Bonds and other securities

Issued by resident entities 22,688,270 99,092,949 121,781,219 15,988,996 124,176,531 140,165,527 

Issued by non-resident entities 31,559,940 233,045,188 264,605,128 29,428,741 190,870,103 220,298,844 

64,110,933 345,488,527 409,599,460 64,386,238 364,642,042 429,028,280

Capital instruments

Issued by resident entities 54,380,563 13,871,764 68,252,327 577,827 166,815 744,642 

Issued by non-resident entities 310,113 _ 310,113 _ 3,268,408 3,268,408

54,690,676 13,871,764 68,562,440 577,827 3,435,223 4,013,050

Investment units

Issued by resident entities _ 2,999,996 2,999,996 _ _ _ 

_ 2,999,996 2,999,996 _ _ _

Derivatives with positive 

fair value (Note 10) 97,286,756 _ 97,286,756 17,340,679 _ 17,340,679 

216,088,365 362,360,287 578,448,652 82,304,744 368,077,265 450,382,009

Held for

trading 

Recognised
at fair value

through
profit or loss 

Total Held for

trading 

Recognised
at fair value

through
profit or loss 

Total

2006 2005



Information on the “financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss – capital instruments ” account
heading is set out below:

As referred to in Note 2.6 a) the group also recognised the capital instruments in respect of venture capital activity in
this category, in 2006, whenever the instruments have associated derivatives, i.e. the right or contractual obligation to
dispose of the subsidiary companies pursuant to the scope of the shareholders’ agreements entered into when the
investments were made. These instruments were recognised in the "available for sale financial assets" account heading
up to 31 December 2005 (Note 9).

The bank, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, held debt certificates (pledged) with a nominal value of 47,744,999 and
45,000,000 respectively (Note 20). 

9. Available for Sale Financial Assets

This account heading comprises the following:
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Capital Instruments – Venture Capital:

Visabeira, SGPS, S.A. 7,143,628 _

Manuel Inácio & Filhos, SGPS, S.A. 4,417,703 _

Plataforma, SGPS, S.A. 1,041,047 _

NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A. 926,206 _

Convento de Belmonte, Investimentos Turísiticos, S.A 330,710 _

Other 12,470 _

13,871,764 _

Other Capital Instruments: 

Euronext N.V. _ 3,268,408

Jerónimo Martins _ 166,815

_ 3,435,223

13,871,764 3,435,223

2006 2005

2006 2005

Debt instruments

Portuguese government bonds 594,192 608,709

Capital instruments

Shares

Gross amount

Issued by resident entities

Fair value 22,295,961 31,181,704

Historical cost 7,297 7,297

Issued by non-resident entities 15,798,805 3,278,660

38,102,063 34,467,661

Impairment (Note 31) (9,792,450) (13,770,511)

28,309,613 20,697,150

Investment units

Gross amount 120,599 99,759

Impairment (Note 31) _ (4,097)

120,599 95,662

29,024,404 21,401,521



Entries to the “capital instruments – shares” account heading, in 2006 and 2005, were as follows:
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Venture capital investments: 

Fundo Novenergia       _ _ _ _ _ 

La Seda Barcelona _ _ _ _ _ 

Visabeira, SGPS, S.A. 6,600,005 (6,600,005) _ _ (6,600,005) 

Manuel Inácio & Filhos, SGPS, S.A. 4,417,703 (7,500,000) (258,654) 3,340,951 (4,417,703) 

Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A. 2,128.537 _ _ _ _ 

NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A. 1,311.671 (1,608,750) 297,079 _ (1,311,671) 

Plataforma, SGPS, S.A. 1,095.235 (1,000,000) (95,235) _ (1,095,235)

Convento de Belmonte - 

Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. 301,207 (470,000) 168,793 _ (301,207) 

Other less than 100,000 241,318 (249,404) _ 236,934 (12,470) 

16,095,676 (17,428,159) 111,983 3,577,885 (13,738,291)

Other equity investments:   

Corporación Interamericana para el  

Financiamiento de Infraestructura 1,440,920 _ _ _ _ 

Marconi 7,297 _ _ _ _ 

SAG Gest, SGPS, S.A. 3,153,257 _ _ _ _ 

4,601,474 _ _ _ _

20,697,150 (17,428,159) 111,983 3,577,885 (13,738,291)

Balance at
31.12.2005 

Gross

Amount  

Fair Value

Reserves 

Impairment

(Note 31) 

Net Amount

(Note 8) 

2006

Reclassification

Venture capital investments: 

Fundo Novenergia       12,571,966 1,681,268 _ 14,253,234 

La Seda Barcelona 8,539,761 4,067,672 _ 12,607,433 

Visabeira, SGPS, S.A. _ _ _ _ 

Manuel Inácio & Filhos, SGPS, S.A. _ _ _ 

Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A. (2,288,750) 160,213 _ _ 

NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A. _ _ _ 

Plataforma, SGPS, S.A. _ _ _ _

Convento de Belmonte - 

Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. _ _ _ _ 

Other less than 100,000 (20,429) (57,470) _ 150,949

18,802,548 5,851,683 _ 27,011,616

Other equity investments:   

Corporation Interamericana para el  

Financiamiento de Infraestructura _ _ (150,220) 1,290,700 

Marconi _ _ _ 7,297 

SAG Gest, SGPS, S.A. (2,374,217) (779,040) _ _ 

(2,374,217) (779,040) (150,220) 1,297,997

16,428,331 5,072,643 (150,220) 28,309,613

Purchases/

sales 

Change in

Fair Value

Reserve

Exchange

Differences 

Balance at

31.12.2006

2006
(Continuation)

(Continues)
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Venture capital investments: 

Visabeira, SGPS, S.A.       _ _ _ _ _ 

Manuel Inácio & Filhos, SGPS, S.A. 7,500,000 _ 7,500,000 (3,340,951) _ 

Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A. 2,288,750 _ 2,288,750 _ (858,281) 

NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A. 1,608,750 _ 1,608,750 _ (361,884) 

Plataforma, SGPS, S.A. 1,000,000 _ 1,000,000 _ 31,267

Convento de Belmonte - 

Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. 469,060 _ 469,060 _ (195,951) 

VAA - Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A. 7,891,778 (1,046,041) 6,845,737 (6,845,737) _

Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, S.A. 2,999,998 _ 2,999,998 _ 326,530

Fespect - Serviços de Consultoria, S.A.         637,500 _ 637,500 _ _

Gresval - Fábrica de Produtos de Grés, S.A. 658,039 (460,627) 197,412 _ _

PMH, Produtos Médicos Hospitalares 319,598 _ 319,598 _ 71,803

Other less than 100,000 791,109 (452,888) 338,221 (24,282) (72,647) 

26,164,582 (1,959,556) 24,205,026 (10,210,970) (1,059,163)

Other equity investments:   

SAG Gest, SGPS, S.A. (1) 4.999.760 (667,910) 4,331,850 (1,733,200) _ 

Corporation Interamericana para el  

Financiamiento de Infraestructura 2.936.642 _ 2,936,642 (1,837,740) _ 

VAA - Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A. 260.460 (220,918) 39,542 (39,542) _ 

Marconi 7.297 _ 7,297 _ _ 

8.204.159 (888,828) 7,315,331 (3,610,482) _

34.368.741 (2,848,384) 31,520,357 (13,821,452) (1,059,163)

Cost Price Impairment

(Note 31) 

Net Amount Retained

Earnings 

(Note 34)

Reserves

(Note 34) 

31.12.2004 Adopting of IAS 39

(Continues)

Venture capital investments: 

Visabeira, SGPS, S.A.       6,600,005 _ _ _ 6,600,005 

Manuel Inácio & Filhos, SGPS, S.A. _ 258,654 _ _ 4,417,703

Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A. _     698,068 _ _ 2,128,537

NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A. _ 64,805 _ _ 1,311,671 

Plataforma, SGPS, S.A. _ 63,968 _ _ 1,095,235

Convento de Belmonte - 

Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. 940 27,158 _ _ 301,207 

VAA - Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A. _ _ _ _ _

Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, S.A. (2,999,998) (326,530) _ _ _

Fespect - Serviços de Consultoria, S.A.         (637,500) _ _ _ _

Gresval - Fábrica de Produtos de Grés, S.A. (320,367) _ 122,955 _ _

PMH, Produtos Médicos Hospitalares (319,598) (71,803) _ _ _

Other less than 100,000 (62,500) 24,938 37,588 _ 241,381 

2,260,982 739,258 160,543 _ (16,095,676)

Purchases/

sales 

Change in

Fair Value

Reserve

Impairment

Change

(Note 31)

Exchange

Differences 

Balance at

31.12.2005

(Continuation)

(Continues)



Information on the change in the fair value reserve recognised in 2006 and 2005, excluding the fiscal effect, is set out
below:

The equity investment in Corporación Interamericana para el Financiamento de Infraestructura was acquired in 2001
for USD 4,000,000. The bank, up to 31 December 2004, recognised exchange rate differences at cost in the income
statement, as the exposure was hedged by US dollar denominated funds. As impairment was determined on this equity
investment, with reference to 01 January 2005, the bank maintained the cost price translated at the exchange rate of
31 December 2004. Under the terms of the hedge accounting application, the change in fair value in 2006 and 2005,
resulting from the foreign exchange component, was recognised in the income statement.

The following entries were made to the principal capital instruments recognised as “available for sale financial assets”
in 2006 and 2005:

Fundo Novenergia 2010
FIQ Energias Renováveis acquired 131 Fundo Novenergia 2010 investment units, comprising 20.06% of its capital, for
9,181,235 in January 2006 from the Fundo de Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados Grupo CGD – Caixa
Capital. It was also agreed that the cost price would be corrected by 80% of the fund’s worth up to 30 June, with
reference to its “Net Asset Value”; giving rise to an additional payment of 3,390,731.

La Seda Barcelona
Caixa Capital and Caixa Desenvolvimento invested in the share capital increase of La Seda Barcelona (listed on the
Madrid stock exchange) in August 2006, having acquired 2,100,000 subscription rights for 216,000 and,
subsequently, having subscribed for 4,200,000 shares at a unit price of 1.5, totalling 6,516,000. By end 2006, Caixa
Capital and Caixa Desenvolvimento had also acquired 1,009,683 shares for 2,023,761 on the stock market.

Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A.
Caixa Capital entered into a promissory agreement for the disposal of its equity investment in Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A.
for 2,128,537 in December 2005, also providing for the transfer of partners’ loans to this subsidiary company at their
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Debt instruments (14,517) (195)

Capital instruments

Shares 5,184,626 1,690,407

Investment units 20,840 _

5,190,949 1,690,212

2006 2005

Other equity investments:   

SAG Gest, SGPS, S.A. (1) (224,433) 779,040 _ _ 3,153,257 

Corporation Interamericana para el  

Financiamiento de Infraestructura _ 172,109 _ 169,909 1,440,920 

VAA - Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A. _ _ _ _ _ 

Marconi _ _ _ _ 7,297 

(224,433) 951,149 _ 169,909 4,601,474

2,036,549 1,690,407 160,543 169,909 20,697,150

Purchases/

sales 

Change in

Fair Value

Reserve

Impairment

Change

(Note 31) 

Exchange

Differences 

Balance at

31.12.2005

(1) The investment in SAG Gest, SGPS, S.A. was acquired by the bank from Caixa Desenvolvimento in September 2005 at its respective market value at the said date. Impairment for the
amount of 2,401,110 was used for the said operation.

(Continuation)



respective nominal value. This agreement was recognised in the valuation of these assets at 31 December 2005. 
A capital loss of 160,213 (Note 27) was recognised in the income statement, in 2006, through the cancellation of
the fair value reserve.

SAG Gest
The bank disposed of its shares in SAG Gest, on the stock exchange, in 2006, making capital gains of 1,089,203
(Note 27).

Visabeira SGPS, S.A.
Caixa Capital invested in the share capital increase of Visabeira, SGPS, S.A., in December 2005, subscribing for 708,155
shares with a nominal unit value of 5 at a unit price of 9.32. 

Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, S.A.
Caixa Desenvolvimento and Caixa Capital disposed of their investments in Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, S.A. in December
2005, for 3,585,082, making capital gains of 585,085 (Note 27).

Partner’s loans with a nominal value of 1,500,000 were also transferred to this subsidiary. 

Fespect – Serviços de Consultoria, S.A.
Caixa Capital acquired 21,250 Fespect – Serviços de Consultoria, S.A. shares for 21,250 in October 2004. It also
invested in the company’s share capital in December 2004, subscribing for 616,250 shares with a nominal value of 1
each, for the global amount of 616,250.

Caixa Capital also made partners’ loans of 1,644,511.

Caixa Capital disposed of its equity investment in Fespect – Serviços de Consultoria, S.A. in December 2005 for the
global amount of 6,289,438, making capital gains of 5,651,938 (Note 27). Caixa Capital also assigned the partners’
loans to Fespect during the course of the operation.

Gresval – Fábrica de Produtos de Grés, S.A.
Caixa Capital disposed of its equity investment in Gresval – Fábrica de Produtos de Grés, S.A. for 320,367 in May
2005, having also assigned credits for the amount of 51,751.

370,000 of the transaction’s global amount will be paid in six monthly payments (increasing in value) between June
2006 and December 2010. The operation generated the replenishment of impairment for the amount of 122,955
and use of impairment for the amount of 337,672. The replenishment of impairment in this subsidiary company was
fully compensated by setting up impairment for the debtor balance resulting from the operation.

Fixed-rate interest is paid on the amounts owed.

PMH, Produtos Médicos Hospitalares, S.A.
The company disposed of its equity investment in PMH, Produtos Médicos Hospitalares, S.A. for 397,708, in April
2005, making capital gains of 78,110 (Note 27).

The company also transferred partners’ loans of 89,639 provided to the subsidiary company. 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t
| 2

00
6 

  

115Notes to the Bank’s Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2006



10. Financial Derivatives 

The operations were valued in conformity with the criteria set out in Note 2.6. c), at 31 December 2006 and 2005.
Information on their notional amount and book value, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, is set out below:  

The book value of assets classified as hedged items, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, totalled 15,548,677 and
17,193,459 respectively, including 1,435,867 and 2,409,751 of value adjustments (Note 11), respectively.

The book value of the hedged item, at 31 December 2006, totalled 5,090,631 net of 37,824 of value adjustments
(Note 19).
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Financial derivatives

OTC   

- Swaps

Interest rate    948,966,122 14,574,700 963,540,822 17,082,400 (17,141,566) (2,539,975) (2,599,141) 

- Caps     347,031,822 _ 347,031,822 258,279 (240,805) _ 17,474 

- Floors     280,132,690 _ 280,132,690 _ _ _ _ 

1,576,130,634 14,574,700 1,590,705,334 17,340,679 (17,382,371) (2,539,975) (2,581,667)

Stock market   

- Futures

Interest rate 23,095,346 _ 23,095,346 _ _ _ _

1,599,225,980 14,574,700 1,613,800,680 17,340,679 (17,382,371) (2,539,975) (2,581,667)

Trading
derivatives 

Hedge
derivatives 

Total Assets held
for trading
(Note 8) 

Liabilities
held for
trading 

Hedge
derivatives 

Total

2005

Notional amount Book value 

Financial derivatives

OTC   

- Swaps

Interest rate   11,375,119,394 18,910,917 11,394,030,311 93,007,709 (90,294,849) (1,619,826) 1,093,034 

- Caps     809,211,306 _ 809,211,306 2,218,868 (2,206,412) _ 12,456 

- Floors     726,866,350 _ 726,866,350 2,060,179 (2,060,179) _ _ 

- Options    95,075,346 _ 95,075,346 _ (6,467,374) _ (6,467,374) 

13,006,272,396 18,910,917 13,025,183,313 97,286,756 (101,028,814) (1,619,826) (5,361,884)

Stock market   

- Futures

Interest rate    11,500,000 _ 11,500,000 _ _ _ _

13,017,772,396 18,910,917 13,036,683,313 97,286,756 (101,028,814) (1,619,826) (5,361,884)

Trading
derivatives 

Hedge
derivatives 

Total Assets held
for trading
(Note 8) 

Liabilities
held for
trading 

Hedge
derivatives 

Total

2006

Notional amount Book value 



Information on the distribution of financial derivatives operations, at 31 December 2006 and 2005 by periods
to maturity (by notional amounts) is set out below:
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Financial derivatives

OTC     

- Swaps

Interest rate

Trading    _ 52,451,864 12,594,887 1,001,933,027 10,308,139,616 11,375,119,394 

Hedge   _ _ _ _ 18,910,917 18,910,917 

_ 52,451,864 12,594,887 1,001,933,027 10,327,050,533 11,394,030,311

- Caps

Trading     _ 13,966,350 _ 426,772,556 368,472,400 809,211,306

- Floors

Trading    _ 13,966,350 _ 402,900,000 310,000,000 726,866,350

- Options

Trading     95,075.346 _ _ _ _ 95,075,346 

95,075.346 80,384,564 12,594,887 1,831,605,583 11,005,522,933  13,025,183,313

Stock market    

- Futures

Interest rate

Trading     11,500,000 _ _ _ _ 11,500,000 

106,575,346 80,384,364 12,594,887 1,831,605,583   11,005,522,933  13,036,683,313

<= 3 months > 3 months

<= 6 months 

> 6 months

<=1 year 

> 1 year

<= 5 years 

> 5 years Total

2006

Financial derivatives

OTC    

- Swaps

Interest rate

Trading     20,000,000 14,993,989 41,530,917 635,751,885 236,689,331 948,966,122 

Hedge    _ _ _ _ 14,574,700 14,574,700 

20,000,000 14,993,989 41,530,917 635,751,885 251,264,031 963,540,822

- Caps

Trading     _ _ _ 280,132,690 66,899,132 347,031,822

- Floors

Trading     _ _ _ 280,132,690 _ 280,132,690 

20,000,000 14,993,989 41,530,917 1,196,017,265 318,163,163 1,590,705,334

Stock market    

- Futures

Interest rate

Trading     23,095,346 _ _ _ _ 23,095,346 

43,095,346 14,993,989 41,530,917 1,196,017,265 318,163,163 1,613,800,680

<= 3 months > 3 months

<= 6 months 

> 6 months

<=1 year 

> 1 year

<= 5 years 

> 5 years Total

2005



Information on the distribution of financial derivatives operations, by counterpart type, as at 31 December 2006 and
2005, is set out below:

11. Loans and Advances to Customers

This account heading comprises the following:
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Contracts on interest rates

Interest rate swaps         

Financial institutions        10,499,810,515 8,130,206               593,979,571         (6,059,437)

Customers        894,219,796 (7,037,172)               369,561,251 3,460,296

11,394,030,311 1,093,034               963,540,822 (2,599,141)

Caps         

Financial institutions        404,605,653 1,861,456               173,515,911 (240,805)  

Customers      404,605,653 1,849,000               173,515,911 258,279 

809,211,306 12,456              347,031,822 17,474

Floors      

Financial institutions       363,433,175 (2,060,179) 140,066,345 N/D 

Customers        363,433,175 2,060,179              140,066,345 N/D 

726,866,350 _ 280,132,690 _

Options

Financial institutions        _ _               _ _ 

Customers        95,075,346 (6,467,374)              _ _ 

95,075,346 (6,467,374)              _ _

Futures        

Exchange stock market       11,500,000 _ 23,095,346 _ 

13,036,683,313         (5,361,884) 1,613,800,680 (2,581,667)

Notional

Value 

Book Value

2006

Notional

Value 

Book Value

2005

Domestic credit

Loans 337,274,078 383,093,432

Current account 74,130,916 43,129,346

Sight deposit overdrafts 11,010,832 19,980,846

Other credit 8,164,674 7,830,974

Securitised domestic credit

Commercial paper 61,560,285 _

Foreign loans

Loans 295,879,224 188,616,064

Current account 1,824,310 _

Value adjustments relating

to hedged assets (Note 10) 1,435,867 2,409,751

791,280,186 645,060,413

2006 2005

(Continues)



Information on impairment entries for 2006 and 2005, is set out in Note 31.

This account was broken down as follows, by periods to maturity at 31 December 2006 and 2005:

Impairment recognised at 31 December 2006 and 2005 was determined as follows:

The total nominal value of credit suffering from impairment, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, totalled 2,165,390 and
8,631,949, respectively, including the amounts recognised in overdue credit. Credit overdue for more than 
3 years, at 31 December 2006 and 2005 is fully covered by impairment.
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Interest receivable 4,589,595 2,593,613

Deferred income

Commissions associated with amortised cost (3,549,694) (3,639,471)

Interest (918,047) _

Deferred expenses

Commissions associated with amortised cost 13,121 17,653

791,415,161 644,032,208

Overdue credit and interest 1,552,946 4,430,354

792,968,107 648,462,562

Impairment (Note 31) (7,512,393) (9,425,711)

785,455,714 639,036,851

2006 2005(Continuation)

Up to three months 11,560,392 2,851,204

Three months to one year 63,192,064 71,891,095

One to five years 67,239,320 68,203,774

More than five years 562,322,353 439,004,148

Current account overdrafts 86,966,057 63,110,192

791,280,186 645,060,413

2006 2005

Separate analysis 1,951,034 5,861,647

Collective analysis 5,561,359 3,764,064

7,512,393 9,425,711

2006 2005



The sectoral distribution of loans and advances to customers, excluding overdue credit, at 31 December 2006 and
2005, was as follows:

12. Non-Current Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale

These account headings comprised the aggregate value of the assets and liabilities of Nutricafés – Cafés e Restauração,
S.A. (Nutricafés), at 31 December 2006, including goodwill generated on the acquisition of this subsidiary company.
The balances were aggregated and recognised in this account heading in accordance with IFRS Standard 5, as the
subsidiary was acquired for sale. Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A. sold 600,000 shares comprising 6% of Compal’s
share capital to Fundo de Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados Grupo CGD – Caixa Capital, on 02 February
2007, in addition to making additional capital payments of 6,900,000 at their respective nominal value.The operation
gave the group indirect control over 49% of Compal’s share capital.

These account headings comprised the aggregate value of the assets and liabilities of Nutricafés – Cafés e Restauração,
S.A. (Nutricafés), at 31 December 2005, including goodwill generated on the acquisition of this subsidiary company.
The balances were aggregated and recognised in this account heading in accordance with IFRS Standard 5, as the
subsidiary was acquired for sale and the group considers that it will be disposed of in 2006. Nutricafés was finally
disposed of in March 2006, generating capital gains of 6,808,139. 

Information on the book value (without imputing their fair value) of the principal categories of assets and liabilities of
Compal is set out in the following table, considering intra-group operations adjustments.

120 Notes to the Bank’s Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2006

Mining industries 2,880,000 0.4 _ _

Manufacturing industries:

Electricity, water and gas generation and distribution     97,927,958 12.3 137,472,289 21.3 

Food, beverages and tobacco industries 23,356,418 3.0 35,915,984 5.6

Textiles industry 15,944,591 2.0 9,669,934 1.5

Paper pulp, card and publishing 

and printing thereof    10,280,179 1.3 12,728,929 2,0

Chemicals and synthetic or artificial   

fibres manufacture    8,301,873 1.0 9,750,960 1.5

Manufacture of transport material 7,001,365 0.9 8,000,000 1.2

Basic metallurgical and metal industries 4,000,000 0.5 19,285,714 3.0

Manufacture of articles of rubber and plastic 1,834,729 0.2 2,393,939 0.4

Property, rentals and corporate services:

Property 15,346,783 2.0 16,984,450 2.6

Other 164,813,866 20.8 88,869,933 13.8 

Financial activities 48,000,013 6.1 48,000,000 7.4

Transport, warehousing and communications    196,350,413 24.8 141,687,671 22.0

Construction 60,193,280 7.6 17,001,096 2.6

Wholesale/retail 9,500,000 1.2 _ _

Hotels and restaurants 2,000,000 0.3 2,000,000 0.3

Health and social security 2,203,756 0.3 _ _

Other activities and collective, social and personal activities   112,123,743 14.2 85,797,980 13.3

Loans and advances to individual customers 9,221,219 1.2 9,501,534 1.5

791,280,186 100 645,060,413 100

Amount Sector of activity %

2006

Amount %

2005



An approximate amount of 267,000,000 in goodwill determined on the acquisition was fully imputed to the Compal
trade name, and is recognised in “intangible assets”.

Information on the book value (without imputing their fair value) of the principal categories of assets and liabilities of
Nutricafés is set out in the following table.
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Non-current assets held for sale

Tangible assets 7,508,358

Intangible assets 29,616,095

Inventories 2,699,860

Customers 5,108,514

Liquid assets 223,504

Other assets 1,533,651

46,689,982

Goodwill (vis-à-vis book value) 19,850,878

66,540,860

Non-current liabilities held for sale

Bank loans (47)

Suppliers and other debts to third parties (2,948,130)

Other liabilities (2,592,683)

(5,540,860)

Cost price (Note 4) 61,000,000

Non-current assets held for sale

Tangible assets 48,977,273

Intangible assets 282,488,941

Financial investments 1,573,435

Inventories 22,447,899

Customers 51,165,270

Liquid assets 1,650,505

Other assets 5,641,500

413,944,823

Non-current liabilities held for sale

Bank loans (255,445,682)

Suppliers and other debts to third parties (17,034,458)

Other liabilities (18,667,179)

Other provisions (453,361)

(291,600,680)



13. Other Tangible Assets

Information on entries to the “other tangible assets” account headings for the years 2006 and 2005 is set out below:
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Property:         

For own use     13,093,384 (2,501,847) _ (168,764) _ 10,422,773 

Other property    77,843 (77,843) _ _ _ _ 

Equipment:         

Furniture and material     964,508 (891,121) 55,401 (38,738) _ 90,050 

Transport material   302,367 (222,590) 36,600 (48,588) (16,821) 50,968

IT equipment     1,004,541 (908,954) 140,799 (82,970) _ 153,416 

Interior installations  2,058,064 (1,845,011) 43,011 (56,098) _ 199,966

Security equipment     240,087 (240,087) _ _ _ _ 

Machinery and tools    484,822 (418,994) 8,371 (20,328) _ 53,871

Other equipment    5,258 (4,067) _ (136) _ 1,055

Property leases         

Transport material     1,577,056 (675,054) 475,373 (447,431) (134,574) 795,370

19,807,930 (7,785,568) 759,555 (863,053) (151,395) 11,767,469

Gross

Amount 

Accumulated

Depreciation 

Acquisitions Depreciation

for Year 

Write-offs

(net) 
Net Amount 

at 31.12.05

2005

Balance at 31.12.04

Property:         

For own use     13,093,383 (2,670,610) _ (168,764) _ 10,254,009 

Other property    77,843 (77,843) _ _ _ _ 

Equipment:       

Furniture and material     1,000,610 (910,560) 7,390 (24,642) _ 72,798 

Transport material   237,555 (186,587) _ (9,150) (23,517) 18,301

IT equipment     1,143,939 (990,523) 295,387 (171,680) _ 277,123 

Interior installations    2,072,262 (1,872,296) 8,048 (56,690) _ 151,324

Security equipment     240,087 (240,087) _ _ _ _ 

Machinery and tools    479,467 (425,596) 9,753 (18,494) _ 45,130

Other equipment    5,258 (4,203) _ (136) _ 919

Property leases        

Transport material    1,726,173 (930,803) 417,687 (409,690) (153,115) 650,252

20,076,577 (8,309,108) 738,265 (859,246) (176,632) 11,469,856

Gross

Amount 

Accumulated

Depreciation 

Acquisitions Depreciation

for Year 

Write-offs

(net) 
Net Amount 

at 31.12.06

2006

Balance as 31.12.05



14. Intangible Assets 

Information on entries to the “intangible assets” account headings entries for the years 2006 and 2005 is set out
below:

Fixed assets in progress, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, comprise expenses incurred on the acquisition of software
not yet in use.

15. Investments in Associated Companies

The “investments in associated companies” account heading at 31 December 2006 and 2005, comprised the following
equity investments:  
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Automatic data 

processing systems

Intangible assets 

in progress

Balance at 31.12.04

2005

Gross Amount

(pro forma) 

Accumulated

Depreciation 

Acquisitions Transfers Depreciation

for Year 

Net Amount 

at 31.12.05

3,489,666

56,013

3,545,679

(3,164,200)

_

(3,164,200)

46,905

195,198

242,103

22,701

(22,701)

_

(199,465)

_

(199,465)

195,607

228,510

424,117

Automatic data 

processing systems

Intangible assets 

in progress

Balance at 31.12.05

2006

Gross

Amount 

Accumulated

Depreciation 

Acquisitions Transfers Depreciation

for Year 

Net Amount 

at 31.12.06

3,556,247

228,510

3,784,757

(3,360,640)

_

(3,360,640)

39,503

115,515

155,018

16,421

(16,421)

_

(191,021)

_

(191,021)

60,510

327,604

388,113

Pestana Pousadas

Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. (Pestana Group)

Finpro, Infraestruturas, S.A. (Finpro)

2006

Investment

Percentage

Book 

Value

Book 

Value

25%

_
1,901,321

_
1,901,321

969,040

212,798

1,181,838

2005



The following is a summary of the financial data extracted from the provisory separate accounts of  Pestana Group, for
the last financial year:

Pestana Group’s shareholders’ equity, at 31 December 2006, included 6,800,000 of additional capital payments
deriving from the part conversion of partners’ loans. Grupo Caixa – Banco de Investimento converted partners’ loans
for the amount of 1,700,000 into additional capital payments in 2006. 

Information on the book value of these investments in 2006 and 2005 and respective impact in the consolidated
financial statements is set out below:

Finpro Infraestruturas, SGPS, S.A. was dissolved and liquidated in November 2006.

16. Income Tax

Tax assets and liabilities balances, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, were:
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Grupo Pestana Pousadas

Investimentos Turísticos, S.A.

Assets Profit/Loss Shareholders’

Equity

Lisbon

Entity
Registered

Office 

Effective

Percentage Equity

Investment 

Date

25% 30.11.2006 36,378,418 (1,959,661) 7,605,284

Balance at 31.12.04

Income generated by associated companies (Note 23)

Other changes

Balance at 31 December 2005

Income generated by associated companies (Note 23)

Additional capital payments

Settlement

Balance at 31 December 2006

Pestana
Group

Finpro Total

1,608,116

(639,076)

_

969,040

(767,719)

1,700,000

_

1,901,321

178,559

844

33,395

212,798

(32,349)

_

(180,449)

_

1,786,675

(638,232)

33,395

1,181,838

(800,068)

1,700,000

(180,449

1,901,321

Current tax assets

Income tax to be recovered

Current tax liabilities

Income tax payable

Deferred tax assets

Temporary differences

Deferred tax liabilities

2006 2005

1,422,999

(5,302,108)

(3,879,109)

4,505,159

(2,360,850)

2,144,309

1,269,021

(2,603,310)

(1,334,289)

3,729,860

(2,555,442)

1,174,418



The “income tax to be recovered” account heading, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, included 657,900 in respect
of an appeal made by the bank over its IRC bill for 2000.

The following table provides details and information on deferred tax entries for 2006 and 2005:

The “other” column, in 2006 and 2005, recognises deferred tax entries as a charge to the current tax account heading.

The group does not recognise deferred tax assets whenever the existence of future taxable income allowing their
respective use is not probable. Deferred tax assets of 1,380,652 and 174,407, were not recognised for Caixa Capital
and Caixa Desenvolvimento, respectively, at 31 December 2006.
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Impairment and provisions disallowed  

for fiscal purposes 

Commissions

Revaluation of financial derivatives

Revaluation of fixed assets 

disallowed for fiscal purposes

Valuation of available for 

sale financial assets 

Deferral of capital gains tax on the 

disposal of financial investments  

(Note 2.11)

Fiscal benefits - Venture capital 

(Note 2.11)

2005

Balance at

31.12.04 

(pro forma) 

Adoption of

IFRS 39 

(Note 34) 

Change in

Income  

Change in

Shareholders’

Equity 

Others Balance at

31.12.05

1,509,721

300,935

(56,420)

(215,984)

_

(1,542,413)

524,505

520,344

(814)

591,645

779,268

_

516,253

(120,318)

_

1,766,034

(194,606)

(385,766)

(406,791)

6,166

_

(194,548)

335,958

(839,587)

_

_

_

_

(83,036)

_

_

(83,036)

_

_

_

_

_

335,168

(524,505)

(189,337)

1,314,301

506,814

316,057

(209,818)

433,217

(1,522,111)

335,958

1,174,418

Impairment and provisions disallowed 

for fiscal purposes

Commissions

Revaluation of financial derivatives

Revaluation of fixed assets disallowed 

for fiscal purposes

Valuation of available for sale financial assets  

Value adjustments on hedged assets

Deferral of capital gains tax on the disposal of    

financial investments (Note 2.11)

Fiscal benefits - Venture capital 

(Note 2.11)

2006

Balance at

31.12.05 

Change in

Income  

Change in

Shareholders’

Equity 

Others Balance at

31.12.06

1,314,301

506,814

316,057

(209,818)

433,217

_

(1,522,111)

355,958

1,174,418

(20,511)

112,514

646,698

13,571

(90,004)

(492,999)

681,746

_

851,015

_

_

_

_

41,326

_

_

_

41,326

_

_

_

_

60,753

_

_

16,797

77,550

1,293,790

619,328

962,755

(196,247)

445,292

(492,999)

(840,365)

352,755

2,144,309



Deferred tax assets of 1,260,422 and 678,671 for Caixa Capital and Inbepor, respectively, were not recognised, at
31 December 2005.

Information on expenditure on tax on profit recognised in the income statement, in addition to the tax burden, measured
by the ratio between the appropriation for tax on profit and net profit for the year before tax is set out below:

Information on the reconciliation between the nominal and effective tax rate in 2006 and 2005 is set out below:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities originated by temporary differences, at 31 December 2006 were determined on the
basis of a nominal tax rate of 26.5%, taking into account the entry into force of the Local Finance Law, in 2007.  

In conformity with current legislation, tax returns are subject to review and correction by the tax authorities for a period
of four years. The bank’s tax returns for 2003 to 2006 are therefore still subject to review and the possibility of correction.
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Income before tax and minority shareholders’ interests

Determination of tax at nominal rate

Fiscal losses per corporate grouping

Impact of tax regime on activities performed by 

Madeira Offshore Branch (Note 2.11))

Impact of tax regime on activities performed 

in Ireland 

Alteration of nominal tax rate

Fiscal benefits

Income generated by associated companies

Deferred tax assets - unrecognised

Income from discontinued operations

Fiscal capital gains

Provisions not relevant for fiscal purposes

Separate source-based taxation

Other

Rate Tax Rate Tax

27.50%

(2.17%)

(2.54%)

(0.38%)

0.18%

(0.75%)

0.56%

0.49%

0.13%

(0.18%)

0.71%

0.11%

0.13%

23.79%

39,280,686

10,802,189

(853,758)

(998,324)

(148,645)

69,180

(293,243)

220,019

191,148

51,635

(72,200)

278,269

42,863

55,631

9,345,464

27.50%

(3.46%)

(1.43%)

(0.28%)

_

(1.21%)

0.55%

2.15%

_

(1.07%)

1.88%

0.13%

(0.28%)

24.48%

31,637,313

8,700,261

(1,094,869)

(451,354)

(87,761)

_

(381,525)

175,514

678,671

_

(339,509)

594,025

41,337

(91,271)

7,743,519

Current tax

Year

Adjustments relating to previous years

Deferred tax

Recognition and reversal of temporary differences

Total tax in income statement

Income before tax and minority shareholders’ interests

Tax burden

2006 2005

10,193,127

3,352

10,196,479

(851,015)

9,345,464

39,280,686

23.79%

6,919,036

(15,104)

6,903,932

839,587

7,743,519

31,637,313

24.48%

20052006



The board of directors considers that any correction is unlikely to have a significant impact on the financial statements,
at 31 December 2006.

17. Other Assets

This account heading comprises the following:

The amounts of 13,962,455 and 27,924,909 at 31 December 2006 and 2005, respectively, refer to the amount to
be received from the sale of Caixa Desenvolvimento’s equity investment in Barraqueiro, SGPS, S.A in June 2002. 

Based on the initial agreement, the part of the sales price not settled on the date of the contract would be paid in four
equal, successive instalments, falling due on the last weekday of the months from December 2003 to December 2006.
The amount payable on 31 December 2005 was deferred although the respective interest was paid. An addendum was
appended to the initial agreement on 7 February 2006, in which Caixa Desenvolvimento received 50% of the
outstanding principal and a second payments schedule was agreed for the remaining amount.
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Debtors and other investments

Proceeds from sale of the equity investment in Barraqueiro:

Capital

Interest receivable 

Partners’ loans

Other investments

Debtors - futures trading

Miscellaneous debtors

Other assets

Income receivable

Other interest receivable

Other income receivable

Deferred expenses

Insurance 

Leasing instalments

Other deferred expenses

Prepayments and accrued income

Securities operations pending settlement

Other lending operations pending settlement

Overdue credit and interest

Impairment (Note 31)

2006 2005

13,962,455

423,009

2,399,877

91,665

484,550

3,926,947

21,288,503

48,846

29,937

89,647

119,584

10,445

3,812

1,916,922

1,931,179

29,145,140

195,291

29,340,431

5,413,630

58,142,173

(6,667,956)

51,474,217

27,924,909

1,037,410

4,683,184

1,328,462

502,853

5,217,921

40,694,739

48,846

34,182

384,574

418,756

9,002

3,812

2,328,019

2,340,833

93,245,537

75,097

93,320,634

5,403,433

142,227,241

(7,291,244)

134,935,997

30 June 2007 1,708,811

30 June 2008 1,708,811

30 June 2009 3,417,621

30 June 2010 7,127,212

13,962,455



Interest, at the market rate, is payable on the overdue amounts and paid on the date of liquidation of each instalment.
Caixa Desenvolvimento has a pledge over the sold shares to guarantee payment of the outstanding amounts. 

Information on the “partners’ loans” account heading at 31 December 2006 and 2005, is set out below:

Interest, at market rates, was paid on partners’ loans at 31 December 2006 and 2005, with the following periods to
maturity up to reimbursement:

The balance on the "other investments" account heading at 31 December 2006 and 2005, is set out below:

Biomediche, Produtos Terapêuticos, Hospitalares e Cirúrgicos, Lda was liquidated in 2006, with the use of the
respective impairment.

The “miscellaneous debtors” account heading at 31 December 2006 and 2005 includes 1,621,183 and 2,984,730
in amounts to be received from customers for the invoicing of services provided by the bank.

The “other deferred expenses” account heading, at 31 December 2006 and 2005 includes 1,662,895 and
2,108,502 respectively, made on account of the investment in Agrupamento Complementar de Empresas TREM II –
Aluguer de Material Circulante, ACE. The bank subscribed for an increase in the share capital of TREM II, in 2006, in
proportion to its respective investment, totalling 105,325.

The “securities operations pending settlement” account heading, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, comprises the value
of the operations for the sale of securities at the end of the year and settled at the beginning of the following year.

The “overdue credit and interest” account heading at 31 December 2006 and 2005, included overdue credit from
Caixa Valores for the amount of 3,551,441, deriving from securities operations realised in 1992 by a group of
customers. Impairment for the same amount has been allocated to this credit. Caixa Valores took legal action against
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NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A.

Grupo Pestana - Pousadas Investimentos Turísticos, S.A. (Note 15)

Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A.

Other

2006 2005

1,599,877

800,000

_

_

2,399,877

1,599,877

2,500,000

521,033

62,274

4,683,184

Three months to one year

One to five years

Unspecified

2006 2005

_

1,599,877

800,000

2,399,877

47,274

1,599,877

3,036,033

4,683,184

Supplementary capital payments

Biomediche, Produtos Terapêuticos, Hospitalares

e Cirúrgicos, Lda.

Additional capital payments

Sinalemp - Sinaléctica Empresarial, S.A.

Other

2006 2005

_

_

91,665

91,655

1,097,355

139,442

91,665

1,328,462



the group of customers in September 1994, accusing them of responsibility for realising the referred to operations and
claiming an amount of 6,003,180 plus interest accruing since June 1993. As the action is still in progress, the bank
has not recognised any asset related with this situation.

Information on “impairment” at 31 December 2006 and 2005, is set out below:

18. Other Credit Institutions’ Resources

This account heading comprises the following:

Information on the periods to maturity of other credit institutions’ resources is set out below:

Interest at an average annual rate of 3.87% and 2.84% was paid on other credit institutions’ resources, excluding sight
deposits, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Other investments and partners’ loans

NG - Negócios e Gestão, SGPS, S.A.

Biomediche, Produtos Terapêuticos, Hospitalares

e Cirúrgicos, Lda.

Other

Debtors

2006 2005

799,939

_

481,800

1,281,739

5.386,217

6,667,956

399,969

1,112,355

227,119

1,739,443

5,551,801

7,291,244

Credit institutions’ resources in Portugal

Interbank money market resources

Term deposits

Short term loans

Very short term deposits 

Sight deposits

Credit institutions’ resources abroad

Sight deposits

Other resources 

Interest payable

2006 2005

620,000,000

458,894,999

_

_

139,778

1,457

_

1,079,036,234

1,188,826

1,080,225,060

575,000,000

333,900,000

301,000,000

3,560,226

138,888

1,457

264,575

1,213,865,146

5,057,750

1,218,922,896

Sight deposits

Up to three months

Three months to one year

2006 2005

141,235

1,038,176,113

40,718,886

1,079,036,234

404,920

921,161,293

292,298,933

1,213,865,146



19. Customer Resources and Other Loans

This account heading comprises the following:

The following information is provided on term deposits at 31 December 2006 and 2005 in accordance with the
operations’ respective period to maturity:

20. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions
Information on “provisions for other risks” entries for 2006 and 2005 is set out below:
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Deposits

Sight

Term 

Value adjustments relating

to hedged liabilities (Note 10)

Interest payable on deposits

2006 2005

46,476,827

58,275,367

104,752,194

(37,824)

104,714,370

924,336

105,638,706

58,841,697

48,642,616

107,484,313

_

107,484,313

1,735,735

109,220,048

Up to three months

Three months to one year

More than five years

2006 2005

84,412,437

7,000,000

13,301,933

104,714,370

99,257,162

_

8,227,151

107,484,313

For other risks and liabilities

Guarantees and commitments

Other risks

2006

Balance at

31.12.05 

Increases Cancellations

and Recoveries 

Balance at

31.12.06

1,057,156

2,480,561

3,537,717

-

236,485

236,485

(301,287)

-

(301,287)

755,869

2,217,046

3,472,915



Provisions for guarantees provided and commitments assumed are calculated on the basis of the estimated losses
associated with operations in progress, in accordance with separate analyses and Caixa Geral de Depósitos group
parameters.

Provisions for other risks comprise the group’s best estimate of eventual amounts to be expended on settling legal,
fiscal and other contingencies.  

In 2004, the “provisions – other” account heading was set up to provide for value reductions of assets recognised in
“other assets” by Caixa Capital, cancelled pursuant to the adopting of IAS Standard 39 on 01 January 2005.

Contingent liabilities and commitments
Contingent liabilities associated with banking activity are recognised in off-balance sheet account headings as
follows:
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For other risks and liabilities

Guarantees and commitments

Other risks

Other

2005

Balance at

31.12.04 

Adopting of

IAS 39 

(Note 34)

Increases Cancellations

and

Recoveries 

Balance at

31.12.05

1,491,995

2,217,934

381,236

4,091,165

(138,255)

-

(381,236)

(519,491)

-

262,627

-

262,627

(296,584)

-

-

(296,584)

1,057,156

2,480,561

-

3,537,717

Contingent liabilities:

Guarantees and sureties

Asset-backed guarantees

Commitments:

Revocable lines of credit

Securities subscriptions

Other irrevocable commitments

Potential liability to

Investors’ Indemnity System

Term liabilities to Deposit Guarantee Fund

Other

Liabilities for the provision of services:

Deposit and custody of securities

Amounts under bank management

2006 2005

131,153,901

47,744,999

178,898,900

208,690,162

50,250,000

2,847,418

2,052,436

158,020

133,015

264,131,051

4,430,781,236

104,256,047

139,038,212

45,000,000

184,038,212

158,034,724

66,730,651

4,238,366

2,052,436

155,395

422,468

231,634,040

2,983,380,688

76,912,728



The “assets-backed guarantee” account heading, at 31 December 2006 and 2005 comprises the nominal value of the
government bonds pledged, by the bank (Note 8), on the following situations:

The object of the Deposit Guarantee Fund is to guarantee customers’ deposits in conformity with the limits fixed in the
General Credit Institutions Regime. This takes the form of regular annual contributions. A part of the said contributions
has been assumed on the basis of an irrevocable commitment to realise the respective contributions when requested by
the Fund. The amounts are not recognised in costs. The total value of commitments assumed since 1996 totals 158,020.

The balance on the “amounts under bank management” account heading, at 31 December 2006 and 2005 comprises
the value of the following venture capital funds managed by Caixa Capital, excluding unpaid capital:

21. Other Liabilities

This account heading comprises the following:
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FIQ Grupo CGD - Caixa Capital

FIQ Energias Renováveis - Caixa Capital

FIQ PME - Caixa Capital

Value of

Fund 

Net Income Value of

Fund 

Net Income 

78,389,497

14,691,850

11,174,700

104,256,047

12,973,025

1,391,850

(321,557)

65,416,471

-

11,496,257

76,912,728

3,092,473

-

256,026

20052006

Fund

“SPGT” (Major Transactions Processing System)

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. - Euronext

Investors’ Indemnity System (SII))

2006 2005

44,744,999

2,000,000

1,000,000

47,744,999

42,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

45,000,000

Creditors and other resources

General government

Value added tax 

Deduction of tax at source

Social security contributions

Futures and options

Deferred interest and dividends

Miscellaneous creditors

Creditors – securities operations

Suppliers of leased assets

Other suppliers

Other

2006 2005

82,746

2,285,520

200,024

30,000

126,688

3,276,385

857,673

184,863

128,711

7,172,610

271,472

1,712,755

190,246

483,920

112,014

9,607,063

1,017,203

275,227

61,084,230

74,754,130

(Continues)



The balance on the “creditors - securities operations” account heading at 31 December 2006 and 2005, refers to the
current accounts of brokerage operations customers.  

The balance on the “miscellaneous creditors – other” account at 31 December 2005, includes 61,000,000 on the
amount to be paid by Inbepor for the acquisition of the equity investment in Nutricafés (Notes 4 and 12).

The “securities operations pending settlement” account heading at 31 December 2006 and 2005, comprises the value
of securities purchase operations at the end of the year and settled at the beginning of the following year.

22. Subscribed Capital and Own Shares

Subscribed capital comprises 81,250,000 shares with a nominal value of one euro each.

The shareholding structure, as at 31 December 2006 and 2005, was as follows:

The bank held 4,658,000 own shares at 31 December 2006 and 2005, at a cost price of 5,999,453.

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t
| 2

00
6 

  

133Notes to the Bank’s Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2006

Costs payable

Interest payable 

Other costs payable

Additional remuneration  

Holiday and holiday subsidies

Pension fund 

Other

Deferred income

Agencying commissions 

Commissions on provision of guarantees  and other contingent liabilities

Other accruals and deferred income accounts

Securities operations pending settlement

Lending operations pending settlement

Commissions payable - syndication of credit operations

Other

2006 2005

156

2,180,000

1,448,732

309,536

740,800

4,679,224

688,636

54,254

742,890

29,090,160

6,231,853

42,245

35,364,259

47,958,983

202

1,781,198

1,406,746

288,220

1,002,117

4,478,483

836,036

79,094

915,130

92,700,094

60,622

385,725

93,146,441

173,294,184

(Continuation)

Gerbanca, SGPS, S.A.

Companhia de Seguros

Fidelidade - Mundial, S.A.

Own shares

Other

No.

Shares

% No.

Shares

%

68,348,445

7,968,827

4,658,000

274,728

81,250,000

84.1

9.8

5.7

0.4

100.0

68,348,445

7,964,177

4,658,000

279,378

81,250,000

84.1

9.8

5.7

0.4

100.0

20052006



23. Reserves, Retained Earnings and Profit for Year

The composition of reserves and retained earnings account headings at 31 December 2006 and 2005, was as follows:

Legal reserve
In conformity with Decree Law 298/92 of 31 December, the bank is required to set up a legal reserve fund until equal
to its share capital and annually transfer an amount of not less than 10% of net profits to the reserve. The reserve may
only be used to cover accumulated losses or for share capital increases. The value of the legal reserve recognised by
the bank at 31 December 2006 and 2005 totalled 26,662,892 and 24,716,565 respectively.

Legal Revaluation Reserve
The bank revalued its fixed assets in 1998, under Decree Law 31/98 of 11 February. The increase of 4,338,403, in the
net value of fixed assets was recognised in the “revaluation reserves” account heading in the separate accounts.

Revaluation reserves may only be used to cover accumulated losses or share capital increases.

Fair Value Reserves
The fair value reserve recognises potential capital gains and losses on available for sale financial assets, net of the
corresponding fiscal effect.

Dividends 
A resolution was passed at the general shareholders’ meeting of 24 March 2006 to distribute dividends of 17,516,949
for 2005 of which amount 1,004,233 was allocated to own shares.

Profit for Year
Information on the bank’s consolidated net income for 2006 and 2005 is set out below:
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Other reserves and retained earnings:

Legal reserve

Free reserve

Legal revaluation reserve

Retained earnings

Fair value reserves

Profit for year

2006 2005

28,077,582

24,313,857

4,338,403

42,961,378

99,691,220

5,780,288

30,045,764

135,517,272

26,131,254

19,456,381

4,338,403

41,273,552

91,199,590

548,013

25,004,347

116,751,950

Bank’s separate net income (statutory accounts)

Subsidiaries’ contributions

Caixa Capital

Caixa Desenvolvimento

FIQ Energias Renováveis - Caixa Capital

Caixa Investments Ireland

Compal/Inbepor

Caixa Ireland Limited

2006 2005

30,771,365

4,024,511

(2,026,328)

1,266,584

883,590

647,480

1,077

4,796,914

19,463,277

5,775,777

1,936,568

_

423,493

(1,357,343)

875

6,779,370

(Continues)



According to the accounting policies applicable to the sector, Caixa Capital and FIQ Energias Renováveis recognise the
valuation of all of their investments in the income statement. These valuations are recognised in the fair value reserve
in the case of “available for sale financial assets” in the group’s consolidated accounts.

24. Minority Shareholders’ Interests

This account heading comprises the following:

The part share of the year 2006 losses of Compal and FIQ Energias Renováveis (considering such investments’ effective
contribution to the bank’s consolidated net income) attributable to the minority shareholders totalled 84,494 and
26,048, respectively.

The proportion of losses determined by Inbepor attributable to minority shareholders in 2005 totalled 1,110,553.
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Associated companies’ contributions (Note 15)  

Cancellation of gains on associated companies

Valuation of Caixa Desenvolvimento’s associated companies 

Valuation of Caixa Capital’s associated companies 

Cancellation of dividends received

Caixa Ireland Limited (Note 4)

Income from operations between group companies

Impact of conversion of separate accounts to IFRS

Valuation of Caixa Capital subsidiaries

Valuation of FIQ Energias Renováveis subsidiaries

- Caixa Capital

Impairment on lending

Other

Consolidated net income 

2006 2005

(800,068)

(22,889)

(108,007)

(822,000)

(101,550)

(2,551,527)

(1,529,954)

414,611

(1,131) 

30,045,764

(638,232)

_

(25,483)

(260,000)

(649,200)

(817,662)

_

1.152,281

(4)

25,004,347

(Continuation)

Compal - Companhia Produtora de Conservas Alimentares, S.A.

(ex-Inbepor)

FIQ Energias Renováveis - Caixa Capital

2006 2005

55,054,757

4,473,952

59,528,709

55,139,447

_

55,139,447



25. Interest and Income and Interest and Similar Charges

These headings comprise the following:

Interest on trading interest swaps was recognised in net interest income as from December 2005. Prior to the said date
they were recognised in assets and liabilities held for trading in the income statement (see Note 27).

26. Income and Costs on Services and Commissions

These headings comprise the following:
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Interest and similar income 

Interest on loans and advances to credit institutions in Portugal

Interest on domestic loans

Interest on foreign loans

Interest on overdue credit

Interest on financial assets held for trading

Securities

Derivatives - swaps

Interest on other financial assets recognised at fair 

value through profit or loss

Securities

Interest on available for sale financial assets 

Interest on hedge derivatives

Interest on debtors and other investments

Debtors

Partners’ loans

Interest on liquid assets

Commissions received associated with amortised cost

Interest and similar costs 

Interest on deposits

General government

Other resident entities

Other non-resident entities

Interest on credit institutions’ resources in Portugal

Interest on credit institutions’ resources abroad

Interest on financial liabilities held for trading

Swaps

Interest on hedge derivatives

Other interest and similar costs

Commissions paid associated with amortised cost

2006 2005

859,056

18,280,876

10,096,967

_

1,978,477

43,676,234

11,565,018

28,275

554,766

688,704

98,139

76,952

87,913,464

1,377,761

89,291,225

498,162

2,660,643

522

3,159,327

26,053,033

763

43,234,388

945,026

40,747

70,273,957

4,531

73,437,815

543,386

11,817,975

5,154,025

428

2,288,760

1,077,314

10,855,078

1,411,461

611,630

1,259,935

291,807

39,337

35,351,136

327,108

35,678,244

433,092

1,152,912

65,237

1,651,241

20,526,866

272

1,373,253

1,339,320

36,563

23,276,274

212

24,927,727



27. Income from Financial Operations

These headings comprise the following:
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Income from services and commissions

For services performed

Organisation of operations

Venture fund capital management (Caixa Capital)

Deposit and custody of securities

Other

Guarantees provided

Commissions for operations realised on behalf of third parties

Commissions for commitments to third parties

Other

Costs of Services and Commissions

Commissions for operations performed by third parties

For banking services provided by third parties

Other

2006 2005

12,371,942

2,083,394

395,556

11,319,152

946,280

8,639,406

451,187

8,537,093

44,744,010

1,452,407

98,532

1,680

1,552,619

7,964,288

1,593,899

406,268

9,106,846

1,048,458

7,060,303

382,311

9,155,404

36,717,777

1,297,188

51,298

10

1,348,496

Foreign exchange income

Revaluation of foreign exchange position 

Income from assets and liabilities held for trading

Debt instruments

Capital instruments

Derivatives

Interest rate swaps

Futures

Options

Interest rate guarantee contracts

Income from other financial assets recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss

Debt instruments

Capital instruments

Income from available for sale financial assets 

Debt instruments

Capital instruments

Income from the disposal of other assets

Income from hedge operations

Interest rate swaps

Income from other financial operations

Value adjustments related with hedged assets

Other

2006 2005

137,744

(1,129,880)

7,105,578

3,196,388

(219,224)

(6,426,965)

113,063

2,638,960

(41,365)

359,083

317,718

_

999,102

999,102

_

947,915

(936,060)

(316)

(936,376)

4,105,063

(210,461)

691,031

42,386

927,971

(1,488,894)

(22,580)

_

149,914

(814,681)

2,720,023

1,905,342

(371,833)

6,388,122

6,016,289

(2,376)

(94,309)

84,284

(158)

84,126

7,848,524



Information on income from capital instruments recognised as available for sale financial assets in 2006 and 2005 is
set out below (Note 9):

28. Other Operating Income

These headings comprise the following:
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SAG Gest, SGPS, S.A.

Portuvinus, SGPS, S.A.

Fespect, Serviços de Consultoria, S.A.

Visabeira Indústria, SGPS, S.A.

PMH, Produtos Médicos Hospitalares, S.A.

Other

2006 2005

1,089,230

(160,213)

_

_

_

70,112

999,102

72,989

_

5,651,938

585,085

78,110

_

6,388,122

Other operating income

Staff on loan - CGD Group

Provision of miscellaneous services

Reimbursement of expenses

Recovery of interest and expenses on overdue credit

Gains on non-financial assets

Other tangible assets

Other

Other operating costs

Taxes

Indirect taxes

Stamp tax

Charges 

Tax on road transport

Other taxes

Direct taxes

Other taxes

TREM II

Donations and subscriptions

Losses on tangible assets

Contributions to Deposit Guarantee Fund

Other

Income from discontinued operations (Compal)

Other operating income (net)

2006 2005

1,107,847

439,391

275,935

_

11,564

86,895

1,921,632

378,250

62,505

2,527

_

182,036

625,318

550,932

29,624

26,665

14,875

40,420

662,516

187,764

850,280

1,475,598

446,034

1,437,658

419,616

327,348

20,310

1,791

75,211

2,281,934

359,625

112,139

2,790

18,143

128,316

621,013

672,907

31,570

18,921

11,725

27,094

762,217

_

762,217

1,383,230

898,704



29. Employee Costs

This account heading comprises the following:

The average number of bank and its subsidiaries’ workers in 2006 and 2005, excluding the board of directors and
inspection bodies was 184 and 173, respectively and distributed as follows:

30. Other Administrative Expenditure

This account heading comprises the following:
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Remuneration paid to board of directors and inspection bodies

Remuneration paid to employees

Mandatory social costs

Remuneration costs 

Pension costs (Note 2.13)

Other mandatory social costs

Other employee costs

2006 2005

935,520

10,582,911

11,518,431

1,888,646

330,359

87,681

2,306,686

455,764

14,280,881

766,436

9,443,734

10,210,170

1,787,641

296,838

73,676

2,158,155

464,745

12,833,070

Directors

Technical and line management 

Administrative and auxiliary staff

2006 2005

46

106

32

184

45

96

32

173

Specialised services

Conservation and repair

Travel and representation

Communications

Rents and leases

Advertising and publications

Consumables

Water, power and fuel

Insurance

Employee training

Publications

Other third party services

Other third party supplies

2006 2005

3,901,824

1,308,787

582,128

457,196

423,504

344,483

158,194

139,726

105,633

76,933

35,874

153,699

34,367

7,722,348

3,837,820

1,549,091

583,518

450,217

245,006

263,757

69,717

113,602

105,564

85,022

33,869

204,062

31,583

7,572,828



31. Impairment

Information on impairment entries for 2006 and 2005 is set out below:
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Loans and advances to  

customers (Note 11)

Debtors and other 

investments (Note 17)

Available for sale assets 

(Note 9)

2005

Balance at

31.12.04 

Adoption of

IAS 39 

Cancellations

and

Recoveries 

Use Exchange

Differences 

Balance at

31.12.05

9,378,260

6,592,232

2,852,481

18,822,973

Increases

135,295

658,854

13,821,452

14,615,601

4,879,539

595,721

17,984

5,493,244

(3,637,042)

(389,169)

(178,527)

(4,204,738)

232,159

_

_

232,159

9,425,711

7,291,244

13,774,608

30,491,563

(1,562,500)

(166,394)

(2,738,782)

(4,467,676)

Loans and advances to   

customers (Note 11)

Debtors and other 

investments (Note 17)

Available for sale assets 

(Note 9)

2006

Balance at

31.12.05 

Increases Use Exchange

Differences 

Other 

(Note 9) 

Balance at

31.12.06

9,425,711

7,291,244

13,774,608

30,491,563

Cancellations

and

Recoveries 

3,776,639

769,154

_

4,545,793

(3,912,548)

(46,214)

(4,097)

(3,962,859)

(1,596,668)

(1,346,228)

(463,108)

(3,406,004)

_

_

(3,577,885)

(3,577,885)

7,512,393

6,667,956

9,792,450

23,972,799

(180,741)

_

62,932

(117,809)



32. Related Entities

All companies controlled by CGD Group, associated companies and the bank’s management bodies are considered to
be entities related with the bank.

Balances with group companies
The principal balances with Caixa Geral de Depósitos group companies not included in the consolidation perimeter at
31December 2006 and 2005 were as follows:
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Assets

Loans to credit institutions repayable on demand

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Banco Caixa Geral, S.A.

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Financial liabilities held for trading

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Of which securities

of which trading derivatives

Other financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Loans and advances to customers 

FIQ Grupo CGD - Caixa Capital

Other assets

FIQ Grupo CGD - Caixa Capital

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

FIQ PME - Caixa Capital

Sogrupo IV - Gestão de Imóveis, ACE

Sogrupo - Serviços Administrativos, ACE

Caixa Web, SGPS, S.A.

Sogrupo - Sistemas de informação, ACE

Sogrupo III - Gestão de Activos, ACE

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading 

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Hedge derivatives with negative fair value

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Other credit institutions’ resources 

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Caixa Leasing e Factoring - Instituição Financeira de Crédito, S.A.

Customer resources

FIQ Grupo CGD - Caixa Capital

Caixa Seguros, SGPS, S.A

Other liabilities

Caixa Leasing e Factoring - Instituição Financeira de Crédito, S.A.

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Sogrupo - Sistemas de informação, ACE

Banco Caixa Geral, S.A.

Sogrupo - Serviços Administrativos, ACE

2006 2005

2,229,341

16,024

16,806,307

90,342,977

2,635,093

87,707,884

1,831,290

48,013,764

839,576

323,984

63,012

12,831

7,902

2,975

_

_

77,802,206

1,517,491

1,068,781,233

124,042

690,713

107,993

708,977

34,276

_

_

_

428,950,036

57,057

20,063,496

20,838,824

10,378,192

10,460,632

1,809,590

48,007,470

495,442

285,365

78,060

12,044

14,531

2,975

81,418

9,826

12,979,706

2,539,975

1,218,782,553

124,042

20,917,969

18,815

849,171

127,171

70,213

6,479

1,157



Transactions with group companies
The principal balances in Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.’s income statement for group companies not included in the
consolidation perimeter, at 2006 and 2005, are set out below:
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Income

Interest and similar income

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

of which financial assets held for trading

of which other financial assets recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss

of which hedge derivatives

FIQ Grupo CGD - Caixa Capital

Commissions

FIQ Grupo CGD - Caixa Capital

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

FIQ PME - Caixa Capital

Caixa Seguros, SGPS, S.A.

Caixa Web, SGPS, S.A.

Profit generated by financial operations

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

of which financial assets held for trading

of which other financial assets recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss

of which hedge derivatives

Other operating income

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Sogrupo IV - Gestão de Imóveis, ACE

Sogrupo - Serviços Administrativos, ACE

Sogrupo III - Gestão de Activos, ACE

Sogrupo - Sistemas de informação, ACE

Costs

Interest and similar costs

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

of which financial assets held for trading

of which hedge derivatives

FIQ Grupo CGD - Caixa Capital

Caixa Leasing e Factoring - Instituição Financeira de Crédito, S.A.

Banco Caixa Geral, S.A.

Commissions

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Losses generated by financial activities

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

of which financial assets held for trading

of which other financial assets recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss

of which hedge derivatives

Other administrative expenses

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A.

Caixa Leasing e Factoring - Instituição Financeira de Crédito, S.A.    

Banco Caixa Geral, S.A. 

Sogrupo - Sistemas de informação, ACE

Sogrupo - Serviços Administrativos, ACE

2006 2005

24,021,651

21,882,637

10,539

427,413

1,530,484

1,850,527

1,139,919

232,837

60,000

10,000

99,079,069

97,839,480

15,535

1,224,054

781,414

170,251

97,349

12,743

_

50,147,341

23,283,741

847,359

429,769

24,296

251

441,619

83,696,447

83,470,021

34,254

250,618

1,135,838

55,230

49,960

_

_

2,123,586

954,998

11,486

611,630

7,470

1,337,547

1,527,388

256,352

25,000

25,825

26,447,107

25,288,409

163,099

995,599

829,402

159,871

90,272

50,411

321,418

22,822,042

956,821

1,339,320

91,313

24,623

179

335,565

27,483,005

26,940,429

36,998

505,578

869,915

78,311

73,416

234,719

16,891



Transactions with related entities are generally made on the basis of market values on the respective dates.

Bank’s management bodies
The costs incurred on the remuneration of the bank’s board of directors, in 2006, totalled 942,604 of which amount
8,381 in respect of contributions to the Caixa - Banco de Investimento pension fund, as described in Note 2.13. The
costs incurred on the remuneration of the bank’s board of directors, in 2005, totalled 772,213 of which amount
7,073 in respect of contributions to the Caixa - Banco de Investimento pension fund, as described in Note 2.13.

Bonuses of 114,373 and 152,000 were paid to the board of directors, in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Management bodies did not take out any credit operations with the bank in 2006 and 2005. In addition, the bank
does not have any liability nor granted any long term benefit to the board of directors, other than those referred to.

33. Financial Instruments

Management policies on financial risks pertaining to the group’s activity
Risk management and control are centralised by CGD’s Risk Management Division. The bank also has Risk Management
Regulations that define the limits and operating procedures in terms of the management of the various risks.

The following disclosures on the principal types of risks pertaining to the bank’s activity and required under IAS 32 are
set out below.

Foreign exchange risk
Financial instruments were broken down by currency, at 31 December 2006 and 2005:
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 

with central banks

Cash assets with other 

credit institutions

Loans and advances to 

credit institutions

Financial assets recognised at fair 

value through profit or loss

Available for sale financial 

assets 

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Provisions and impairment

Liabilities

Other credit institutions’ 

resources

Customer resources and 

other loans

Financial liabilities recognised at fair   

value through profit and loss

Negative revaluation of hedge 

derivatives

Other liabilities

Net exposure

Currency

2006

Euro USD Yen Other Total

11,026,457

3,250,696

14,451,071

562,714,408

27,733,704

745,190,436

58,081,292

(12,267,403)

1,409,820,661

(1,018,462,487)

(101,966,377)

(101,028,814)

(1,619,826)

(47,382,084)

(1,270,459,588)

Sterling

_

25,164

2,355,236

15,734,244

1,290,700

1,552,946

53,276

(1,552,946)

19,458,620

(15,659,355)

(3,650,820)

_

_

(53,285)

(19,363,460)

95,160

_

312,773

_

_

_

46,224,725

1,377

_

46,538,875

(46,103,218)

(10,345)

_

_

(517,386)

(46,630,949)

(92,074)

_

17,577

_

_

_

_

_

_

17,577

_

_

_

_

_

_

17,577

11,026,457

3,636,448

16,806,307

578,448,652

29,024,404

792,968,107

58,142,173

(14,180,349)

1,475,872,199

(1,080,225,060)

(105,638,706)

(101,028,814)

(1,619,826)

(47,958,983)

(1,336,471,389)

39,737

_

30,238

_

_

_

_

6,228

_

36,466

_

(11,164)

_

_

(6,228)

(17,392)

19,074



Exposure in US dollars essentially derives from excess cover of the exchange risks on available for sale assets.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk comprises the group’s risk of difficulties in obtaining funds to meet its commitments. An example of
liquidity risk may be the bank’s incapacity to dispose of a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

The analysis of the group’s liquidity risk is part of the consolidated liquidity analysis of CGD Group’s ALCO-Asset-Liability
Committee. The bank has taken out an irrevocable line of credit with CGD providing for its liquidity requirements of
up to one year. CGD Group policy, on the other hand, does not advise direct access to the capital market for securing
medium and long term funding, which is the consolidated liability of CGD Group with CGD having a global
management commitment and eventual coverage of the liquidity gaps of its various subsidiaries as a whole.
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 

with central banks

Cash assets with other 

credit institutions

Loans and advances to 

credit institutions

Financial assets recognised at fair 

value through profit or loss

Available for sale financial 

assets 

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Provisions and impairment

Liabilities

Other credit institutions’ 

resources

Customer resources and 

other loans

Financial liabilities recognised at fair   

value through profit and loss

Negative revaluation of hedge 

derivatives

Other liabilities

Net exposure

Currency

2005

Euro USD Yen Other Total

1,441,790

430,209,798

20,164,327

450,382,009

19,960,601

646,728,876

142,115,263

(14,983,269)

1,696,019,395

(1,215,361,751)

(109,024,227)

(17,382,371)

(2,539,975)

(173,294,184)

(1,517,602,508)

Sterling

_

85,850

_

_

1,440,920

1,733,686

111,978

(1,733,686)

1,638,748

(3,561,145)

(191,987)

_

_

_

(3,753,132)

(2,114,384)

_

92,859

_

_

_

_

_

_

92,859

_

(3,763)

_

_

_

(3,763)

89,096

_

20,565

_

_

_

_

_

_

20,565

_

_

_

_

_

_

20,565

1,441,790

430,463,087

20,164,327

450,382,009

21,401,521

648,462,562

142,227,241

(16,716,955)

1,697,825,582

(1,218,922,896)

(109,220,048)

(17,382,371)

(2,539,975)

(173,294,184)

(1,521,359,474)

(1,950,779)

_

54,015

_

_

_

_

_

_

54,015

_

(71)

_

_

_

(71)

53,944



Information on the contractual periods to maturity of financial instruments at 31 December 2006 and 2005, is set out
below:
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents with central banks

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Financial assets recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Liabilities

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Financial liabilities held for trading

Hedge derivatives

Other liabilities

Liquidity gap

Contractual periods to maturity

2006

Repayable on

demand 

3 months to

1 year 

1 to 3 years Up to 3

months 

11,026,457

3,636,448

_

_

_

11,171,672

33,062,577

58,897,154

141,235

46,493,483

_

_

33,357,428

79,992,146

21,094,992

_

_

16,806,307

2,524,190

_

11,560,391

_

30,890,888

1,039,089,148

37,949,044

6,467,374

_

9,087,344

1,092,592,910

(1,061,702,022)

_

_

_

29,957,944

594,192

139,196,344

2,613,175

172,361,655

40,994,677

7,022,400

1,043,287

_

4,771,321

53,831,685

(118,529,970)

_

_

_

163,159,159

_

13,699,382

5,502,857

182,361,398

_

_

5,947,301

_

_

5,947,301

176,414,097

3 to 5 years Other TotalUndetermined 

_

_

_

176,182,057

_

54,231,113

9,527,088

239,940,258

_

_

5,661,856

_

_

5,661,856

234,278,402

_

_

_

71,562,436

28,430,212

1,552,946

5,505,297

107,050,891

_

_

_

_

_

_

107,050,891

_

_

_

_

_

(4,454,618)

1,931,179

(2,523,439)

_

_

_

_

742,890

742,890

(3,266,329)

11,026,457

3,636,448

16,806,307

578,448,652

29,024,404

792,968,107

58,142,173

1,490,052,548

1,080,225,060

105,638,706

101,028,814

1,619,826

47,958,983

1,336,471,389

153,581,159

More than 

5 years 

_

_

_

135,062,866

_

566,010,877

_

701,073,743

_

14,173,779

81,908,996

1,619,826

_

97,702,601

603,371,142

(Continuation)

(Continues)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents with central banks

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Financial assets recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Liabilities

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Financial liabilities held for trading

Hedge derivatives

Other liabilities

Liquidity gap

Contractual periods to maturity

2006
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3 to 5 years Other TotalUndetermined

_

_

138,309,628

_

_

57,830,134

12,144,710

208,284,472

_

_

2,828,788

_

_

2,828,788

205,455,684

_

_

4,013,050

20,792,812

_

4,430,354

8,439,466

37,675,682

_

_

_

_

_

_

37,675,682

_

_

_

_

_

(3,621,818)

2,340,833

(1,280,985)

_

_

_

_

915,130

915,130

(2,196,115)

1,441,790

430,463,087

450,382,009

21,401,521

20,164,327

648,462,562

142,227,241

1,714,542,537

1,218,922,896

109,220,048

17,382,371

2,539,975

173,294,184

1,521,359,474

193,183,063

More than 

5 years 

_

_

65,325,112

_

_

461,602,398

_

526,927,510

_

9,714,938

9,006,243

2,539,975

_

21,261,156

505,666,354

(Continuation)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents with central banks

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Financial assets recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Liabilities

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Financial liabilities held for trading

Hedge derivatives

Other liabilities

Liquidity gap

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents with central banks

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Financial assets recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Liabilities

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Financial liabilities held for trading

Hedge derivatives

Other liabilities

Liquidity gap

Contractual periods to maturity

2005

Repayable on

demand 

3 months to

1 year 

1 to 3 years Up to 3

months 

1,441,790

430,463,087

_

_

_

19,980,846

93,245,537

545,131,260

404,920

58,841,697

_

_

102,791,077

162,037,694

383,093,566

_

_

40,618,669

_

20,164,327

24,416,412

15,047,139

100,246,547

926,219,043

40,663,413

361,807

_

63,286,487

1,030,530,750

(930,284,203)

_

_

91,714,046

_

_

72,919,499

7,591,934

172,225,479

292,298,933

_

811,634

_

6,301,490

299,412,057

(127,186,578)

_

_

110,401,504

608,709

_

10,904,737

3,417,622

125,332,572

_

_

4,373,899

_

_

4,373,899

120,958,673

(Continues)

Contractual periods to maturity

2005



The above table incorporates the following presuppositions:

Customers’ sight deposits and overdrafts have been classified as “repayable on demand”;

The “others” column comprises amounts already received or paid, which are being deferred;

Overdue credit to customers and shares were classified for undetermined periods.

Cash assets with other credit institutions as at 31 December 2005 include 426,000,000 in respect of a deposit for
Inbepor’s acquisition of equity investments in Compal and Nutricafés (Note 4) and may not be used for any other
purpose.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk comprises the risk of the fair value or cash flows associated with a determined financial instrument, if
altered on the basis of an alteration of market interest rates.

The following is a summary of the type of exposure to interest rate risk at 31 December 2006 and 2005:
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.

.

.

Assets

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Securities

Financial derivatives

Other financial assets recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss

Hedge derivatives

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial derivatives

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other liabilities

Net exposure

Not subject to

interest rate risk 

Variable rate Total

_

_

54,690,676

_

16,871,760

_

28,430,212

(2,901,674)

41,299,053

138,390,027

_

_

_

_

47,958,983

47,958,983

90,431,044

Fixed rate 

3,636,448

16,806,307

118,801,609

11,375,119,394

362,360,287

18,910,917

29,024,404

792,968,107

58,142,173

12,775,769,646

11,375,119,394

1,080,225,060

105,638,706

18,910,917

47,958,983

12,627,853,060

147,916,586

_

_

2,635,093

3,223,945,141

26,796,517

5,000,000

594,192

15,548,678

376,425

3,274,896,046

3,225,540,720

141,235

30,929,456

13,910,917

_

3,270,522,328

4,373,718

3,636,448

16,806,307

61,475,840

8,151,174,253

318,692,010

13,910,917

_

780,321,103

16,466,695

9,362,483,573

8,149,578,674

1,080,083,825

74,709,250

5,000,000

_

9,309,371,749

53,111,824

2006



Exposure to interest rate risk, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, can be broken down into the following maturity
periods:
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Assets

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Securities

Financial derivatives

Financial assets recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial derivatives

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other liabilities

Net exposure

Not subject to

interest rate risk 

Variable rate Total

_

577,827

_

3,435,223

_

20,792,812

_

808,536

108,581,738

134,196,136

_

_

_

_

173,294,184

173,294,184

(39,098,048)

Fixed rate

430,463,087

64,964,065

948,966,122

368,077,265

14,574,700

21,401,521

20,164,327

648,462,562

142,227,241

2,659,300,890

948,966,122

1,218,922,896

109,220,048

14,574,700

173,294,184

2,464,977,950

194,322,940

_

10,378,192

467,642,170

37,422,341

14,574,700

608,709

_

17,211,724

_

547,837,836

481,323,952

404,919

23,939,392

14,574,700

_

520,242,963

27,594,873

430,463,087

54,008,046

481,323,952

327,219,701

_

_

20,164,327

630,442,302

33,645,503

1,977,266,918

467,642,170

1,218,517,977

85,280,656

_

_

1,771,440,803

205,826,115

2005
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Contractual periods to maturity

3 to 5 years Other TotalUndetermined

_

_

_

_

181,699,971

5,173,320

_

_

_

800,000

187,673,291

185,361,657

_

_

_

_

185,361,657

2,311,634

_

_

_

54,690,676

_

16,871,760

_

28,430,212

1,552,946

5,505,297

107,050,891

_

_

_

_

_

_

107,050,891

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

(4,454,618)

1,931,179

(2,523,439)

_

_

_

_

742,890

742,890

(3,266,329)

3,636,448

16,806,307

_

118,801,609

11,375,119,394

362,360,287

18,910,917

29,024,404

792,968,107

58,142,173

12,775,769,646

11,375,119,394

1,080,225,060

105,638,706

18,910,917

47,958,983

12,627,853,060

147,916,586

More than 

5 years 

_

_

_

2,635,093

2,633,066,604

17,743,472

5,000,000

_

14,265,618

_

2,672,710,787

2,630,510,195

_

14,173,779

13,910,917

_

2,658,594,891

14,115,896

(Continuation)

Assets

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Securities

Financial derivatives

Other financial assets recognised at  

fair value through profit or loss

Hedge derivatives

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial derivatives

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other liabilities

Net exposure

Assets

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Securities

Financial derivatives

Other financial assets recognised at  

fair value through profit or loss

Hedge derivatives

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial derivatives

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other liabilities

Net exposure

Contractual periods to maturity

2006

Repayable

on demand 

3 months to

1 year 

1 to 3 years Up to 3

months 

(Continues)

_

16,806,307

_

61,475,840

7,549,638,117

281,995,282

_

_

359,743,065

_

8,269,658,611

7,539,550,693

1,039,089,148

37,972,928

_

9,087,344

8,625,700,113

(356,041,502)

_

_

_

_

766,801,089

39,341,553

13,910,917

594,192

410,848,425

16,466,694

1,247,962,870

778,563,903

40,994,677

36,736,322

5,000,000

4,771,321

866,066,223

381,896,647

_

_

_

_

243,913,613

1,234,900

_

_

_

376,425

245,524,938

241,132,946

_

_

_

_

241,132,946

4,391,992

3,636,448

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

11,012,671

33,062,578

47,711,697

_

141,235

16,755,677

_

33,357,428

50,254,340

(2,542,643)

2006
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Rate refixing periods - Period to maturity

3 to 5 years Other TotalUndetermined

_

_

233,712,578

5,467,178

_

_

_

_

12,144,710

251,324,466

235,865,192

_

_

_

_

235,865,192

15,459,274

_

577,827

_

3,435,223

_

20,792,812

_

4,430,354

8,439,466

37,675,682

_

_

_

_

_

_

37,675,682

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

(3,621,818)

2,340,833

(1,280,985)

_

_

_

_

915,130

915,130

(2,196,115)

430,463,087

64,964,065

948,966,122

368,077,265

14,574,700

21,401,521

20,164,327

648,462,562

142,227,241

2,659,300,890

948,966,122

1,218,922,896

109,220,048

14,574,700

173,294,184

2,464,977,950

194,322,940

More than 5

years 

_

10,378,192

101,731,095

2

_

_

_

17,193,459

_

129,302,748

98,971,264

_

9,714,938

14,574,700

_

123,260,902

6,041,486

(Continuation)

Assets

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Securities

Financial derivatives

Other financial assets recognised at  

fair value through profit or loss

Hedge derivatives

Available for sale financial assets

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial derivatives

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other liabilities

Net exposure

Assets

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Securities

Financial derivatives

Other financial assets recognised at  

fair value through profit or loss

Hedge derivatives

Available for sale financial assets

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial derivatives

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other liabilities

Net exposure

Contractual periods to maturity

2005

Repayable

on demand 

3 months to

1 year 

1 to 3 years Up to 3

months

(Continues)

_

54,008,046

118,748,095

323,709,456

_

_

_

271,690,764

15,047,139

783,203,500

109,144,209

926,219,043

40,663,413

_

63,286,487

1,139,313,152

(356,109,652)

_

_

393,504,957

31,445,060

14,574,700

_

20,164,327

338,788,957

7,591,934

806,069,935

396,222,071

292,298,933

_

_

6,301,490

694,822,494

111,247,441

_

_

101,269,397

4,020,346

_

608,709

_

_

3,417,622

109,316,074

108,763,386

_

_

_

_

108,763,386

552,688

430,463,087

_

_

_

_

_

19,980,846

93,245,537

543,689,470

_

404,920

58,841,697

_

102,791,077

162,037,694

381,651,776

2005



The contents of the above referred to table were based on the following presuppositions:

the book value of fixed-rate instruments was classified in accordance with the respective period to maturity;

the book value of variable-rate instruments (e.g. indexed to Euribor), was classified in accordance with the
respective maturity until the next re-fixing of the rate;

the book value of instruments not subject to interest rate risk (e.g. shares) was included in the "undetermined"
column;

the book value included in the “other” column comprises amounts which have already been received or paid
which are being deferred; 

the notional purchase amounts (as assets) or sales (as liabilities) on interest rate swaps are presented.

overdue loans to customers were not considered to be subject to interest rate risk, and; 

customers’ sight deposits, when no interest is paid, are considered as fixed-rate and are classified as “repayable
on demand“.

Fair value
The group maintains a significant part of its assets, notably its securities and derivatives portfolio, recognised at fair
value through profit or loss.

Reference should be made to the following aspects as regards the principal financial assets and liabilities recognised at
cost:

Interest at indexed rates and short re-fixing maturities is paid on almost all loans and advances to and resources
with other credit institutions;

As stated above, in the section on interest rate risk, the interest on almost all lending is indexed to Euribor, with
short re-fixing periods. The only long term operation at fixed interest rates is covered by a hedge derivative for
which reason the change in the fair value attributable to the interest rate risk has already been recognised in the
book value of lending (see Note 11);

As shown above, in the section on interest rate risk, the payment of interest on almost all customer deposits is
indexed to Euribor, with short re-fixing periods. A long term operation at fixed interest rates is covered by a
hedge derivative for which reason the change in the fair value attributable to the interest rate risk has already
been recognised in the deposit’s book value (see Note 19);

In light of the above, the group considers that the book value of its financial assets, net of provisions and financial
liabilities comprises a reliable approximation of their respective fair value.

34. Impact of Adopting of the IFRS

The following table summarises the impact of the adopting of International Financial Reporting Standards, vis-à-vis the
accounts published in December 2004:
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(a) The bank’s own shares were recognised in assets at cost. According to IAS 1, own shares are recognised as a
deduction to shareholders’ equity.

(b) In accordance with the former standards and practice in the banking sector in Portugal, the bank did not 
register deferred tax. The amount filed comprises the calculation of deferred tax on already existing situations at 
31 December 2004. Details on deferred taxes are given in Note 16.

(c) This impact is the result of the fair value valuation of securities which had previously been registered in investment
and financial investment portfolios, hitherto recognised as follows:

Investment securities – This account heading includes portfolio securities usually held for more than six months, with the
aim of achieving steady income, without the objective of bringing influence to bear on the issuing entity’s management.
These securities were valued at cost, with capital losses being fully provisioned as a charge to the income statement.

Investments – This account heading included stable investments in companies whose percentage capital investment
was equal to or less than 50% or, if higher, not strategic to the group’s activities. Such investments were recognised
at cost. Provisions for capital losses were recognised on the basis of the following criteria:

In conformity with Bank of Portugal Official Notice 3/95 of 30 June, the full amount of potential capital losses
had to be provisioned if the subsidiary company was in one of the situations referred to in the Official Notice,
including the filing of losses for three consecutive or interspersed years, over the last five years, was insolvent or
bankrupt or had terminated its activity etc.;

In conformity with Bank of Portugal Official Notice 4/2002 of 25 June, potential capital losses were determined
on the average list price of the last six months, for companies with shares listed on organised markets and 150%
of the book value of the subsidiary’s shareholders’ equity in others. Pursuant to the terms of the referred to
Official Notice, provisions were set up in cases in which the potential capital losses on an investment exceeded
15% of the book value, with such provision comprising at least 40% of the said excess. For portfolio investments
already existing, at 31 December 2001, a transitory period of between 5-10 years to provision the capital losses
determined under the Official Notice had been defined, and, until 2004, recognised as a charge to reserves.   

The respective impact was as follows:
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PCSB Balance

Impact of standards adopted as from 01 January 2004

Reclassification of own shares

Deferred tax 

IFRS Balance (pro forma)

Impact of adopting of IAS as from 01 January 2005

Valuation of securities portfolio

Revaluation of financial derivatives

Application of hedge accounting - valuation of hedged item

Deferral of commissions associated with credit operations

Impairment on lending and accounts receivable

Fiscal impact

Recognised in current tax 

Recognised in deferred tax (Note 16)

Other

Adjustments sub-total at 01 January 2005

IFRS balances at 01 January 2005

Note Shareholders’ equity 

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(g)

201,286,999

(5,999,453)

1,538,252

_

(4,461,201)

196,825,798

(12,216,763)

(3,024,525)

2,325,469

(2,507,737)

(655,894)

(981,079)

1,766,034

33,396

(15,261,099)

181,564,699



With the adopting of IAS 39 at 01 January 2005, the bank transferred the full amount of its investment portfolio to
the "other financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss", account heading with the exception of Vista
Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A. and Marconi shares (Note 9). Potential capital gains of 1,845,097 which were not
recognised under the PCSB, were accordingly recognised. Reference should be made to the fact that a part of the
referred to capital gains derived from fixed-income securities hedged by interest rate swaps (see note (d) below).

The bank also transferred its investment in Euronext N.V to this category, having recognised a potential capital gain of
437,519 in respect of the respective book value at 31 December 2004.

Finally, the group transferred the securities presented in Note 9 to the “available for sale financial assets ”account
heading having recognised a respective loss in value of 14,499,379. Accordingly:  

Corporación Interamericana para el Financiamento de Infraestructura is a financial institution with registered
office in Costa Rica, specialising in financing small and medium sized infrastructure projects in Latin America.
The bank valued this entity, at 01 January 2005, on the basis of the discounted cash flows method, determining
impairment of 1,837,740 (Note 9).

The bank determined the existence of impairment on the full amount of its investment in Vista Alegre Atlantis,
SGPS, S.A., shares, based on the securities’ low levels of liquidity on Euronext Lisbon and the company’s current
status (Note 9).

The group’s equity investments in the venture capital area, held by Caixa Desenvolvimento and Caixa Capital,
have also been recognised in the available for sale financial assets category. The valuation of such assets
originated a negative transition adjustment of 12,622,097, deriving from the following situations:

Recognition of potential capital losses on quoted companies, which had not been recognised under the PCSB
pursuant to the rules of Official Notice 4/2002 (see Note 2.6.e)), totalling 5,428,838. The additional
impairment determined on Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A. shares totalled 3,150,099;

Recognition of capital losses deriving from the adopting of the valuation methodologies of equity
investments in non quoted companies in the venture capital area described in Note 2.6. a). The additional
net capital losses recognised totalled 4,043,160, of which 1,059,163 were recognised in the fair value
reserve. The amount recognised as a charge to retained income is net of a provision of 381,236 set up by
Caixa Capital in terms of “provisions for other risks” (Note 20).

(d) As referred to in Note 2.3.f), in accordance with the PCSB, interest rate swaps for hedge purposes were not
generally revalued with only accrued interest to be received and paid being recognised. With the adopting of IAS 39,
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Valuation of “assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss”

On investment portfolio

On financial investment portfolio

Valuation of “available for sale assets ” (Note 9)

On investment portfolio

On financial investment portfolio:

Bank

Venture capital operations

Cancellation of provision for other risks and liabilities (Note 20)

Fair Value
Reserve

TotalRetained
Earnings

1,845,097

437,519

2,282,616

(39,542)

(3,570,940)

(11,270,133)

(14,880,615)

381,236
(12,216,763)

1,845,097

437,519

2,282,616

(39,542)

(3,570,940)

(10,210,970)

(13,821,452)

381,236
(11,157,600)

_

_

_

_

_

(1,059,163)

(1,059,163)

_
(1,059,163)



these derivatives were valued at their respective fair value, originating a negative impact of 3,024,525 in retained
earnings. The impact was compensated:

by the valuation of a fixed-rate credit hedge operation with a positive impact totalling 2,325,469;

by the recognition of potential capital gains of 818,577 on fixed-rate securities previously recognised in the
investment portfolio (see paragraph (c) above).

(e) Under the IFRS, the bank included commissions charged on the origination of credit operations at amortised cost
with the respective income being recognised during the course of the period of the respective operations. Accordingly
the commissions associated with “performing loan” operations at 01 January 2005 were received, with the
corresponding reduction of 2,507,737 being calculated and recognised in loans and advances to customers,
originating a negative impact for the same amount in retained earnings.

(f) With the adopting of the IFRS the bank determined impairment on credit and liabilities for guarantees provided in
accordance with the criteria described in Note 2.6. d). Under the PCSB, the group set up provisions for credit risks in
accordance with Bank of Portugal dispositions, including:

Provision for overdue credit and interest – used to cover overdue capital or interest payment instalments. The
provision percentages for overdue credit and interest were increased in proportion to the period elapsing since the default.

Provision for doubtful loans – based on the risks of outstanding principal on loans to customers with unpaid
principal or interest or customers with other unpaid liabilities, in accordance with criteria specified by the Bank of
Portugal. The provisions percentages comprised, either in full or in part, those on overdue credit on operations. Such
credit was solely considered overdue for the purpose of setting up provisions, on the basis of the rates applicable to
overdue credit on such operations.

The bank also set up an additional provision for doubtful debts based on an analysis of the estimated realisation value
of several loans.

Provision for general credit risks – recognised in liabilities and covering risks attached to non-payment of loans and
guarantees and acceptances. This provision was calculated by the application of the following general percentages on
the full amount of the value of unmatured credit, including guarantees and acceptances:

1.5% on consumer finance and unspecified loans and advances to customers;

0.5% on mortgage lending on property or property leasing operations, in both cases when the property is for
the borrower’s residence;

1% on other credit.

Additionally, impairment on partners’ loans made to subsidiary companies in the venture capital area was determined
on a coherent basis with the presuppositions used for the valuation of the corresponding investments. Accordingly a
negative transition adjustment of 655,894 was recognised as follows:

(g) This corresponds to the fiscal impact of the transition adjustments resulting from the adopting of IAS 39. The bank
recognised the adjustments originating an impact on the fiscal burden for 2005, in current taxes.

154 Notes to the Bank’s Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2006

.

.

.

.

.

Impairment of credit and provisions for guarantees provided

Credit (135,295)

Guarantees provided (Note 20) 138,255

2,960

Impairment of partners’ loans recognised in “other assets” (658,854)

(655,854)
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156 Financial Statements | Separate Accounts

Separate Balance Sheets at 31 December 2006 and 2005 
(amounts in euros)

Cash and cash equivalents with central banks 4 11,025,457 – 11,025,457 1,440,790 

Cash assets in other credit institutions 5 3,626,739 – 3,626,739 4,449,967

Financial assets held for trading 6 177,025,627 – 177,025,627 46,783,750

Other financial assets recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss 6 348,488,524 – 348,488,524 368,077,265

Available for sale financial assets 8 1,297,997 – 1,297,997 4,601,474 

Loans and advances to credit institutions 9 11,420,616 – 11,420,616 11,669,345

Loans and advances to customers 10 849,332,481 (1,552,946) 847,779,535 716,701,462  

Other tangible assets 11 19,473,346 (8,061,477) 11,411,869 11,650,403

Intangible assets 12 3,933,795 (3,545,949) 387,846 424,117 

Investments in subsidiaries, associated companies 

and joint enterprises 13 128,956,076 – 128,956,076 17,088,434

Current tax assets 14 657,900 – 657,900 657,900

Deferred tax assets 14 4,148,503 – 4,148.503 3,393,901 

Other assets 15 37,840,666 (4,323,324) 33,517,342 166,352,335 

Total Assets 1,597,227,727 (17,483,696) 1,579,744,031 1,353,291,143

ASSETS
Gross

Assets

Notes Provisions,

Impairment and

Amortisation

Net

Assets

Net 

Assets

2006 2005
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Financial liabilities held for trading 7 101,028,814 17,382,371 

Other credit institutions' resources 16 1,080,225,060 915,515,582

Customer resources and other loans 17 108,517,454 117,418,281

Hedge derivatives  7 1,619,826 2,539,975

Provisions 18 11,567,110 9,997,304

Current tax liabilities 14 5,283,028 1,747,729

Deferred tax liabilities 14 954,776 1,091,615

Other liabilities 19 84,004,787 115,221,346 

Total liabilities 1,393,200,855 1,180,914,203

Capital 20 81,250,000 81,250,000 

Own shares 20 (5,999,453) (5,999,453) 

Revaluation reserves 21 4,464,903 4,557,316 

Other reserves and retained earnings 21 76,056,361 73,105,800 

Net income for year 21 30,771,365 19,463,277

Total shareholders' equity 186,543,176 172,376,940

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,579,744,031 1,353,291,143

(amounts in euros)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
Notes 2006 2005



158 Financial Statements | Separate Accounts

Separate Income Statements for the Years ended
31 December 2006 and 2005

(amounts in euros)

Interest and similar income 22 88,860,834 32,985,910 

Interest and similar costs 22 (73,646,971) (22,985,786)

Net-Interest Income 15,213,863 10,000,124 

Income from capital instruments 23 866,240 301,898 

Income from services and commissions 24 42,765,973 35,489,818 

Costs of services and commissions 24 (1,542,748) (1,331,221)

Income from assets and liabilities recognised at 

fair value through profit or loss 25 2,852,807 2,412,802

Income from available for sale financial assets 26 454,950 11,621

Income from foreign exchange revaluations  27 137,744 (210,461)

Income from the disposal of other assets (18.124) (19,496)

Other operating income 28 947,371 1,247,348

Net Operating Income 61,678,076 47,902,433

Employee costs 29 (13,478,344) (12,056,622) 

General administrative expenses 30 (6,741,514) (6,643,,469)

Depreciation for year 11 e 12 (994,832) (1,006,118)

Provisions net of recoveries and cancellations 18 (1,569,806) (2,918,227) 

Value adjustments on loans and advances to customers and from 

other debtors (net of recoveries and cancellations) 18 1,228,084 120,335

Impairment of other financial assets net 

of reversals and recoveries 18 (239,487) (113,125)

Income Before Tax 39,882,177 25,285,207 

Tax

Current 14 (9,904,073) (4,902,152) 

Deferred 14 793,261 (919,778) 

Net Income 30,771,365 19,463,277

Shares in circulation 76,592,000 76,592,000 

Earnings per share 0,40 0,25

2006Notes 2005
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Separate Cash Flow Statements for the Years ended
31 December 2006 and 2005

(amounts in euros)

Cash Flows Generated by Operating Activities

Interest and commissions received 130,245,118 68,444,434

Interest and commissions paid (76,602,646) (23,598,313)

Payment to employees and suppliers (20,511,753) (18,918,160) 

Payment of income tax (6,368,774) (4,662,477) 

Other income 2,429,308 1,707,417

Operating income prior to changes in operating assets 29,191,253 22,972,901 

(Increases) decreases in operating assets

Financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss (107,800,329) 4,454,906 

Available for sale financial assets 3,710,252 (3,222,841)

Loans and advances to credit institutions 243,485 (1,401,481)

Loans and advances to customers (132,369,772) (245,831,853)

Other assets 65,162,372 (28,896,936)

(171,053,992) (274,898,205)

(Increases) decreases in operating liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading 82,726,294 7,076,746 

Other credit institutions' resources 166,171,088 211,030,682

Customer resources and other loans (8,085,720) 28,494,893

Other liabilities (64,958,616) 15,203,443

175,853,046 261,805,764

Net cash from operating activities 33,990,307 9,880,460 

Cash Flows Generated by Investment Activities:

Acquisitions of tangible and intangible assets (738,152) (801,356)

Investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and joint enterprises (8,800,000) –

Dividends received 822,000 260,000

Net cash from investment activities (8.716.152) (541,356) 

Cash Flows Generated by Financing Activities

Payment of dividends (16,512,716) (16,173,724)

Net cash from financing activities (16,512,716) (16,173,724) 

Increase (decrease) net of cash and cash equivalents 8,761,439 (6,834,620) 

Cash and equivalents at beginning of period 5,890,757 12,725,377 

Cash and equivalents at end of period 14,652,196 5,890,757

2006 2005



160 Financial Statements | Separate Accounts

Statement of Changes to Separate Shareholders’ Equity 
for the Years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005

(amounts in euros)

Balances at 31 December 2004 - PCSB 81,250,000 – 4,338,403

Impact of adopting of AAS 33 – (5,999,453) –

Balances at 31 December 2004 - AAS pro forma 81,250,000 (5,999,453)  4,338,403 

Distribution of profit for 2004:

Distribution of dividends – – – 

Transfer to reserves and retained earnings – –  – 

Impact of adopting of IAS 39 as at 01 January 2005 – – –

Valuation of available for sale financial assets: 33

Accruals – – 301,949

Fiscal effect 8 – – (83,036) 

Profit for year 14 – – –

Balances at 31 December 2005 81,250,000 (5,999,453) 4,557,316 

Distribution of profit for 2005:

Distribution of dividends 21 – – – 

Transfer to reserves and retained earnings – – – 

Valuation of available for sale financial assets:

Decreases 8 – – (129,840)

Fiscal effect 14 – – 37,427

Profit for year – – –

Balances at 31 December 2006 81,250,000 (5,999,453) 4,464,903 

CapitalNote Own Shares Revaluation

Reserves
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(amounts in euros)

22.810.194 9,328,907 38,554,153 70,693,254 19,063,713 175,345,370

– _ 848,770 848,770 689,482 (4,461,201)

22,810,194 9,328,907 39,402,923 71,542,024 19,753,195 170,884,169

– _ 983,618 983,618 (17,157,342) (16,173,724)

1,906,371 _ 689,482 2,595,853 (2,595,853) _

– _ (2,015,695) (2,015,695) _ (2,015,695)

– – – – – 301,949

– – – – – (83,036)

– – – – 19,463,277 19,463,277 

24,716,565 9,328,907 39,060,328 73,105,800 19,463,277 172,376,940

– – 1,004,233 1,004,233 (17,516,949) (16,512,716)

1,946,328 – – 1,946,328 (1,946,328) _

– – – _ _ (129,840)

– – – _ _ 37,427

– – – _ 30,771,365 30,771,365

26,662,893 9,328,907 40,064,561 76,056,361 30,771,365 186,543,176

Profit for 

Year

Total

Other Reserves and Retained Earnings

Legal 

Reserve

Free

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings

Total



162 Anexo às Demonstrações Financeiras Individuais em 31 de Dezembro de 2006



1. Introductory Note

Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. (“bank”) was formed by a public deed of 12 November 1987, having absorbed all assets
and liabilities of the Portuguese branch of Manufacturers Hanover Trust Company, in conformity with the terms of Ministerial
Order no. 865-A/87 of 06 November, jointly issued by the Presidency of the Council of Ministers and Ministry of Finance.  

The bank is Caixa Geral de Depósitos (CGD) Group’s investment banking business arm, which includes activities such as
corporate finance, project finance, brokerage, fixed-income, research and venture capital. Its operations are performed by a
branch office in Lisbon and another in Porto, an offshore branch in Madeira and a branch in Spain.

As referred to in Note 20, the majority of the bank’s share capital is owned by Caixa Geral de Depósitos Group company
Gerbanca, SGPS, S.A.

The financial statements, at 31 December 2006, were approved by the board of directors on 26 February 2007.

The bank’s financial statements, at 31 December 2006, still require the approval of its shareholders’ meeting. The board of
directors considers, however, that the said financial statements will be approved without significant alterations.

2. Accounting Policies

The separate financial statements of the bank’s registered office have been combined with those of its branches and
represent the bank’s overall activities. All balances and trading between the registered and branch offices have been
eliminated in this process.

2.1. Presentation Bases

The bank’s financial statements have been prepared on the going concern principle, based on books and accounting
records, kept in conformity with the accounting principles set out in the Adjusted Accounting Standards under the
terms of Bank of Portugal Official Notice 1/2005 of 21 February and Instructions 9/2005 and 23/2004, in accordance
with the competence afforded by no. 3 of Article 115 of the General Credit and Financial Institutions Regime, approved
by Decree Law 298/92 of 31 December.

The Adjusted Accounting Standards generally correspond to the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
adopted by the European Union under European Parliament and Council Regulation (CE) 1606/2002 of 19 July,
transposed into national legislation by Decree Law 35/2005 of 17 February and Bank of Portugal Official Notice 1/2005
of 21 February. Under the terms of Official Notice 1/2005, however, the following exceptions, having an impact on the
bank’s financial statements, exist:

i) Valuation criteria on loans and advances to customers and amounts receivable from other debtors (credit and
accounts receivable) – credits are recognised at their nominal value and may not be reclassified in other
categories and, as such,  recognised at fair value.  Income is recognised by the pro rata temporis rule, in the case
of operations producing residual flows over a period of more than one month, notably interest and commissions;

ii) Whenever applicable, commissions and external costs imputable to contracted operations underlying assets
classified as credit and accounts receivable, should also be periodised during the period of application of the
credits, in accordance with the method referred to in the preceding sub-paragraph;

iii) Provisioning of credit and accounts receivable - the old regime remains in force with definitions of minimum
provisioning levels in accordance with the dispositions of Bank of Portugal Official Notice 3/95, with the
alterations brought in by Bank of Portugal Official Notice 8/03 of 30 June and Bank of Portugal Official Notice
3/2005 of 21 February (Note 2.3. a)). The regime also includes liabilities comprising acceptances, guarantees and
other similar instruments;

iv) Tangible assets must be maintained at cost and cannot, therefore, be recognised at fair value, as permitted
by IAS Standard I6 – tangible fixed assets. The recognition of legally authorised revaluations is permitted, as an
exception in which case the resulting capital gains are recognised in “revaluation reserves”.

The bank submitted its financial statements for the first time, in accordance with the Adjusted Accounting Standards,
in the year ended 31 December 2005, whose transition impact is explained in Note 33. The bank’s separate financial
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Notes to the Bank’s Separate Financial
Statements at 31 December 2006

(amounts in Euros)



statements were, up to 31 December 2004, prepared in conformity with PCSB (Banking System Accounting Plan)
principles, under the terms of Bank of Portugal Instruction 4/96 of 17 June and issue of other dispositions.

2.2. Translation of Balances and Transactions in Foreign Currency

The bank’s accounts have been prepared in accordance with the currency used in the economic context in which it
operates (referred to as “operating currency”), i.e. the euro.

Foreign currency transactions are recognised on the basis of the reference rates in force at the transaction date.
On each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into euros
on the basis of the foreign exchange rate in force. Non-monetary assets, which are valued at their fair value, are
translated on the basis of the exchange rate in force on the last valuation date. Non-monetary assets, recognised at
their historical cost, continue to be recognised at the original exchange rate.

Exchange rate differences determined upon exchange translation are recognised in income for the year, with the
exception of those deriving from non-monetary financial instruments, such as shares, which are classified as being
available for sale and recognised in a specific shareholders’ equity account heading until disposal.

2.3. Financial Instruments 

a) Loans and Advances to Customers and Amounts Receivable from other Debtors
As described in Note 2.1, these assets are recognised in accordance with the dispositions of Bank of Portugal Official
Notice 1/2005. They are, accordingly, recognised at their nominal worth, with their respective income, i.e. interest and
commissions, being recognised over the course of the period of the operations in accordance with the “pro rata
temporis” method, when comprising operations producing residual flows for a period of more than a month.
Whenever applicable, commissions and external costs imputable to contracted operations underlying the assets
classified in this category are also periodised during the period of application of the credits.

The provisioning regime is defined in Bank of Portugal Official Notice 3/95 and includes the following: 

Provision for Overdue Credit and Interest
This provision covers the risks on lending with overdue payments of principal or interest. The provision percentages for
overdue credit and interest are increased in proportion to the period having elapsed since their respective payment date
and whether or not collateralised.    

Provision for Doubtful Loans
This provision caters for the risks of outstanding principal on loans to customers with unpaid principal or interest or
customers with other unpaid liabilities. 

Official Notice no. 3/95 provides the following classification for doubtful loans: 

Outstanding payments on a single credit operation in which at least one of the following conditions applies to
the respective unpaid principal and interest:

(i) when exceeding 25% of the unpaid principal, plus accrued interest;
(ii) when in default for more than:

six months in the case of operations with a maturity of less than five years;

twelve months in the case of operations with a maturity of five or more and less than ten years;

twenty four months in the case of operations with a maturity of ten years or more.

These doubtful loans are provisioned in accordance with the provisioning rate on overdue credit.

Outstanding credit on a single customer, if the overdue credit and interest on all of the operations in respect of the
said customer, plus the outstanding credit described in the preceding sub-paragraph, exceed 25% of the total credit,
plus overdue interest. These doubtful debts are provisioned on the basis of 50% of the average provisions percentage
on overdue credit.
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Provision for General Credit Risks
This provision is recognised in liabilities and covers the risk of non-payment of loans and other risks, such as the
provision of guarantees and securities, deriving from the bank’s activity. The amount of the provision is calculated on
the application of the following general percentages on the full amount of the value of unmatured credit, including
guarantees and acceptances:

1.5% on consumer finance and unspecified loans and advances to customers;

0.5% on mortgage lending on property or property leasing operations, in both cases when the property is for
the borrower’s residence;

1% for other credit.

Provisions increases ceased to be tax deductible from 01 January 2003. The effect on income is recognised in the
“provisions net of recoveries and cancellations” account heading in the income statement. 

b) Other Financial Assets
Other financial assets are recognised at their respective fair value at the agreement date, plus the costs directly
attributable to the transaction. These assets are initially recognised in one of the following categories defined in IAS
Standard 39:

i) Financial Assets Recognised at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
This category includes:

Financial assets held for trading, which essentially include the acquisition of securities with the objective of
realising gains on the basis of short term market price fluctuations. This category also includes financial
derivatives, excluding those used for hedge accounting requirements; and,

Financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss (“Fair Value Option”).

The European Union endorsed the revision of IAS Standard 39 (including the revision of the “Fair Value Option”), in
November 2005, mandatory, from 01 January 2006.  

The bank, up to the said date, could recognise any financial asset, in the said category, provided that it was irrevocably
classified from its time of initial recognition. Starting 01 January 2006, the use of the “fair value option” is limited to
situations whose application results in the production of more relevant financial information, such as:

If its application eliminates or significantly reduces an inconsistency in recognition or measurement 
(i.e. “accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise occur as a result of the measurement of assets and liabilities
or recognises the respective gains and losses, in an inconsistent manner:

Groups of financial assets, financial liabilities or both which are managed and when the performance thereof is
assessed on a fair value basis, in accordance with the formally documented risk and investment management
strategies; and when information on the group is distributed internally to management bodies.

It is also possible  to classify financial instruments containing one or more embedded derivatives in this category,
unless:

The embedded derivatives do not significantly modify the cash flows which would, otherwise, be required
under the contract;

It is clear, with little or no analysis, that the separation of the implicit derivatives should not be realised.

As a result of the revision under the scope of the “fair value option”, the bank reclassified its commercial paper whose
book value, at 31 December 2005, totalled 26,919,006 from “other assets recognised at fair value through profit or
loss” to “loans and advances to customers”.

Financial assets classified in this category are recognised at fair value, with gains and losses generated by their subsequent
valuation being recognised in income for the year in the “income from assets and liabilities recognised at fair value through
profit or loss” account heading. Interest is recognised in the appropriate “interest and similar income” account headings.
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ii) Loans and Accounts Receivable
These are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments, not quoted on an active market and not included in
any of the other financial asset categories. Owing to the restriction imposed under Official Notice 1/2005, this category
only includes amounts receivable from other financial institutions.

These assets are initially recognised at fair value, less the eventual commissions included in the effective rate, plus all
incremental costs directly attributable to the transaction. The assets are subsequently recognised in the balance sheet
at their amortised cost less eventual impairment losses.

Interest Recognition
Interest is recognised on the basis of the effective rate method which enables the amortised cost to be calculated and
the interest split over the period of the operations. The effective rate is the rate that, being used to discount the
estimated future cash flows associated with the financial instrument, enables the current value to be matched with the
value of the financial instrument on the date of the initial recognition.

iii) Available for Sale Financial Assets 
This category includes variable-income securities not classified as assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss,
including stable financial investments in addition to other financial instruments initially recognised herein and not
classifiable in the other categories of the above referred to Standard IAS 39.

Available for sale financial assets are recognised at fair value, with the exception of shareholders’ equity instruments not
quoted on an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and which continue to be recognised at
cost. Revaluation gains or losses are recognised directly in shareholders’ equity in the “fair value reserve”. At the time of
sale or if impairment is determined, the accumulated fair value changes are transferred to income or costs for the year. 

Dividends on own equity instruments classified in this category are recognised as income, in the income statement,
when the bank’s right to receive them has been established.

Fair Value
As referred to above, financial assets classifiable in financial assets categories recognised at fair value through profit or
loss and available for sale financial assets are recognised at fair value.

The fair value of a financial instrument comprises the amount at which an asset or financial liability can be sold or
liquidated between independent, informed parties, interested in realising the transaction under normal market
conditions.

The fair value of financial assets is determined by a CGD Group body which is independent from the trading function,
based on the following criteria:

Closing price at balance sheet date, for instruments traded on active markets;

The following valuation methods and techniques are, inter alia, used for debt instruments not traded on active
markets (including unlisted securities or securities with low liquidity levels):

i) Bid prices published by financial information services such as Bloomberg and Reuters, including
market prices available on recent transactions;

ii) Reference bid prices obtained from financial institutions operating as market-makers;

iii) Internal valuation models based on market data which would be used to define a price for the
financial instrument, reflecting market interest rates and volatility and liquidity and credit risk
associated with the instrument.

c) Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised at the agreement date at their respective fair value, less the costs directly attributable
to the transaction. Liabilities are classified in the following categories:

i) Financial Liabilities Held for Trading
Financial liabilities held for trading comprise the negative revaluation of financial derivatives recognised at their fair
value.
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ii) Other Financial Liabilities
This category includes other credit institutions’ and customer resources and liabilities incurred on payments of services.

These financial liabilities are valued at their amortised cost. 

d) Derivatives and Hedge Accounting
The bank performs derivative operations as part of its activity to provide for its customers’ requirements and reduce its
exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate and price fluctuations.

Financial derivatives are recognised at their fair value on the date of the agreement. They are also recognised in off-
balance sheet accounts at their respective notional value

Financial derivatives are subsequently measured by their respective fair value. Fair value is determined:

On the basis of prices obtained in active markets (e.g. futures trading in organised markets);

On the basis of models incorporating valuation techniques accepted in the market, included discounted cash
flows and options valuation models.

Embedded Derivatives
Financial instruments embedded in other financial instruments are separated from the base agreement and processed
autonomously under IAS Standard 39, whenever:

The embedded derivative’s economic characteristics and risks are not closely related with the base agreement
defined in IAS Standard 39; and

The full amount of the combined financial instrument is not recognised at fair value, with fair value changes
being recognised in the income statement.

Hedge Derivatives
These derivatives are designed to cover the bank’s exposure to a specific risk attached to its activity. Classification as
hedge derivatives and use of the hedge accounting concept, as described below, is subject to compliance with the rules
of IAS Standard 39.

The bank, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, only employed hedges on the changes in the fair value of financial
instruments recognised in the balance sheet as “fair value hedges”. 

The bank prepares formal documentation, for all hedge operations, at the beginning of the operation, to include the
following aspects:

Risk and strategy management objectives associated with the realisation of the hedge operation, in accordance
with the hedge policies defined by the bank;

Description of hedged risk(s);

Identification and description of hedged and hedge financial instruments;

Hedge operation effectiveness appraisal method and frequency of operation.

Hedge effectiveness tests are periodically performed and documented, using a comparison between the change in fair
value of the hedge instrument and hedged item (part attributable to hedged risk). With the aim of enabling the use of
hedge accounting under IAS Standard 39, the ratio should be between a range of 80%-125%. Prospective effectiveness
tests are also performed in order to demonstrate the hedges’ expected future effectiveness.

Hedge derivatives are recognised at fair value, with the results being determined daily and recognised in income and costs
for the year. If the hedge is seen to be effective, the bank will also recognise the change in fair value of the hedged item,
attributable to the hedged risk, in income for the year. The impact of these valuations is recognised in the “income from
assets and liabilities recognised at fair value through profit or loss” account headings.  In the case of derivatives such as interest
rate swaps which are associated with an interest component, the periodisation of interest for the period in progress and
liquidated flows are recognised in “interest and similar income” and “interest and similar costs" in the income statement.

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t
| 2

00
6 

  

167Notes to the Bank’s Separate Financial Statements at 31 December 2006

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.



Positive and negative revaluations of hedge derivatives are recognised in assets and liabilities, respectively, in specific
account headings.

Valuations of hedged items are recognised in the account headings in which such assets and liabilities are recognised.

Trading Derivatives
Trading derivatives are all financial derivatives that are not associated with effective hedge operations in accordance
with IAS Standard 39, including:

Derivatives taken out to hedge assets or liabilities risks recognised at fair value through profit or loss, thus
rendering hedge accounting unnecessary;

Derivatives taken out to hedge risk which do not comprise effective cover under IAS Standard 39;

Derivatives taken out for trading purposes.

Hedge derivatives are recognised at fair value, with the results being determined daily and recognised in income and
costs for the year. The impact of these valuations is recognised in the “income from assets and liabilities recognised at
fair value through profit or loss” account headings. In the case of derivatives, such as interest rate swaps, which are
associated with an interest component, the periodisation of interest for the period in progress and liquidated flows are
recognised in “interest and similar income” and “interest and similar costs" in the income statement. Up to December
2005, the income determined was fully recognised in the “income from assets and liabilities recognised at fair value
through profit or loss” account headings.

Positive and negative revaluations are recognised in the “financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss”
and “financial liabilities recognised at fair value through profit or loss” account headings, respectively. 

e) Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
The bank periodically analyses impairment on its financial assets recognised at amortised cost, notably loans and
advances to credit institutions.

Signs of impairment are identified individually.

The following events may comprises signs of impairment:

Failure to comply with contractual clauses, i.e. arrears of interest and principal;

Debtor or debt issuing entities’ significant financial difficulties;

Existence of a high probability of a declaration of bankruptcy by the debtor or debt issuing entity;

Provision of facilities to a debtor in financial difficulties which would not be given under normal circumstances;

Historical records of collections suggesting that the nominal value will never be fully recovered;

Data indicating a measurable reduction of the estimated value of the future cash flows of a group of financial
assets since original registration, although such a reduction cannot be identified in the group’s separate financial
assets.

Whenever signs of impairment on individually analysed assets are identified, the eventual impairment loss comprises
the difference between the book value at the time of analysis and current value of future cash flows expected to be
received (recoverable value), discounted on the basis of the asset’s effective original interest rate.

Available for Sale Financial Assets 
As referred to in Note 2.3. b), available for sale financial assets are recognised at fair value, with fair value changes
being directly recognised in shareholders’ equity in the “fair value reserve”. 

Whenever there is objective evidence of impairment, the accumulated capital losses which have been recognised in the
fair value reserve shall be transferred to costs for the year in the form of impairment losses.
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In addition to the signs of impairment defined for assets recognised at amortised cost, IAS Standard 39 provides for
the following specific signs of impairment in variable-income assets:

Information on significant changes having an adverse impact on the technological, market, economic or legal
environment in which the issuing entity operates, indicating that the cost of the investment may not be
recovered;

A prolonged, significant decline in market value at below cost.

On each reference date for financial statements an analysis of the existence of impairment losses on available for sale
financial assets, is carried out.  

Impairment losses on variable-income assets cannot be reversed and therefore, eventual potential capital gains
originated after the recognition of impairment losses, are recognised in the fair value reserve.

The bank also periodically performs impairment analyses on financial assets recognised at cost, notably unlisted own
equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. The recoverable value, in this case, comprises the best
estimate of future flows receivable from the asset, discounted at a rate which adequately reflects the risk associated
with holding the asset.

The determination of the amount of impairment loss is directly recognised in income for the year. Impairment losses
on such assets cannot be reversed.

2.4. Other Tangible Assets

Except for assets acquired up to 1998, these are recognised at cost, less depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The costs of repair, maintenance and other expenses associated with their use are recognised as a cost for the
year, in the “other administrative expenses” account heading

The bank revalued its fixed assets in 1998, under Decree Law 31/98 of 11 February. As permitted under IFRS Standard
1, the book value incorporating the effect of the referred to revaluation was considered as a cost in the transition to
the IFRS, as the proceeds, at the time thereof generally comprised cost, or amortised cost, in accordance with the IFRS,
adjusted to take alterations to price indices into account.

Depreciation is calculated and recognised as a cost for the year, on a systematic basis, during the asset’s estimated
useful life, comprising the period in which it is expected to be available for use, i.e.:

Land is not depreciated.

Analyses of evidence of impairment on tangible assets are periodically performed in accordance with IAS Standard 36
– “Assets impairment”. An impairment loss is recognised in the annual income statement whenever the net book value
of tangible assets exceeds their recoverable value. Impairment losses can be reversed and also have an impact on
income for the period if the asset’s recoverable value increases in the following periods.

The bank periodically assesses the adequacy of the estimated useful life of its tangible assets.  
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Years of useful life

Property 50

Equipment:

Furniture and materials 4 - 10

Transport material 4

IT Equipment 3 - 4

Interior installations 3 - 10

Security equipment 4 - 10

Machinery and tools 5 - 10



2.5. Leasing Operations

Leasing operations are recognised as follows:

Lessee
Leased assets are recognised at fair value in assets and liabilities, with the processing of the respective instalment
payments.

Leasing agreement instalments are split up in accordance with the respective financial plan, pursuant to which liabilities
are reduced by the corresponding payment of principal. Interest paid is recognised as a financial cost.

Lessor
Leased assets are recognised in the balance sheet as loans, repaid by capital instalments set out in the financial
agreements schedule. Interest included in the instalments is recognised as financial income.

2.6. Intangible Assets

This account heading essentially comprises the costs, development or preparation for use of software used for the
development of the bank’s operations. Intangible assets are recognised at cost, less amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. 

Depreciation is recognised as a cost for the year, on a systematic basis, throughout the assets’ estimated useful life for
a period of between 3 - 6 years.

Expenses on software maintenance are recognised as a cost for the year in which they are incurred.

2.7. Investments in Subsidiaries, Associated Companies 
and Joint Enterprises

This account heading includes investments in companies over whose current management the bank has effective
control, with the aim of obtaining economic benefits from their activities and referred to as “subsidiaries”. Control
normally comprises more than 50% of the share capital or voting rights.

These assets are recognised at cost and periodic impairment analyses are realised.

Dividends are recognised as income for the year in which they are distributed by subsidiaries.

2.8. Tax on Profit

The bank pays tax under the regime set out in the Portuguese Tax Code on the Income of Collective Persons (IRC). The
Madeira Offshore Branch, however, is exempt from IRC up until 31 December 2011, under article 33 of the Statute of
Fiscal Benefits. For the purposes of the application of this exemption, in accordance with the dispositions of article 33
A of the Statute of Fiscal Benefits, at least 85% of the profit attributable to the entity’s global activity should derive
from the performance of activities outside the institutional scope of the Madeira Free Zone. 

The total amount of tax on profit recognised in the income statement encompasses current and deferred tax. 

Current tax is calculated on the basis of fiscal income for the year, which is different from accounting income owing
to adjustments to taxable profit resulting from costs or income which are not relevant for fiscal purposes or only for
consideration in other periods.

Deferred tax comprises the impact on the tax to be recovered/paid in future periods owing to temporary deductible or
taxable differences between the book value of assets and liabilities and their fiscal basis, used to determine taxable
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are normally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, whereas deferred tax assets are
only recognised up to the amount by which the existence of future taxable profit, permitting the use of the
corresponding deductible tax differences or fiscal losses, is probable. Deferred taxes are not, however, recognised in
the following situations:
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Temporary differences resulting from goodwill;

Temporary differences originating from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in transactions which do
not affect accounting income or taxable profit;

Temporary differences on non-distributed profit by subsidiaries and associated companies, to the extent that the
bank is able to control their reversal which will probably not occur in the foreseeable future.

The principal situations originating temporary differences on a bank level, comprise provisions not accepted for fiscal
purposes, deferred commissions, depreciation not accepted on legal revaluations of tangible assets and revaluations of
financial derivatives.

Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates expected to be in force on the date of reversal of the
temporary differences, comprising the approved or substantially approved rates, at the date of the balance sheet.

Tax on income (current or deferred) is recognised in income for the year, except for cases in which the originating
transactions have been recognised in other shareholders’ equity account headings (e.g. revaluations of available for sale
financial assets). In such cases the corresponding tax is also recognised as a charge to shareholders’ equity, and does
not affect income for the year.

2.9. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is set up when there is a current (legal or constructive) obligation resulting from past events involving the
probable future expenditure of resources and when this may be reliably determined. The amount of the provision comprises
the best estimate of the amount to be paid to liquidate the liability at the date of the balance sheet. 

When not probable, the future expenditure of resources is considered to be a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities need
only be disclosed, unless the possibility of their payment is remote.

Provisions for other risks are for fiscal, legal and other contingencies.

2.10. Employee Benefits

The bank does not have any retirement pensions liabilities to its employees, who are covered by the national social
security regime, owing to the fact that it is not a signatory to the Collective Wage Bargaining Agreement for the
Banking Sector.

The bank, however, at its own discretion, set up the “Fundo de Pensões Caixa-Banco de Investimento” (Fund), in 1987,
to provide its employees with additional old age, disability and survivors’ retirement pensions. The aim of the fund is
to guarantee the payment of old age, disability and survivors’ retirement pensions to employees pursuant to the terms
of the agreement. The fund is managed by CGD Pensões – Sociedade Gestora de Fundos de Pensões, S.A.

The bank pays a percentage of 3.5% of each employee’s annual wages into the fund. Pension costs, in 2006 and 2005
were 330,359 and 296,838 respectively (Note 29).

The bank does not have any liabilities other than the above referred to contributions owing to the fact that this is a
defined contribution plan.

Short term benefits, including productivity bonuses paid to employees, are recognised in “employee costs” for the
respective period, on an accrual basis.

2.11. Commissions

As referred to in Note 2.3, commissions received on credit operations and other financial instruments, i.e. commissions
charged for originating operations, are recognised as income during the period of the operation.  

Commissions on services performed are usually recognised as income during the period of performance of the service
or as a lump sum if resulting from single acts.
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2.12. Securities and Other Items Held Under Custody

Securities and other items held under custody, notably customers' securities, are recognised in off-balance sheet
account headings at their nominal value.

2.13. Cash and Equivalents

For the purposes of the preparation of cash flow statements , the bank considers “cash and equivalents” to be the
total amount of the “cash and cash equivalents with central banks” and the “cash equivalents in other credit
institutions” account headings.

2.14. Critical Accounting Estimates and most Relevant Judgemental
Aspects in the Application of Accounting Policies

In the application of the above referred to accounting policies, the bank’s board of directors must produce estimates.
The estimates with the greatest impact in the bank’s separate financial statements include those set out below.

DETERMINATION OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS
As regards provisions for loans and advances to customers, accounts receivable and guarantees and acceptances given,
the bank complies with the minimum limits defined by the Bank of Portugal (Note 2.3). However, whenever considered
necessary, such provisions are complemented to reflect the bank’s estimate of the risk of non-recoverability associated
with customers. The assessment is produced on a separate basis by the bank, using its specific knowledge of its
customers’ status and the guarantees associated with the operations in question.

VALUATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT TRADED ON ACTIVE MARKETS
Under IAS Standard 39, the bank calculates the fair value of all financial instruments, except for those recognised at amortised
cost. The valuation models and techniques described in Note 2.3 are used for the valuation of financial instruments not traded
on liquid markets. The valuations obtained comprise the best estimate of the fair value of the referred to instruments, at
the date of the balance sheet. As referred to in Note 2.3. to guarantee an adequate separation between functions, the
valuation of such financial instruments is determined by a body that is independent from the trading function.

DETERMINATION OF TAX ON PROFIT
Tax on profit (current and deferred) is determined by the bank on the basis of the rules defined by the current fiscal
environment. In several cases, however, fiscal legislation may not be sufficiently clear and objective and may give rise
to different interpretations. The amounts recognised in such cases represent the best understanding of the responsible
bank bodies on the correctness of the bank’s operations although this may be queried by the fiscal authorities. 

2.15. Adopting of New Standards (IAS/IFRS) or Revision of Already
Issued Standards 

Except for subject matters regulated by the Bank of Portugal, such as those referred to in Note 2.1, the bank, in 2006,
used the Standards and Interpretations of the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which are relevant to its operations and effective for the periods
starting 01 January 2006, provided that they have been approved by the European Union.

The only alteration having an impact on the bank’s accounts was the adopting of the revised version of the “Fair Value
Option” in respect of assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss, as referred to in note 2.3 b). 

At the date of the board of directors’ approval of these financial statements, based on the bank’s activity, the relevant
Standards and Interpretations available for advance application are as follows:

New Standards:
– “IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments – Disclosures”. The bank shall apply this standard starting 01 January 2007.
– “IFRS 8 – Operating Segments”. The application of this standard is mandatory starting 01 January 2009.

New Interpretations:
– “IFRIC 9 - Revaluation of Embedded Derivatives”. The application of this standard is mandatory for the annual periods
starting from 30 June 2006.
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The referred to standards only have an effect in terms of disclosures and the interpretation is in line with the procedure
already being followed by the bank. The board of directors accordingly anticipates that the adopting of these Standards and
Interpretations in future periods will not have a materially significant effect on the bank’s financial statements.

3. Report by Segments

To comply with the requirements of IAS Standard 14, the bank has adopted business segments representing its areas
of activity by type of origination, designed, as a whole, to ensure a dynamic investment banking business platform i.e.: 

Corporate Finance
Including debt and equity financial advisory services in addition to project finance activities.

Trading and sales
Including treasury assets and liabilities trading and management.  

Brokerage
Including financial intermediation. 

Commercial Banking 
Including domestic and international transversal business origination.

Other
Including other activities not classifiable in any of the former categories.
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Information on income distribution and the principal balance sheet account headings and business lines in 2006 and
2005, is set out below:

174 Notes to the Bank’s Separate Financial Statements at 31 December 2006

Interest and similar income    15,684,278 55,898,654 316,222 16,800,184 161,496 88,860,834 

Interest and similar costs     (8,702,858) (54,327,247) (212,294) (10,251,149) (153,423) (73,646,971) 

Net interest income 6,981,420 1,571,407 103,928 6,549,035 8,073 15,213,863

Income from capital instruments   _ 866,240 _ _ _ 866,240

Income from services and commissions     22,597,239 1,142,687 9,397,441 9,513,073 115,533 42,765,973 

Costs of services and commissions     (70,890) (67,376) (1,379,857) (6,959) (17,666) (1,542,748)

Income from financial operations     (733,025) 3,836,339 (14,690) 356,877 _ 3,445,501 

Income from the disposal of other assets _ _ _ _ (18,124) (18,124) 

Other operating income    469,296 43,077 227,534 206,791 673 947,371 

22,262,620 5,820,967 8,230,428 10,069,782 80,416 46,646,213

Net operating income 29,244,040 7,392,374 8,334,356 16,618,817 88,489 61,678,076

Provisions net of recoveries and cancellations     (926,818) 8,052 2,030 (410,772) (242,298) (1,569,806) 

Value adjustments associated with loans 

and advances to customers and amounts   

receivable from other debtors _ _ _ 1,228,084 _ 1,228,084 

Impairment of other financial assets 

net of reversals and recoveries  (225,207) _ _ (14,280) _ (239,487) 

(1,152,025) 8,052 2,030 803,032 (242,298) (581,209)

28,092,015 7,400,426 8,336,386 17,421,849 (153.809) 61,096,867

Others costs and income    (30,325,502)

Net income for year   30,771,365

Financial assets held for trading _ 176,957,034 68,593 _ _ 177,025,627 

Other financial assets recognised at  

fair value through profit or loss     _ 335,011,621 _ 13,476,903 _ 348,488,524 

Available for sale financial assets     _ _ 7,297 _ 1,290,700 1,297,997 

Loans and advances to customers     383,813,594 _ 7,926,883 447,870,857 8,168,201 847,779,535

Financial liabilities held for trading _ 101,028,814 _ _ _ 101,028,814

Other credit institutions’ resources 262,450,786 367,924,729 5,472,277 315,516,452 128,860,816 1,080,225,060

Customer resources and other loans 8,691,629 12.176,076 12,352,248 75,297,501 _ 108,517,454

Hedge derivatives _ 1,619,826 _ _ _ 1,619,826 

Total net assets     383,813,594 538,060,925 8,002,774 461,417,949 188,448,789 1,579,744,031

Corporate

Finance

Trading and

Sales

Brokerage Commercial

Banking 

Other Total

2006

I

II

III

Total



Interest and similar costs were split up over the various business lines on the basis of the average value of the respective
asset allocations to the said segments.
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quadro 2006

quadro 2005

Interest and similar income    8,685,837 12,038,273 184,013 11,968,906 108,881 32,985,910 

Interest and similar costs     (6,052,608) (8,388,708) (128,227) (8,340,371) (75,872) (22,985,786)

Net interest income 2,633,229 3,649,565 55,786 3,628,535 33,009 10,000,124

Income from capital instruments   _ 301,898 _ _ _ 301,898

Income from services and commissions     20,639,501 267,023 7,551,724 7,008,036 23,534 35,489,818 

Costs of services and commissions    (930) (103,404) (1,.184,803) (6,487) (35,597) (1,331,221)

Income from financial operations     (456,255) 2,031,496 (6,915) 881,993 (236,357) 2,213,962 

Income from the disposal of other assets _ _ _ _ (19,496) (19,496) 

Other operating income    200,796 (111) 41,610 60,016 945,037 1,247,348 

20,383,112 2,496,902 6,401,616 7,943,558 677,121 37,902,309

Net operating income 23,016,341 6,146,467 6,457,402 11,572,093 710,130 47,902,433

Provisions net of recoveries and cancellations     (1,320,903) (34) (2,809) (1,322,361) (272,120) (2,918,227) 

Value adjustments associated with loans 

and advances to customers and amounts  

receivable from other debtors _ _ _ 120,335 _ 120,335 

Impairment of other financial assets  

net of reversals and recoveries (21,124) _ _ (92,001) _ (113,125) 

(1,342,027) (34) (2,809) (1,294,027) (272,120) (2,911,017)

21,674,314 6,146,433 6,454,593 10,278,066 (438,010) 44,991,416

Others costs and income    (25,528,139)

Net income for year  19,463,277

Financial assets held for trading 28,865,244 17,918,506 _ _ _ 46,783,750 

Other financial assets recognised at  

fair value through profit or loss     _ 326,109,608 _ 41,967,657 _ 368,077,265 

Available for sale financial assets     _ 4,601,474 _ _ _ 4,601,474 

Loans and advances to customers    300,129,402 _ 8,942,006 399,797,214 7,832,840 716,701,462

Financial liabilities held for trading _ 17,382,371 _ _ _ 17,382,371

Other credit institutions’ resources 221,847,412 249,888,352 66,540,043 297,902,446 79,337,329 915,515,582

Customer resources and other loans 20,527,258 8,152 6,694,254 90,188,617 _ 117,418,281

Hedge derivatives _ 2,539,975 _ _ _ 2,539,975 

Total net assets     328,994,646 366,648,183 98,677,365 441,782,524 117,188,425 1,353,291,143

Corporate

Finance

Trading and

Sales

Brokerage Commercial

Banking 

Other Total

2005

I

II

III

Total



Information on income distribution and the principal balance sheet headings by geographical markets in 2006 and
2005, is set out below:

176 Notes to the Bank’s Separate Financial Statements at 31 December 2006

Portugal Rest of

European

Union 

Total

2006

I

II

III

Total

87,224,978

(72,620,664)

14,604,314

866,240 

42,068,955

(1,542,748)

3,455,501

(18,124)

946,699

45,766,523

60,370,837

(1,052,553)

1,228,084

(239,487)

(63,956)

60,306,881

177,025,627

348,488,524

1,297,997

787,058,746 

101,028,814

1,019,542,587

108,517,454

1,619,826

1,518,961,618

Interest and similar income

Interest and similar costs

Net interest income

Income from capital instruments

Income from services and commissions

Costs of services and commissions

Income from financial operations

Income from the disposal of other assets

Other operating income

Net operating income

Provisions net of recoveries and cancellations

Value adjustments associated with loans and advances to 

customers and amounts receivable from other debtors

Impairment of other financial assets net of reversals 

and recoveries

Others costs and income

Net income for year

Financial assets held for trading

Other financial assets recognised at  fair value through profit or loss

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to customers

Financial liabilities held for trading

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Total net assets

88,860,834

(73,646,971)

15,213,863

866,240 

42,765,973

(1,542,748)

3,455,501

(18,124)

947,371

46,464,213

61,678,076

(1,569,806)

1,228,084

(239,487)

(581,209)

61,096,867

(30,325,502)

30,771,365

177,025,627

348,488,524

1,297,997

847,779,535 

101,028,814

1,080,225,060

108,517,454

1,619,826

1,579,744,031

1,635,856

(1,026,307)

609,549

_ 

697,018

_

_

_

672

697,690

1,307,239

(517,253)

_

_

(517,253)

789,986

_

_

_

60,720,789 

_

60,682,473

_

_

60,782,413



4. Cash and Deposits with Central Banks

This account heading comprises the following:

The “sight deposits with central banks” account heading includes amounts deposited with the Bank of Portugal to
provide for the demands of the “Minimum Reserve Requirements of the System of European Central Banks” (SEBC).
Interest is paid on these deposits which comprise 2% of the deposits and debt securities with a maturity of up to two
years, excluding deposits and the debt securities of institutions subject to SEBC minimum reserve requirements.
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quadro 2006

quadro 2005

Portugal Rest of

European

Union 

Total

2005

I

II

III

Total

32,428,315

(22,620,454)

9,807,861

301,898 

35,356,705

(1,331,221)

2,213,962

(19,496)

1,247,361

37,769,209

47,577,070

(2,741,503)

120,335

(113,125)

(2,734,293)

44,842,777

46,783,750

368,077,265

4,601.474

698,930,896 

17,382,371

897,798,137

117,418,281

2,539,975

1,353,410,617

Interest and similar income

Interest and similar costs

Net interest income

Income from capital instruments

Income from services and commissions

Costs of services and commissions

Income from financial operations

Income from the disposal of other assets

Other operating income

Net operating income

Provisions net of recoveries and cancellations

Value adjustments associated with loans and advances to 

customers and amounts receivable from other debtors

Impairment of other financial assets net of reversals 

and recoveries

Others costs and income

Net income for year

Financial assets held for trading

Other financial assets recognised at  fair value through profit or loss

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to customers

Financial liabilities held for trading

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Total net assets

32,985,910

(22,985,786)

10,000,124

301,898 

35,489,818

(1,331,221)

2,213,962

(19,496)

1,247,348

37,902,309

47,902,433

(2,918,227)

120,335

(113,125)

(2,911,017)

44,991,416

(25,528,139)

19.463.277

46,783,750

368,077,265

4,601,474

716,701,462 

17,382,371

915,515,582

117,418,281

2,539,975

1,353,291,143

557,595

(365,332)

192,263

_ 

133,113

_

_

_

(13)

133,100

325,363

(176,724)

_

_

(176,724)

148,639

_

_

_

17,770,566 

_

17,717,445

_

_

17,880,526

Cash 1,846 1,846

Sight deposits with central banks 11,023,611 1,438,944

11,025,457 1,440,790

2006 2005



5. Cash Assets with Credit Institutions

This account heading comprises the following:

6. Financial Assets Held for Trading and Other Financial
Assets Recognised at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

These account headings comprise the following:

The bank, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, held debt securities (pledged) with a nominal value of 47,744,999 and
45,000,000 respectively (Note 31).
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Cheques pending collection

Portugal 102 1,903

Sight deposits

Portugal 2,553,883 3,367,828

Abroad 1,072,754 1,080,236

3,626,637 4,448,064

3,626,739 4,449,967

2006 2005

Held for

trading 

Recognised at fair

value through profit

or loss 

Total

2005

_

_

15,988,996 

12,876,248

28,865,244

577,827

_

577,827

_

_

17,340,679

46,783,750

Debt instruments

Public issuers:

Bonds

International financial organisations

Other issuers:

Bonds and other securities:

Issued by resident entities

Issued by non-resident entities

Capital instruments

Issued by resident entities

Issued by non-resident entities

Investment units

Issued by resident entities

Derivatives with positive fair value   

(Note 7)

48,331,776

1,263,632

140,165,527 

203,746,351

393,507,286

744,642

3,268,408

4,013,050

_

_

17,340,679

414,861,015

48,331,776

1,263,632

124,176,531 

190,870,103

364,642,042

166,815

3,268,408

3,435,223

_

_

_

368,077,265

Held for

trading 

Recognised at fair

value through

profit or loss 

Total

2006

_

_

22,688,270 

2,601,925

25,290,195

54,380,563

68,113

54,448,676

_

_

97,286,756

177,025,627

12,082,817 

1,267,573

121,781,219 

235,647,114

370,778,723

54,380,563

68,113

54,,448,676

2,999,996

2,999,996

97,286,756

525,514,151

12,082,817 

1,267,573

99,092,949 

233,045,189

345,488,528

_

_

_

2,999,996

2,999,996

_

348,488,524



7. Financial Derivates
These operations were valued in conformity with the criteria set out in Note 2.3. d), as at 31 December 2006 and 2005.
Information on these account headings as at 31 December 2003, is set out below:  Information on the notional and
book value thereof, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, is set out below:

The book value of the assets classified as hedged items, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, totalled 15,548,677 and
17,193,459 respectively, including 1,435,867 and 2,409,751 (Note 10), respectively, in respect of value adjustments. 

The book value of the hedged item, at 31.12.06, totalled 17,193,459 including 2,409,751 (Note 17) in respect of
value adjustments.

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t
| 2

00
6 

  

179Notes to the Bank’s Separate Financial Statements at 31 December 2006

Financial derivatives       

OTC    

- Swaps

Interest rate    11,375,119,394 18,910,917 11,394,030,311 93,007,709 (90,294,849) (1,619,826) 1,093,034 

- Caps     809,211,306 _ 809,211,306 2,218,868 (2,206,412) _ 12,456 

- Floors     726,866,350 _ 726,886,350 2,060,179 (2,060,179) _ _ 

- Options    95,075,346 _ 95,075,346    _ (6,467,374) _ (6,467,374) 

13,006,272,396 18,910,917 13,025,183,313 97,286,756 (101,028,814) (1,619,826) (5,361,884)

Stock market   

- Futures

Interest rate   11,500,000 _ 11,500,000 _ _ _ _

13,017,772,396 18,910,917 13,036,683,313 97,286,756 (101,028,814) (1,619,826) (5,361,884)

Trading
derivatives 

Hedge
derivatives 

Total Assets held
for trading 

Liabilities
held for
trading 

Hedge
derivatives 

Total

2006

Notional amount Book value 

Financial derivatives       

OTC    

- Swaps

Interest rate    948,966,122 14,574,700 963,540,822 17,082,400 (17,141,566) (2,539,975) (2,599,141) 

- Caps     347,031,822 _ 347,031,822 258,279 (240,805) _ 17,474 

- Floors     280,132,690 _ 280,132,690 _ _ _ _ 

1,576,130,634 14,574,700 1,590,705,334 17,340,679 (17,382,371) (2,539,975) (2,581,667)

Stock market   

- Futures

Interest rate   23,095,346 _ 23,095,346 _ _ _ _

1,599,225,980 14,574,700 1,613,800,680 17,340,679 (17,382,371) (2,539,975) (2,581,667)

Trading
derivatives 

Hedge
derivatives 

Total Assets held
for trading 

Liabilities
held for
trading 

Hedge
derivatives 

Total

2005

Notional amount Book value 



Information on the distribution of financial derivatives operations, at 31 December 2006 and 2005 by periods to
maturity (by notional amounts) is set out below:
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Financial derivatives

OTC

- Swaps

Interest rate

Trading    _ 52,451,864 12,594,887 1,001,933,027 10,308,139,616 11,375,119,394

Hedge    _ _ _ _ 18,910,917 18,910,917 

_ 52,451,864 12,594,887 1,001,993,027 10,327,050,533 11,394,030,311

- Caps

Trading     _ 13,996,350 _ 426,772,556 368,472,400 809,211,306

- Floors

Trading     _ 13,996,350 _ 402,900,000 310,000,000 726,866,350 

- Options

Trading    95,075,346 _ _ _ _ 95,075,346 

95,075,346 80,384,564 12,594,887 1,831,605,583 11,005,522,933 13,025,183,313

Stock market    

- Futures

Interest rate

Trading    11,500,000 _ _ _ _ 11,500,000 

106,575,346 80,384,564 12,594,887 1,831,605,583 11,005,522,933 13,036,683,313

<= 3 months >3 months

<= 6 months 

> 6 months

<= 1 year 

> 1 year

<= 5 years 

5 years Total

2006

Financial derivatives

OTC

- Swaps

Interest rate

Trading       20,000,000 14,993,989 41,530,917 635,751,885 236,689,331 948,966,122 

Hedge    _ _ _ _ 14,574,700 14,574,700 

20,000,000 14,993,989 41,530,917 635,751,885 251,264,031 963,540,822

- Caps

Trading                            _ _ _ 280,132,690 66,899,132 347,031,822

- Floors

Trading         _ _ _ 280,132,690 _ 280,132,690 

20,000,000 14,993,989 41,530,917 1,196,017,265 318,163,163 1,590,705,334

Stock market   

- Futures

Interest rate

Trading         23,095,346 _ _ _ _ 23,095,346 

43,095,346 14,993,989 41,530,917 1,196,017,265 318,163,163 1,613,800,680

3 months >3 months

<= 6 months 

> 6 months

<= 1 year 

> 1 year

<= 5 years 

5 years Total

2005



Information on the distribution of financial derivatives operations, by counterpart type, at 31 December 2006 and
2005, is set out below:

8. Available for Sale Financial Assets

This account heading comprises the following:
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Contracts on interest rates

Interest rate swaps      

Financial institutions        10,499,810,515 8,130,206 593,979,571 (6,059,437)

Customers        894,219,796 (7,037,172) 369,561,251 3,460,296 

11,394,030,311 1,093,034 963,540,822 (2,599,141)

Caps         

Financial institutions         404,605,653 1,861,456 173,515,911 (240,805) 

Customers       404,605,653 (1,849,000) 173,515,911 258,279 

809,211,306 12,456 347,031,822 17,474

Floors         

Financial institutions        363,433,175 (2,060,179) 140,066,345 N/D 

Customers         363,433,175 2,060,179 140,066,345 N/D 

726,866,350 _ 280,132,690 _

Options       

Financial institutions         _ _ _ _ 

Customers        95,075,346 (6,467,374) _ _ 

95,075,346 (6,467,374) _ _

Futures       

Stock Exchange         11,500,000 _ 23,095,346 _ 

13,036,683,313 (5,361,884) 1,613,800,680 (2,581,667)

Notional

Value 

Book Value

2006

Notional

Value 

Book Value

2005

Capital instruments

Issued by resident entities 7,297 7,297

Historical cost _ 3,153,257

Issued by non-resident entities

Fair value 1,290,700 1,440,920

1,297,997 4,601,474

2006 2005



Entries to this account heading, in 2006 and 2005, were:

The adopting of IAS 39, at 01 January 2005, generated a negative impact of 1,877,282 in retained earnings (Note 33).

The equity investment in SAG Gest, SGPS, S.A. was acquired from Caixa Desenvolvimento in September 2005 at its
respective market value at the said date. The bank made capital gains of 440,003 and 11,621 (Note 26) on year
2006 and 2005 sales, respectively.

The equity investment in VAA – Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A., was disposed of in 2006, with the bank making
capital gains of 14,947 (Note 26).
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SAG Gest, SGPS, S.A.      3,153,257 (3,023,417) (129,840) _ _ 

Corporación Interamericana para el

Financiamiento de Infraestructuras    1,440,920 _ _ (150,220) 1,290,700 

Marconi 7,297 _ _ _ 7,297 

4,601,474 (3,023,417) (129,840) (150,220) 1,297,997

Balance at

31.12.2005 

Sales Reduction of

Fair Value

Reserve 

Exchange

Differences 

Balance at

31.12.2006

2006

Name

SAG Gest, SGPS, S.A.      _ _ _ _ 3,309,218 

Corporación Interamericana para el

Financiamiento de Infraestructura    2,936,642 _ 2,936,642 (1,837,740) _ 

Marconi 7,297 _ 7,297 _ _ 

VAA - Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A. 260,460 (220,918) 39,542 (39,542) _ 

3,204,399 (220,918) 2,983,481 (1,877,282) 3,309,218

Cost Provisions Net Value Adopting 

of IAS 

Purchases

31.12.2004

Name

SAG Gest, SGPS, S.A.      (285,801) 129,840 _ 3,153,257 

Corporación Interamericana para el

Financiamiento de Infraestructura  _ 172,109 169,909 1,440,920

Marconi _ _ _ 7,297 

VAA - Vista Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A. _ _ _ _ 

(285,801) 301,949 169,909 4,601,474

Sales Increases in

Fair Value

Reserve 

Exchange

Differences 

Balance at

31.12.2005

Name



The equity investment in Corporación Interamericana para el Financiamento de Infraestructura was acquired in 2001
for USD 4,000,000. The bank, up to 31 December 2004, recognised exchange rate differences at their income
statement cost, as the exposure was hedged by US dollar denominated funds. As impairment was determined on this
equity investment, with reference to 01 January 2005, the bank maintained the cost price translated at the exchange
rate of 31 December 2004. Under the terms of the hedge accounting application, the change in fair value in 2006 and
2005, resulting from the foreign exchange component, was recognised in the income statement.

9. Loans and Advances to Credit Institutions

This account heading comprises the following:

“Loans and advances to credit institutions”, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, when maturing in the first quarter of the
following year, were denominated in euros at an average annual interest rate of 4.01% and 3.40%, respectively.

10. Loans and Advances to Customers

This account heading comprises the following:
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Interbank money market _ 2,000,0000

Term deposits

Portugal 11,330,011 9,573,496

11,330,011 11,573,496

Interest receivable 90,605 95,849

11,420,616 11,669,345

2006 2005

Unsecuritised domestic loans

Loans 337,274,078 383,093,431

Current account 130,130,916 111,879,346

Sight deposit overdrafts 11,010,832 19,980,846

Other credit 8,164,674 7,830,974

Securitised domestic loans

Commercial paper 61,560,285 _

Foreign credit

Loans 295,879,224 188,616,064

Current account 1,824,310 _

Value adjustments relating

to hedged assets (Note 7) 1,435,867 2,409,751

847,280,186 713,810,412

Interest receivable 4,953,969 3,019,134

Deferred income

Commissions associated with amortised cost (3,549,694) _

Interest (918,047) _

Deferred expenses

Commissions associated with amortised cost 13,121 _

847,779,535 716,829,546

Overdue credit and interest 1,552,946 4,430,354

849,332,481 721,259,900

Provisions for credit (Note 18) (1,552,946) ( 4,430,354)

Provisions for doubtful credit (Note 18) _ ( 128,084)

(1,552,946) ( 4,558,438)

847,779,535 716,701,462

2006 2005



The bank has also set up a provision for general credit risks totalling 8,850,063 and7,516,742 at 31 December 2006 and
2005, respectively (Note 18). 

Deferred income on commissions associated with credit operations at 31 December 2005, totalled 3,639,470 (Note 19) and
were classified in “other liabilities”.

This account was broken down as follows, by periods to maturity at 31 December 2006 and 2005:

Credit overdue for more than 3 years, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, is fully provisioned.

Sectoral distribution of loans and advances to customers, excluding overdue credit, at 31 December 2006 and 2005,
was as follows: 
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Up to three months 11,560,391 2,851,204

Three months to one year 63,192,063 71,891,094

One to five years 67,239,320 68,203,774

More than five years 562,322,353 439,004,148

Current account overdrafts 142,966,059 131,860,192

847,280,186 713,810,412

2006 2005

Mining industries 2,880,000 0.3 _ _

Manufacturing industries

Electricity, water and gas generation and distribution     97,927,958 11.6 137,472,289 19.3 

Food, beverages and tobacco industries 23.356,418 2.8 35,915,984 5.0

Textiles industry 15,944,591 1.9 9,669,934 1.4

Paper pulp, card and publishing and 

printing thereof     10,280,179 1.2 12,728,929 1.8

Chemicals and synthetic or artificial  

fibres manufacture     8,301,873 1.0 9,750,960 1.4

Manufacture of transport material 7,001,365 0.8 8,000,000 1.1

Basic metallurgical and metal industries 4,000,000 0.5 19,285,714 2.7

Manufacture of articles of rubber and plastic 1,834,729 0.2 2,393,939 0.3

Property, rentals and corporate services

Property 15,346,783 1.8 16,984,450 2.4

Other 220,813,866 26.1 157,619,933 22.1 

Transport, warehousing and communications    196,350,413 23.2 141,687,671 19.8

Construction  60,193,280 7.1 17,001,096 2.4

Financial activities 48,000,013 5.7 48,000,000 6.7

Wholesale/retail 9,500,000 1.1 _ _

Health and social security 2,203,756 0.3 _ _

Hotels and restaurants 2,000,000 0.2 2,000,000 0.3

Other activities and collective, social and personal activities  112,123,743 13.2 85,797,979 12.0

Loans and advances to individual customers 9,221,219 1.1 9,501,534 1.3

847,280,186 100 713,810,412 100

Amount  Sector of activity %

2006

Amount  %

2005



11. Other Tangible Assets

Information on entries to the “other tangible assets” account headings for the years 2006 and 2005 is set out below:
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Property:

For own use     13,093,382 (2,670,611) _ (168,764) _ 10,254,007 

Other property   77,843 (77,843) _ _ _ _ 

Equipment:        

Furniture and material    981,886 (892,080) 7,177 (24,567) _ 72,416 

Transport material   231,751 (180,785) _ (9,150) (23,517) 18,299

IT equipment    1,093,551 (944,002) 295,386 (169,797) _ 275,138 

Interior installations  2,057,806 (1,863,170) 8,047 (55,624) _ 147,059

Security equipment    240,087 (240,087) _ _ _ _ 

Machinery and tools    473,506 (419,949) 9,753 (18,389) _ 44,921

Property leases         

Transport material   1,520,012 (830,894) 417,689 (357,653) (149,125) 600,029     

19,769,824 (8,119,421) 738,052 (803,944) (172,642) 11,411,869

Gross
Amount 

Accumulated
Depreciation 

Acquisitions Depreciation
for Year 

Write-offs
(net) 

Net Amount
at 31.12.06

2006

Balance at 31.12.05

Gross
Amount 

Accumulated
Depreciation 

Acquisitions Depreciation
for Year 

Write-offs
(net) 

Net Amount
at 31.12.05

2005

Balance at 31.12.04

Property:

For own use     13,093,384 (2,501,849) _ (168,764) _ 10,422,771 

Other property  77,843 (77,843) _ _ _ _ 

Equipment:        

Furniture and material      945,784 (872,689) 55,401 (38,690) _ 89,806 

Transport material   296,563 (216,788) 36,600 (48,588) (16,821) 50,966

IT equipment     958,123 (864,598) 136,829 (80,805) _ 149,549 

Interior installations    2,043,606 (1,836,950) 43,011 (55,031) _ 194,636

Security equipment      240,087 (240,087) _ _ _ _ 

Machinery and tools    475,728 (411,164) 8,372 (19,379) _ 53,557

Property leases         

Transport material    1,414,998 (609,225) 408,827 (395,395) (130,087) 689,118     

19,546,116 (7,631,193) 689,040 (806,652) (146,908) 11,650,403



12. Intangible Assets

Information on entries to the “intangible assets” account headings entries for the years 2006 and 2005 is set out
below:

Intangible assets in progress, at 31 December 2005 and 2006 comprise expenses incurred on the acquisition of
software not yet in use.

13. Investments in Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and
Joint Enterprises 

The balance on this account heading, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, comprises:

The following is a summary of the financial data extracted from the provisory separate accounts of subsidiary
companies (including indirect investments), for the last financial year:
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Automatic data processing   

systems

Intangible assets in progress

Balance at 31.12.04 pro forma

2005

Gross

Amount 

Accumulated

Depreciation 

Acquisitions Transfers Depreciation

for Year 

Net Amount 

at 31.12.05

3,484,087

56,012

3,540,099

(3,158,620)

_

(3,158,620)

46,905

195,199

242,104

22,701

(22,701)

_

(199,466)

_

(199,466)

195,607

228,510

424,117

Automatic data processing   

systems

Intangible assets in progress

Balance at 31.12.05

2006

Gross

Amount 

Accumulated

Depreciation 

Acquisitions Transfers Depreciation

for Year 

Net Amount 

at 31.12.06

3,350,667

228,510

3,779,177

(3,355,060)

_

(3,355,060)

39,103

115,514

154,617

16,421

(16,421)

_

(190,888)

_

(190,888)

60,243

327,603

387,846

Fundo de Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados

Energias Renováveis - Caixa Capital 45,500,000 _

Caixa Ireland Limited 39,096,107 12,710

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A. 29,784,245 2,500,000

Caixa Capital - Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A. 14,575,724 14,575,724

128,956,076 17,088,434

2006 2005



The  Fundo de Capital de Risco para Investidores Qualificados Energias Renováveis – Caixa Capital (FIQ Energias
Renováveis) was formed in January 2006, with a subscribed capital of 50,000,000 comprising 2,000 investment units.
The fund’s objective is to invest fund assets in equity investments in companies with high growth and appreciation
potential, operating in the field of electricity generation from renewable energy sources. The bank subscribed for 1,820
investment units with a nominal value of 45,500,000, of which 36,700,000 (Note 19) remains unpaid as at 
31 December 2006.

Caixa Capital - Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A. (Caixa Capital) has its registered office in Lisbon and was formed
on 31 December 1990 under Decree Law 17/86 of 05 February. The company’s corporate object is to support and
promote investment and technological innovation by making temporary equity investments in projects or companies.
It is also authorised to provide assistance to the financial, technical, administrative and commercial management of its
subsidiary companies.  

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A., formed in 1998, has its registered office in Portugal. Its corporate object is to
manage equity investments in other companies, as an indirect form of performing economic activities.  

Caixa Ireland Limited, acquired by the bank in 1996, is a company with registered office in the Republic of Ireland. Its
assets essentially comprise the equity investment in Caixa Investments Ireland. Caixa Investments Ireland has its
registered office in the Republic of Ireland with the corporate object of trading in securities. The shareholders’ equity
of these companies reflects the appropriation of net income and respective dividends paid to the bank in 2006, for the
amount of 822,000 (260,000 in 2005) (Note 23).

The book value of the investments in Caixa Ireland Limited and Caixa Desenvolvimento includes additional capital
payments made by the bank of 39,083,397 and 27,284,245 respectively. These amounts were recognised in “other
assets” at 31 December 2005 (Note 15).

The bank, at 31 December 2005, had an indirect equity investment of 55% of the share capital of Inbepor, SGPS, S.A.
(Inbepor). This company was formed in December 2005 with a share capital of 50,000, 80% of which was initially
subscribed for by Caixa Geral de Depósitos Group, via Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A. and 20% by Sumolis –
Companhia Industrial de Frutas e Bebidas, S.A Inbepor’s corporate object is to operate as a holding company for other
companies as an indirect means of performing financial activities, having been formed as part of the operation for the
acquisition of the full amount of the share capital of Compal – Companhia Produtora de Conservas Alimentares, S.A.
(Compal) and Nutricafés – Cafés e Restauração, S.A. (Nutricafés), pursuant to the agreements entered into on 02
November 2005. The completion of the transactions was contingent upon the obtaining of authorisations/declarations
of non-opposition from the Competition Authority. The declaration of non-opposition from the Competition Authority
on the Nutricafés acquisition was decided on 23 December 2005 with the management of the company having been
transferred to the purchasers in the same month. Transfer of control over Compal only occurred in 2006. Following the
disposal of 12,500 Inbepor shares at their respective nominal value, on 31 December 2005 to the Fundo de Capital de
Risco para Investidores Qualificados Grupo CGD – Caixa Capital, Caixa Desenvolvimento had shares comprising 55%
of the share capital of Inbepor. Inbepor’s shareholders’ equity on the same date included additional capital payments
of 124,950,000 from shareholders.
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Caixa Ireland Limited            Dublin        100.00% 100.00% 30-11-2006 39,140,294 991 39,140,152

Caixa Investments Ireland Dublin                   _ 100.00% 30-11-2006 40,051,580 802,238 39,937,625

Caixa Desenvolvimento, 

SGPS, S.A. Lisbon        100.00% 100.00% 31-12-2006 98,556,060 (2,026,328) 41,349,026

Caixa-Capital, S.A. Lisbon        100.00% 100,00% 31-12-2006 28,884,449 4,024,511 27,900,783

FIQ Energias Renováveis - 

- Caixa Capital Lisbon          91.00% 91.00% 31-12-2006 51,485,652 1,391,850 51,391,850

Compal, S.A. Lisbon                   _ 55.00% 31-12-2006 415,309,823 1,177,236 123,709,143

Entity Registered  Percentage Date Assets Profit/Loss Shareholders’

Office Equity Investment (%) Equity

Direct Effective



This operation was affected by the following developments in 2006:

The Competition Authority issued a declaration of non-opposition in January 2006, with control over Compal
having latterly being transferred to the purchasers;

Inbepor disposed of its equity investment in Nutricafés, in March 2006, recognising capital gains of 6,808,139;

An increase in Inbepor’s share capital from 50,000 to 10,000,000 through the incorporation of additional
capital payments was approved in June 2006. Compal was also incorporated into Inbepor, its sole shareholder.
Under the terms of the merger, Inbepor took Compal’s name, registered office, corporate object, activity,
operations and assets and liabilities, ensuring the performance of Compal’s rights, fulfilment of its duties,
obligations and commitments.

Caixa Desenvolvimento, SGPS, S.A. sold 600,000 shares comprising 6% of Compal’s share capital to Fundo de Capital
de Risco para Investidores Qualificados Grupo CGD – Caixa Capital, on 02 February 2007, in addition to accessory
capital payments of 6,900,000 at their respective nominal value. The operation gave the bank indirect control over
49% of Compal’s share capital.  

Compal, Companhia Produtora de Conservas Alimentares, S.A.’s shareholders’ equity, at 31 December 2006, included
shareholders’ loans totalling 115,000,000, of which 63,250,000 made by Caixa Desenvolvimento.

14. Income Tax
Tax assets and liabilities balances, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, were:

The “income tax to be recovered” account heading, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, included 657,900 in respect
of a claim made by the bank on its IRC for 2000.

The following table provides details and information on deferred tax entries for 2006 and 2005:
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Current tax assets

Income tax to be recovered

Current tax liabilities

Income tax payable

Deferred tax assets

Temporary differences

Deferred tax liabilities

2006 2005

657,900

(5,283,028)

(4,625,128)

4,148,503

(954,776)

3,193,727

657,900

(1,747,729)

(1,089,829)

3,393,901

(1,091,615)

2,302,286

Provisions disallowed for fiscal purposes

Commissions

Revaluation of financial derivatives 

held for trading

Revaluation of hedge derivatives 

Valuation of available for sale financial assets

2006

Balance at

31.12.05 

Change

Income Shareholders’ equity

Balance at

31.12.2006

1,752,187

506,813

(349,921)

665,978

433,217

_

_

_

_

37,427

_

_

_

_

60,753

1,858,497

619,327

469,757

492,998

441,394

107,310

112,514

819,678

(172,980)

(90,003)

Other

.

.

.

(Continues)



The “others” column for 2006, refers to a reclassification between deferred tax and current tax for 2005.

Information on tax on profit recognised in the income statement, in addition to the tax burden, measured by the ratio
between the appropriation for tax on profit and net profit for the year before tax is set out below:
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Provisions disallowed for fiscal purposes

Commissions

Revaluation of financial derivatives

Valuation of available for sale 

financial assets 

Valuation of other assets recognised 

at fair value through 

profit or loss

Revaluation of fixed assets disallowed for 

fiscal purposes

2005

Balance at

31.12.04 

Adopting of

AAS

Change

Income Shareholders’ equity

Balance at

31.12.05

1,509,721

300,935

(56,420)

_

_

(215,984)

1,538,252

_

591,645

779,268

516,253

(120,318)

_

1,766,848

242,466

(385,767)

(406,791)

_

(375,852)

6,166

(919,778)

_

_

_

(83,036)

_

_

(83,036)

1,752,187

506.813

316,057

433,217

(496,170)

(209,818)

2,302,286

Valuation of other assets recognised 

at fair value through 

profit or loss  

Revaluation of fixed assets disallowed for 

fiscal purposes

Value adjustments on hedged

assets

2006

Balance at

31.12.05 

Change

Income Shareholders’ equity

Balance at

31.12.2006

(496,170)

(209,818)

_

2,302,286

_

_

_

37,427

_

_

_

60,753

_

(196,247)

(492,999)

3,193,727

496,170

13,571

(492,999)

793,261

Other

Current tax

Year

Adjustments relating to previous years

Deferred tax

Recognition and reversal of temporary differences

Total tax in income statement

Income before tax 

Tax burden

2006 2005

9,900,721

3,352

9,904,073

(793,261)

9,110,812

39,882,177

22.84%

4,917,256

(15,104)

4,902,152

919,778

5,821,930

25,285,207

23.03%

(Continuation)



In conformity with current legislation, tax returns are subject to review and correction by the tax authorities for a period of
four years. The bank’s tax returns for 2003 to 2006 are therefore still subject to review and the possibility of correction.

The board of directors considers that any correction is unlikely to have a significant impact on the financial statements,
at 31 December 2006.

Information on the reconciliation between the nominal and effective tax rate in 2006 and 2005 is set out below:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities originated by temporary differences, at 31 December 2006, were determined on the
basis of a nominal tax rate of 26.5%, taking into account the entry into force of the Local Finance Law, in 2007.

15. Other Assets 

This account heading comprised the following, at 31 December 2006 and 2005:
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Income before tax

Determination of tax at nominal rate

Impact of tax regime on activities performed by

Madeira Offshore Branch (Note 2.8)

Fiscal losses per corporate grouping

Alteration of nominal tax rate

Fiscal benefits

Fiscal capital gains

Provisions not relevant for fiscal purposes

Other disallowed costs

Separate source-based taxation

Other

Rate Tax Rate Tax

27.50%

(2.50%)

(2.14%)

0.31%

(0.62%)

(0.00%)

0.14%

0.07%

0.10%

(0.02%)

22.84%

39,882,177

10,967,599

(998,324)

(853,758)

122,239

(247,033)

(1,770)

65,034

27,166

38,860

(9,201)

9,110,812

20052006

27.50%

(1.79%)

(4.33%)

_

(0.37%)

(0.09%)

1.99%

0.08%

0.15%

(0.11%)

23.03%

25,285,207

6,953,432

(451,354)

(1,094,869)

_

(92,431)

(23,733)

502,563

21,026

37,977

(30,681)

5,821,930

Debtors and other investments

Additional capital payments

Caixa Ireland Limited (Note 13)

Caixa Desenvolvimento (Note 13)

Futures and options

Miscellaneous debtors

Other assets

Income receivable

Deferred expenses

Insurance

Leasing instalments

Other deferred expenses

Prepayments and accrued income

Securities operations pending settlement

Other lending operations pending settlement

Overdue credit and interest

Impairment of other assets (Note 18)

2006 2005

_

_

484,550

1,621,183

2,105,733

48,846

108,128

1,436

3,812

1,914,318

1,919,566

29,145,140

189,929

29,335,069

4,323,324

37,840,666

(4,323,324)

33,517,342

39,083,397

27,284,245

502,853

3,774,900

70,645,395

48,846

_

1,600

3,812

2,333,174

2,338,586

93,245,537

73,971

93,319,508

4,084,589

170,436,924

(4,084,589)

166,352,335



The “miscellaneous debtors” account heading, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, essentially comprises amounts
receivable from customers for the invoicing of services provided by the bank.

The “other deferred expenses” account heading, at 31 December 2006 and 2005 includes 1,662,895 and
2,108,502 respectively, made on account of the investment in Agrupamento Complementar de Empresas TREM II –
Aluguer de Material Circulante, ACE. The bank, subscribed for an increase in TREM II’s share capital in proportion to
its respective investment, totalling 105,325.

The “securities operations pending settlement” account heading, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, comprises the value
of the operations for the sale of securities for the year and settled in the first days of the following year.

The “overdue credit and interest” account heading at 31 December 2006 and 2005, included overdue credit from
Caixa Valores for the amount of 3,551,441, deriving from securities operations realised in 1992 by a group of
customers. This loan has been fully provisioned.

Caixa Valores took legal action against the group of customers in September 1994, accusing them of responsibility for
realising the referred to operations and claiming an amount of 6,003,180 plus interest accruing since June 1993. As
the action is still in progress, the bank has not recognised any asset related with this situation. 

16. Other Credit Institutions’ Resources

This account heading comprises the following:

Information on the periods to maturity of other credit institutions’ resources is set out below:

Interest at an average annual rate of 3.87% and 2.38%  was paid on other credit institutions’ resources, excluding
sight deposits, as at 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Repayable on demand

Sight deposits

Credit institutions - Portugal

Credit institutions - abroad

Term

Credit institutions’ resources in Portugal

Interbank money market resources

Term deposits

Very short term deposits 

Other resources – sight deposit overdrafts

Interest payable

Credit institutions’ resources in Portugal

2006 2005

139,778

1,457

620,000,000

458,894,999

_

_

1,079,036,234

1,188,826

1,080,225,060

138,887

1,457

575,000,000

333,900,000

3,560,226

264,576

912,865,146

2,650,436

915,515,582

Sight deposits and overdrafts

Up to three months

Three months to one year

2006 2005

141,235

1,038,176,113

40,718,886

1,079,036,234

404,920

622,560,226

289,900,000

912,865,146



17. Customer Resources and other Loans

This account heading comprises the following:

Customer resources and other loans, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, had the following structure in accordance with
their respective periods to maturity:

18. Provisions and Impairment

Information on entries to the bank’s provisions and impairment account headings for 2006 and 2005 is set out below:
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Deposits

Repayable on demand

Term 

Value adjustments relating to hedged liabilities (Note 7)

Interest payable on deposits

2006 2005

46,478,698

61,149,538

107,628,236

(37,824)

107,590,412

927,042

108,517,454

58,892,255

56,783,877

115,676,132

_

115,676,132

1,742,149

117,418,281

Repayable on demand

Up to three months

Three months to one year

More than five years

2006 2005

46,478,698

40,809,779

7,000,000

13,339,759

107,628,236

58,892,255

48,556,726

_

8,227,151

115,676,132

Provision for loans and advances 

to customers (Note 10)

Overdue loans    4,430,354 _ (1,100,000) (1,596,668) (180,740) 1,552,946 

Doubtful loans  128,084 _ (128,084) _ _ _ 

4,558,438 _ (1,228,084) (1,596,668) (180,740) 1,552,946

Provision for general credit risks 

(Note 10)   7,516,742 3,776,640 (2,443,319) _ _ 8,850,063 

Provisions for other risks 

and liabilities 2,480,562 236,485 _ _ _ 2,717,047

9,997,304 4,013,125 (2,443,319) _ _ 11,567,110

Impairment on other assets  

(Note 15) 4,084,589 257,487 (18,000) (752) _ 4,323,324 

18,640,331 4,270,612 (3,689,403) (1,597,420) (180,740) 17,443,380

Balance at

31.12.05 

Increases Cancellations

and

Recoveries 

Use Exchange

Rate

Differences 

Balance at

31.12.06

2006



19. Other Liabilities

This account heading comprises the following:
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Provision for loans and advances          

to customers (Note 10)

Overdue loans    4,203,194 201,188 (4,999) (201,188) 232,159 4,430,354 

Doubtful loans  1,805,919 312,500 (629,024) (1,361,311) _ 128,084 

6,009,113 513,688 (634,023) (1,562,499) 232,159 4,558,438

Provision for general credit risks 

(Note 10)   4,861,142 4,365,851 (1,710,251) _ _ 7,516,742 

Provisions for other risks 

and liabilities 2,217,935 262,627 _ _ _ 2,480,562

7,079,077 4,628,478 (1,710,251) _ _ 9,997,304

Impairment on other assets  

(Note 15) 3,971,464 123,835 (10,710) _ _ 4,084,589 

17,059,654 5,266,001 (2,354,984) (1,562,499) 232,159 18,640,331

Balance at

31.12.04

Increases Cancellations

and

Recoveries 

Use Exchange

Rate

Differences 

Balance at

31.12.05

2005

Creditors and other resources

General government

Value added tax

Deduction of tax at source

Social security contributions

Futures and options

Deferred interest and dividends

Creditors – securities operations

Miscellaneous creditors

FIQ Energias Renováveis – unpaid capital (Note 13)

Suppliers of leased assets

Other

Costs payable

Additional remuneration

Holiday and holiday subsidies

Pension fund

Other

2006 2005

62,017

2,275,570

187,103

30,000

126,688

3,276,385

36,700,000

787,356

178,480

43,623,599

2,050,000

1,356,000

309,536

558,504

4,274,040

240,710

1,701,164

177,790

483,920

112,014

9,607,063

_

890,142

271,622

13,484,425

1,651,198

1,320,000

288,220

792,470

4,051,888

(Continues)



The balance on the “creditors - securities operations” account heading at 31 December 2006 and 2005, refers to the
current accounts of brokerage operations customers.  

The “securities operations pending settlement” account heading at 31 December 2006 and 2005, comprises the value
of securities purchase operations at the end of the year and settled in the first few days of the following year.

20. Subscribed Capital and Own Shares

Subscribed capital comprises 81,250,000 shares with a nominal value of one euro each.

Information on the bank’s equity structure, at 31December 2006 and 2005, is set out below:

The bank owned 4,658,000 of its own shares at a cost of 5,999,453, at 31 December 2006 and 2005.

21. Reserves, Retained Earnings and Profit for Year

The composition of the reserves and retained earnings account headings at 31 December 2006 and 2005, was as
follows:
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Deferred income

Commissions on credit operations (Note 2,3, a))

Agencying commissions

Commissions associated with credit operations (Note 10)

Provision of guarantees

Other accruals and deferred income accounts

Securities operations pending settlement

Lending operations pending settlement

Commissions payable - syndicating of loan operations

Other

2006 2005

688,636 

_

54,254

742,890

29,090,160

6,231,853

42,245

35,364,258

84,004,787

836,036 

3,639,470

79,094

4,554,600

92,700,094

60,622

369,717

93,130,433

115,221,346

(Continuation)

Gerbanca, SGPS, S.A.

Companhia de Seguros

Fidelidade - Mundial, S.A.

Own Shares

Other

No. 

Shares

%

68,348,445

7,968,827

4,658,000

274,728

81,250,000

84.1

9.8

5.7

0.4

100.0

2006

No. 

Shares

%

68,348,445

7,964,177

4,658,000

279,378

81,250,000

84.1

9.8

5.7

0.4

100.0

2005



Revaluation reserves

Fixed assets revaluation reserves
The bank revalued its fixed assets in 1998, under Decree Law 31/98 of 11 February. The increase of 4,338,403, in the
net value of the fixed assets was recognised in the “revaluation reserves” account heading.

Revaluation reserves may only be used to cover accumulated losses or share capital increases.

Fair value reserves
The fair value reserve recognises potential capital gains and losses on available for sale financial assets, net of the
corresponding fiscal effect.

Legal reserve
In conformity with Decree Law 298/92 of 31 December, the bank is required to set up a legal reserve fund until equal
to its share capital and annually transfer an amount of not less than 10% of net profits to the reserve. The reserve may
only be used to cover accumulated losses or for share capital increases.

Dividends
A resolution was passed at the general shareholders’ meeting of 24 March 2006, to distribute dividends of
17,516,949 for 2005 of which an amount of 1,004,233 was allocated for own shares.

22. Interest and Income and Interest and Similar Charges

These account headings comprise the following:
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Demonstrações Financeiras | Anexo às Demonstrações Financeiras Individuais

Revaluation reserves

Fixed assets revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve, net of deferred tax

Other reserves and retained earnings

Legal reserve

Free reserve   

Retained earnings

Profit for year

2006 2005

4,338,403

126,500

4,464,903

26,662,892

9,328,907

40,064,562

76,056,361

30,771,365

111,292,629

4,338,403

218,913

4,557,316

24,716,565

9,328,907

39,060,328

73,105,800

19,463,277

97,126,393



Commissions received associated with credit operations, in 2005, were recognised in the “Income from services and
commissions” account heading (see Note 24).

Interest on trading interest swaps was recognised in net interest income as from December 2005.  Prior to the said date
it was recognised in assets and liabilities held for trading in the income statement (see Note 25).

23. Income from Capital Instruments

This account heading comprises the following:
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Interest and similar income

Interest on cash assets 

Interest on loans and advances to credit institutions

Interest on loans and advances to customers

Domestic credit

Foreign credit

Interest on assets held for trading

Securities

Interest rate swaps

Interest on other assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss

Interest on hedge derivatives

Interest on debtors and other investments

Commissions associated with credit operations

Interest and similar costs

Interest on credit institutions’ resources

Interest on customer deposits

Interest on financial liabilities held for trading

Interest rate swaps

Interest on hedge derivatives

Other interest and costs

Interest on creditors and other resources

Other

Commissions paid associated with credit operations

2006 2005

86,954

620,414

20,118,321

10,096,967

762,590

43,676,234

11,565,018

554,766

1,809

87,483,073

1,377,761

88,860,834

26,053,787

3,372,096

43,234,388

945,026

25,837

11,306

73,642,440

4,531

73,646,971

39,337

417,177

13,569,426

5,154,025

1,261,142

1,077,315

10,855,078

611,630

780

32,985,910

_

32,985,910

18,438,485

1,801,197

1,373,253

1,339,320

26,740

6,791

22,985,786

_

22,985,786

Investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and joint enterprises

Caixa Ireland Limited (Nota 13)

Available for sale financial assets 

2006 2005

822,000

44,240

866,240

260,000

41,898

301,898



24. Income and Costs on Services and Commissions

These account headings comprise the following:

25. Income from Assets and Liabilities Recognised 
at Fair Value Throught Profit or Loss

These account headings comprise the following:
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Commissions received

For the provision of guarantees 

For commitments to third parties 

For operations on financial instruments

Credit operations

For the provision of services

Organisation of operations

Agencying 

Deposit and custody of securities

Collections on securities

Management of securities

Other services provided

For operations realised on behalf of third parties

Other commissions received 

Commissions paid

For operations realised by third parties 

For banking services rendered by third parties

2006 2005

946,280

451,187

_

12,371,942

1,548,914

494,334

210,072

283,867

9,276,422

8,645,862

8,537,093

42,765,973

1,452,039

90,709

1,542,748

1,048,458

382,311

327,107

7,964,288

405,786

444,743

220,894

106,363

8,374,160

7,060,303

9,155,405

35,489,818

1,296,940

34,281

1,331,221

Income from assets and liabilities held for trading

Debt instruments

Capital instruments

Derivatives

Interest rate swaps

Futures

Options

Interest rate guarantee contracts

Income from assets and liabilities recognised at fair value

through profit or loss

Debt instruments

Capital instruments

Income from hedge operations

Value adjustments relating to assets and liabilities 

covered by hedges

2006 2005

(1.069.815)

7.027.221

3.196.387

(219.224)

(6.426.965)

113.063

2.620.667

(41.365)

261.650

220.285

947.915

(936.060)

2.852.807

1.058.603

42.386

927.971

(1.488.894)

(22.580)

_

517.486

(814.681)

2.720.023

1.905.342

(94.309)

84.283

2.412.802



26. Income from Available for Sale Financial Assets

Income from available for sale assets, in 2006 and 2005, fully comprises the gains on the disposal of capital
instruments, as set out below:

27. Income from Exchange Revaluations

This account heading comprises the following:

28. Other Operating Income

These account headings comprise the following:
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Revaluation of spot foreign exchange position

Revaluation of forward foreign exchange position

2006 2005

190,483

(52,739)

137,744

(225,934)

15,473

(210,461)

SAG Gest SGPS, S.A. (Note 8)

VAA - Vista Alegre Atlantis SGPS, S.A. (Note 8)

2006 2005

440,003

14,947

454,950

11,621

_

11,621

Other operating income

Other operating gains and income

Staff on loan - CGD Group

Reimbursement of expenses

Other

Other gains on financial operations

Other operating costs 

Other operating costs and expenses

TREM II

Subscriptions and donations

Contributions to Deposit Guarantee Fund 

Other 

Other losses on financial operations

Other taxes

Indirect taxes

Direct taxes

Other operating income

2006 2005

1,472,351

275,935

47,210

1,795,496

93

1,795,589

550,932

23,824

14,875

10,926

408

65,217

182,036

848,218

947,371

1,787,525

330,417

74,508

2,192,450

321

2,192,771

672,907

25,770

11,725

23,184

478

83,043

128,316

945,423

1,247,348



29. Employee Costs 

This account heading comprises the following:

The average number of bank workers in 2006 and 2005, excluding the board of directors and inspection bodies was
170 and 159, respectively and distributed as follows:

30. General Administrative Expenditure
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Top Management

Technical

Administrative

2006 2005

43

97

30

170

42

87

30

159

Remuneration paid to board of directors

Remuneration paid to employees

Mandatory social costs

Costs of remuneration

Pension fund (Note 2.10)

Other mandatory social costs

Other employee costs

2006 2005

934,223

10,042,706

1,767,193

330,359

83,556

320,307

13,478,344

765,139

8,945,103

1,675,036

296,838

69,841

304,665

12,056,622

Specialised services

Conservation and repair

Travel and representation

Communications

Rents and hires

Publicity and publishing

Consumables

Water, power and fuel

Insurance

Employee training

Publications

Other third party supplies

Other third party services

2006 2005

3,107,908

1,297,526

569,131

442,957

409,191

344,408

151,355

134,644

95,416

65,355

33,518

32,465

57,640

6,741,514

3,104,717

1,541,417

554,739

434,997

241,967

262,211

64,750

110,122

97,817

77,111

31,744

29,536

92,341

6,643,469



31. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Contingent liabilities associated with banking activity are recognised in off-balance sheet account headings as follows:

The “assets-backed guarantee” account heading, at 31 December 2006 and 2005 comprises the nominal value of debt
securities pledged, by the bank (Note 6), in respect of the following situations:

The object of the Deposit Guarantee Fund is to guarantee customers’ deposits in conformity with the limits fixed in the
General Credit Institutions Regime. This takes the form of regular annual contributions. A part of the said contributions
has been assumed on the basis of an irrevocable commitment to realise the respective contributions when requested by
the Fund. The amounts are not recognised in costs.The total value of commitments assumed since 1996 totals158,020.
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Contingent liabilities:

Guarantees and sureties

Asset-backed guarantees

Commitments:

Revocable lines of credit

Securities subscriptions

Other irrevocable commitments

Potential liability to Investors’ Indemnity System

Term liabilities to Deposit Guarantee Fund

Liabilities for the provision of services:

Deposit and custody of securities

2006 2005

131,153,901

47,744,999

178,898,900

208,690,162

50,250,000

2,847,418

2,052,436

158,020

263,998,036

4,430,781,236

139,038,212

45,000,000

184,038,212

158,034,724

66,730,651

4,238,366

2,052,436

155,395

231,211,572

2,983,380,688

“SPGT” (Major Transactions Processing System)

Caixa Geral de Depósitos, S.A. – Euronext

Investors’ Indemnity System (SII))

2006 2005

44,744,999

2,000,000

1,000,000

47,744,999

42,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

45,000,000



32. Related Entities 

All companies controlled by CGD Group, associated companies and the bank’s management bodies are considered to
be entities related with the bank.

The bank’s financial statements, at 31 December 2006 and 2005, include the following balances and transactions with
related entities, excluding management bodies:

Transactions with related entities are generally made on the basis of market values on the respective dates.

Management Bodies
The costs incurred on the remuneration of the bank’s board of directors, in 2006, totalled 942,604  of which amount
8,381 in respect of contributions to the Caixa - Banco de Investimento pension fund, as described in Note 2.10.The
costs incurred on the remuneration of the bank’s board of directors, in 2005, totalled 772,212 of which amount
7,073 in respect of contributions to the Caixa - Banco de Investimento pension fund, as described in Note 2.10.

Bonuses of 114,373 and 152,000 were paid to the board of directors, in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The management bodies did not take out any credit operations with the bank in 2006 and 2005.The banks does not
have any additional liability or long term benefit granted to the board of directors, other than those referred to above. 
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Assets

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Financial liabilities held for trading

Other financial assets recognised at   

fair value through profit or loss

Other 

Liabilities

Financial trading liabilities

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other

Income

Interest and similar income

Gains on financial operations

Income from capital instruments

Income from services and commissions

Other operating income

Costs

Interest and similar costs

Losses on financial operations

Costs of services and commissions

General administrative expenditure

Subsidiaries Other CGD

Group

Companies

Subsidiaries Other CGD

Group

Companies

56,364,373

_

_

_

40,443

_

_

2,878,747

_

_

1,885,979

_

822,000

105,326

364,615

164,234

_

_

_

48,013,764

22,096,397

90,342,977

1,831,290

1,423,615

76,220,318

1,067,729,041

798,440

1,517,491

2,103,589

27,321,260

99,079,069

_

5,411,647

1,077,082

50,615,525

83,754,893

441,915

1,665,807

69,175,521

_

_

_

66,414,197

_

_

8,198,233

_

_

1,772,153

_

260,000

38,832

352,937

153,361

_

_

_

48,007,470

14,569,024

21,129,995

1,809,590

401,177

12,959,963

915,499,279

20,936,785

2,539,975

920,010

2,008,331

26,447,107

_

1,578,213

1,451,374

20,846,980

27,483,005

325,384

1,011,307

20052006



33. Adopting of Adjusted Accounting Standards

The following is a summary of the impact of the adopting of the Adjusted Accounting Standards, in comparison to the
accounts published at 31 December 2004:

(a) Own shares – The bank’s own shares were recognised in assets at cost. According to IAS 1, own shares are
recognised as a deduction from shareholders’ equity.

(b) In accordance with the former standards and practice in the banking sector in Portugal, the bank did not register
deferred tax. The amount recognised corresponds to the calculation of deferred taxes on situations already existing as
at 31 December 2004. Information on deferred taxes is set out in Note 14.

(c) This impact is the result of the fair value valuation of securities which had previously been recognised in investment
and financial investment portfolios, which were recognised as follows, up to 31 December 2004:

Investment securities – This account heading includes portfolio securities usually held for more than six months, with
the aim of achieving steady income, without the objective of bringing influence to bear on the issuing entity’s management.
These securities were valued at cost, with capital losses being fully provisioned as a charge to the income statement.

Investments – This account heading included stable investments in companies in which the percentage of the capital
investment was equal to or less than 50% or, if more, not strategic to the bank’s activities. These investments were
recognised at cost. Provisions for capital losses were recognised on the basis of the following criteria:

In conformity with Bank of Portugal Official Notice 3/95 of 30 June, the full amount of potential capital losses
had to be provisioned if the subsidiary company was in one of the situations referred to in the Official Notice,
including the filing of losses for three consecutive or interspersed years, over the last five years, was insolvent or
bankrupt or had terminated its activity etc..

In conformity with Bank of Portugal Official Notice 4/2002 of 25 June, potential capital losses were determined on
the average list price of the last six months, for companies with shares listed on organised markets and 150% of
the book value of the subsidiary’s shareholders’ equity in others. Pursuant to the terms of the referred to Official
Notice, provisions were set up in cases in which the potential capital losses on an investment exceeded 15% of the
book value, with such provision comprising at least 40% of the said excess. For portfolio investments already
existing at 31 December 2001, a transitory period of between 5-10 years for provisioning the capital losses
determined under the Official Notice had been defined, which provisions were set against reserves for 2004.
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PCSB balance

Impact of standards adopted at 01 January 2004

Reclassification of own shares

Deferred tax 

Intangible assets 

AAS balances - pro forma accounts

Impact of adopting of IAS 39 at 01 January 2005

Valuation of securities portfolio

Revaluation of financial derivatives

Application of hedge accounting - valuation of hedged item

Deferral of commission associated with credit operations

Fiscal impact

Recognition in current taxation

Recognition in deferred taxation (Note14)

Sub-total adjustments at 01 January 2005

AAS balances at 01 January 2005

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(f)

175,345,370

(5,999,453)

1,538,252

_

(4,461,201)

170,884,169

405,334

(3,024,525)

2,325,469

(2,507,742)

(981,079)

1,766,848

(2,015,695)

168,868,474

Note            Shareholders’ Equity 

.

.



Official Notice no. 4/2002 also provided for the application of the same criteria used for the assessment of provisions
requirements for direct investments, to indirect investments, in the separate accounts. Potential capital losses on
investments already provisioned by bank subsidiaries were not recognised in its separate accounts.

The transition’s impact, at 01 January 2005, comprised the following:

With the adopting of IAS 39 at 01 January 2005, the bank transferred the full amount of its investment portfolio to
the "other financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss", account heading with the exception of Vista
Alegre Atlantis, SGPS, S.A. and Marconi shares (Note 8). Potential capital gains of 1,845,097, which were not
recognised under the PCSB, were recognised. Reference should be made to the fact that a part of the referred to capital
gains derived from fixed-income securities hedged by interest rate swaps (see note (d) below).

The bank also transferred its investment in Euronext N.V to this category, having recognised the potential capital gain
of 437,519 in respect of the respective book value at 31 December 2004.

Finally, the bank transferred the securities presented in Note 8 to the “available for sale financial assets ”account
heading having recognised a respective loss in value of 1,877,282: in respect thereof:

Corporación Interamericana para el Financiamento de Infraestructura is a financial institution with registered office
in Costa Rica, specialising in financing small and medium sized infrastructure projects in Latin America. The bank
valued this entity, at 01 January 2005, on the basis of the discounted cash flows method, determining impairment
of 1,837,740.

The bank determined the existence of impairment on the full amount of the investment in Vista Alegre Atlantis,
SGPS, S.A., shares, based on the securities’ low levels of liquidity on Euronext Lisbon and the company’s current
situation.

(d) In accordance with the PCSB, interest rate swaps for hedge purposes were not generally revalued with only accrued
interest receivable and paid being recognised. With the adopting of IAS 39, these derivatives were valued at their
respective fair value, originating a negative impact of 3,024,525 in retained earnings. The impact was compensated:

by the valuation of a fixed-rate credit hedge operation with a positive impact of 2,325,469;

by the recognition of potential capital gains of 818,577 on fixed-rate securities previously recognised in the
investment portfolio (see paragraph (c) above).

(e) In accordance with the Adjusted Accounting Standards, the bank deferred commissions charged on the origination
of credit operations during the course of the period of the respective operations. Up to the said date, such income was
recognised when received. Accordingly the commissions associated with “performing loan” operations at 01 January
2005 were received, with the calculation of the corresponding deferred income of 2,507,742 originating a negative
impact for the same amount in retained earnings.

(f) This corresponds to the fiscal impact of the transition adjustments resulting from the adopting of IAS 39. The bank
recognised the adjustments originating an impact on the fiscal burden for 2005, in current taxation.
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Valuation of "assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss"

From investment portfolio

From financial investments portfolio

Valuation of "available for sale assets" (Note 8)

From investment portfolio

From financial investments portfolio

1,845,097 

437,519 

2,282,616

(39,542)

(1,837,740)

(1,877,282)

405,334

.

.

.

.



34. Disclosures Relating to Financial Instruments

Management policies on financial risks pertaining to the bank’s activity
Risk management and control are centralised by CGD’s Risk Management Division. The bank also has Risk Management
Regulations that define the limits and operating procedures in terms of the management of the various risks set out below.

Information on the following disclosures on the principal types of risks pertaining to the bank’s activity, required under
IAS 32, is set out below.

Foreign exchange risk
Financial instruments were broken down into the following currencies at 31 December 2006: 
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Assets   

Cash and cash equivalents 

with central banks     11,025,457  _ _ _ _ 11,025,457 

Cash assets with other 

credit institutions           3,240,987 25,164 312,773 17,577 30,238 3,626,739

Financial assets held 

for trading 177,025,627 _ _ _ _ 177,025,627

Other financial assets 

recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss 332,754,280 15,734,244 _ _ _ 348,488,524

Financial assets held for sale         7,297 1,290,700 _ _ _ 1,297,997

Loans and advances to 

credit institutions   9,065,380 2,355,236 _ _ _ 11,420,616

Loans and advances 

to customers 801,554,810 1,552,946 46,224,725 _ _ 849,332,481

Other                        37,779,785 53,276 1,377 _ 6,228 37,840,666

Provisions and impairment  (4,323,324) (1,552,946) _ _ _ (5,876,270)

1,368,130,299 19,458,620 46,538,875 17,577 36,466 1,434,181,837

Liabilities 

Financial liabilities held 

for trading     (101,028,814) _ _ _ _ (101,028,814)

Other credit institutions’ 

resources (1,018,462,487) (15,659,355) (46,103,218) _ _ (1,080,225,060)

Customer resources 

and other loans (104,845,125) (3,650,820) (10,345) _ (11,164) (108,517,454)

Hedge derivatives                 (1,619,826) _ _ _ _ (1,619,826)

Other (83,427,888) (53,285) (517,386) _ (6,228) (84,004,787)

(1,309,384,140) (19,363,460) (46,630,949) _ (17,392) (1,375,395,941)

Net exposure 95,160 (92,074) 17,577 19,074 39,737

Euro USD Sterling Yen Other Total

Currency

2006



Exposure in US dollars essentially derives from excess cover of the exchange risks on available for sale assets.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk comprises the bank’s risk of difficulties in obtaining funds to meet its commitments. An example of
liquidity risk may be the bank’s incapacity to dispose of a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

The analysis of the bank’s liquidity risk is part of the consolidated liquidity analysis of CGD Group’s ALCO-Asset-Liability
Committee. The bank has taken out an irrevocable line of credit with CGD providing for its liquidity requirements of
up to one year. CGD Group policy, on the other hand, does not advise direct access to the capital market for securing
medium and long term funding, which is the consolidated liability of CGD Group with CGD having a global
management commitment and eventual coverage of the liquidity gaps of its various subsidiaries as a whole.
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Assets   

Cash and cash equivalents 

with central banks    1,440,790  _ _ _ _ 1,440,790 

Cash assets with 

other credit institutions          4,196,678 85,850 92,859 20,565 54,015 4,449,967

Financial assets 

held for trading 46,783,750 _ _ _ _ 46,783,750

Other financial assets 

recognised at fair value 

through profit or loss 368,077,265 _ _ _ _ 368,077,265

Financial assets held for sale 3,160,554 1,440,920 _ _ _ 4,601,474

Loans and advances 

to credit institutions 11,669,345 _ _ _ _ 11,669,345

Loans and advances 

to customers 719,526,214 1,733,686 _ _ _ 721,259,900

Other 170,436,924 _ _ _ _ 170,436,924

Provisions and impairment  (6,909,341) (1,733,686) _ _ _ (8,643,027)

1,318,382,179 1,526,770 92,859 20,565 54,015 1,320,076,388

Liabilities  

Financial liabilities held 

for trading     (17,382,371) _ _ _ _ (17,382,371)

Other credit institutions’ 

resources (911,954,437) (3.561.145) _ _ _ (915,515,582)

Customer resources 

and other loans (117,222,460) (191.987) (3.763) _ (71) (117,418,281)

Hedge derivatives (2,539,975) _ _ _ _ 2,539,975

Other (115,221,346) _ _ _ _ (115,221,346)

(1,164,320,589) (3,753,132) (3,763) _ (71) (1,168,077,555)

Net exposure (2,226,362) 89,096 20,565 53,944 (2,062,757)

Euro USD Sterling Yen Other Total

Currency

2005



Information on the contractual periods to maturity of financial instruments at 31 December 2006, is set out below:
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents with central banks

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Other financial assets recognised at    

fair value through profit or loss

Available for sale financial assets

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other

Liquidity gap

Contractual periods to maturity

2006

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents with central banks

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Other financial assets recognised at    

fair value through profit or loss

Available for sale financial assets

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other

Liquidity gap

Contractual periods to maturity

Repayable on

demand 

3 months 

to 1 year 

1 year

to 3 years 

Up to 3

months 

11,025,457

3,626,739

_

_

_

_

11,012,672

31,597,777

57,262,645

_

141,235

46,495,354

_

33,287,111

79,923,700

(22,661,055)

_

_

_

1,511,882

_

11,420,616

11,560,391

_

24,492,889

6,467,374

1,039,089,148

40,826,000

_

8,596,198

1,094,978,720

(1,070,485,831)

_

_

875,601

29,082,343

_

_

195,719,718

_

225,677,662

1,043,287

40,994,677

7,022,400

_

4,678,588

53,738,952

171,938,710

_

_

25,459,671

118,267,712

_

_

13,699,382

_

157,426,765

5,947,301

_

_

_

36,700,000

42,647,301

114,779,464

3 to 5 years Other TotalUndetermined 

_

_

5,733,581

157,048,477

_

_

54,231,114

_

217,013,172

5,661,856

_

_

_

_

5,661,856

211,351,316

_

_

54,448,676

2,999,997

1,297,997

_

1,552,946

4,323,323

64,622,939

_

_

_

_

_

_

64,622,939

_

_

_

_

_

_

(4,454,620)

1,919,566

(2,535,054)

_

_

_

_

742,890

742,890

(3,277,944)

11,025,457

3,626,739

177.025,627

348,488,524

1,297,997

11,420,616

849,332,481

37,840,666

1,440,058,107

101,028,814

1,080,225,060

108,517,454

1,619,826

84,004,787

1,375,395,941

64,662,166

More than 

5 years 

_

_

90,508,098

39,578,113

_

_

566,010,878

_

696,097,089

81,908,996

_

14,173,700

1,619,826

_

97,702,522

598,394,567

2006

(Continues)

(Continuation)



The contents of the above referred to table were based on the following presuppositions:
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents with central banks

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Other financial assets recognised at    

fair value through profit or loss

Available for sale financial assets

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other

Liquidity gap

Contractual periods to maturity

2005

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents with central banks

Cash assets with other credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Other financial assets recognised at    

fair value through profit or loss

Available for sale financial assets

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other

Liquidity gap

Contractual periods to maturity

Repayable on

demand 

3 months

to 1 year 

1 year

to 3 years 

Up to 3

months 

1,440,790

4,449,967

866,120

_

_

_

19,980,846

104,051,629

130,789,352

_

404,919

14,275,010

_

105,819,682

120,499,611

10,289,741

_

_

175,773

40,442,897

_

11,669,345

4,360,300

_

56,648,315

361,807

622,811,730

93,428,333

_

2,119,664

718,721,534

(662,073,219)

_

_

894,274

70,690,104

_

_

185,290,477

_

256,864,855

811,634

292,298,933

_

_

2,727,400

295,837,967

(38,973,112)

_

_

19,287,215

90,161,554

_

_

10,373,641

_

119,822,410

4,373,899

_

_

_

_

4,373,899

115,448,511

3 to 5 years Other TotalUndetermined 

_

_

1,868,455

122,002,465

_

_

57,830,133

_

181,701,053

2,828,788

_

_

_

_

2,828,788

178,872,265

_

_

577,827

3,435,223

4,601,474

_

4,430,354

66,367,642

79,412,520

_

_

_

_

_

_

79,412,520

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

17,653

17,653

_

_

_

_

4,554,600

4,554,600

(4,536,947)

1,440,790

4,449,967

46,783,750

368,077,265

4,601,474

11,669,345

721,259,900

170,436,924

1,328,719,415

17,382,371

915,515,582

117,418,281

2,539,975

115,221,346

1,168,077,555

160,641,860

More than 

5 years 

_

_

23,114,086

41,345,022

_

_

439,004,149

_

503,463,257

9,006,243

_

9,714,938

2,539,975

_

21,261,156

482,202,101

2005

(Continues)

(Continuation)



Customers’ sight deposits and overdrafts have been classified as “repayable on demand”;

The “others” column comprises amounts already received or paid which are being deferred;

The maturity period of shares, overdue customer credit and additional capital payments made by the bank have
been left undetermined.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk comprises the fair value or cash flows risk associated with a determined financial instrument, if altered
on the basis of an alteration of market interest rates.

The following is a summary of the type of exposure to interest rate risk as at 31 December 2006:
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2006

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents with credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Securities

Financial derivatives

Other financial assets recognised at fair  

value through profit or loss

Hedge derivatives

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial derivatives

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other

Net Exposure

Not subject to
interest rate

risk 

Variable-
rate 

Total

_

54,448,676

_

2,999,996

_

1,297,997

_

(2,901,674)

37,840,666

93,685,661

_

_

_

_

84,004,787

84,004,787

9,680,874

Fixed-rate 

3,626,739

79,738,871

11,375,119,394

348,488,524

18,910,917

1,297,997

11,420,616

849,332,481

170,436,924

37,840,666

11,375,119,394

10,080,225,060

108,517,454

18,910,917

84,004,787

12,666,777,612

58,998,593

_

2,635,093

3,223,945,141

26,796,517

5,000,000

_

_

15,548,677

_

3,273,925,428

3,225,540,720

141,235

30,931,247

13,910,917

_

3,270,524,119

3,401,309

3,626,739

22,655,102

8,151,174,253

318,692,011

13,910,917

_

11,420,616

836,685,478

_

9,358,165,116

8,149,578,674

1,080,083,825

77,586,207

5,000,000

_

9,312,248,706

45,916,410

.

.

.



Exposure to interest rate risk, at 31 December 2006 and 2005 can be broken down into the following maturity periods:
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2005

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents with credit institutions

Securities

Financial derivatives

Other financial assets recognised at fair  

value through profit or loss

Hedge derivatives

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial derivatives

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other

Net Exposure

Not subject to
interest rate

risk 

Variable-
rate 

Total

577,827

_

3,435,223

_

4,601,474

_

4,430,354

170,436,924

183,481,802

_

_

_

_

115,221,346

115,221,346

(68,260,456)

Fixed-rate 

29,443,071

948,966,122

368,077,265

14,574,700

4,601,474

11,669,345

721,259,900

170,436,924

2,269,028,801

948,966,122

915,515,582

117,418,281

14,574,700

115,221,346

2,111,696,031

157,332,770

10,378,192

467,642,170

37,422,341

_

_

_

17,211,724

_

532,654,427

481,323,952

404,919

23,989,948

14,574,700

_

520,293,519

12,360,908

18,487,052

481,323,952

327,219,701

14,574,700

_

11,669,345

699,617,822

_

1,552,892,572

467,642,170

915,110,663

93,428,333

_

_

1,476,181,166

76,711,406
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents in other credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Securities

Financial derivatives

Other financial assets recognised 

at fair value through profit or loss

Hedge derivatives

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial derivatives

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other

Net Exposure

Rate refixing - Contractual periods to maturity

2006

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents in other credit institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Securities

Financial derivatives

Other financial assets recognised 

at fair value through profit or loss

Hedge derivatives

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial derivatives

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other

Net Exposure

Rate refixing - Contractual periods to maturity

Repayable on

demand 

3 months 

to 1 year 

1 year

to 3 years 

Up to 3

months 

3,626,739

_

_

_

_

_

_

11,012,672

31,597,777

46,237,188

_

141,235

16,757,548

_

33.287,110

50,185,893

(3,948,705)

_

22,655,102

7,549.638,117

281,995,282

_

_

11,420,616

359,743,066

_

8,255.452,183

7,539,550,693

1,039,089,148

40,849,884

_

8,596,199

8,628,085,924

(402,633,741)

_

_

766,801,089

39,341,553

13,910,917

_

_

467,212,799

_

1,287,266,358

778,563,903

40,994,677

36,736,332

5,000,000

4,678,588

865,973,490

421,292,868

_

_

243,913,613

1,234,900

_

_

_

_

_

245,148,513

241,132,946

_

_

_

36,700,000

277,832,946

(32,684,433)

3 to 5 years Other TotalUndetermined 

_

_

181,699,971

5,173,321

_

_

_

_

_

186,873,292

185,361,657

_

_

_

_

185,361,657

1,511,635

_

54,448,676

_

2,999,996

_

1,297,997

_

1,552,946

4,323,323

64,622,938

_

_

_

_

_

_

64,622,938

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

(4,454,620)

1,919,566

(2,535,054)

_

_

_

_

742,890

742,890

(3,277,944)

3,626,739

79,738,871

11,375,199,394

348,488,524

18,910,917

1,297,997

11,420,616

849,332,481

37,840,666

12,725,776,205

11,375,119,394

1,080,225,060

108,517,454

18,910,917

84,004,787

12,666,777,612

58,998,593

More than 

5 years 

_

2,635,093

2,633,066,604

17,743,472

5,000,000

_

_

14,265,618

_

2,672,710,787

2,630,510,195

_

14,173,700

13,910,917

_

2,658,594,812

14,115,975

2006

(Continues)

(Continuation)
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Assets

Financial assets held for trading

Securities

Financial derivatives

Other financial assets recognised 

at fair value through profit or loss

Hedge derivatives

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial derivatives

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other

Net Exposure

Rate refixing - Contractual periods to maturity

2005

Assets

Financial assets held for trading

Securities

Financial derivatives

Other financial assets recognised 

at fair value through profit or loss

Hedge derivatives

Available for sale financial assets 

Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Other

Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial derivatives

Other credit institutions’ resources

Customer resources and other loans

Hedge derivatives

Other

Net Exposure

Rate refixing - Contractual periods to maturity

Repayable on

demand 

3 months 

to 1 year 

1 year

to 3 years 

Up to 3

months 

_

_

_

_

_

_

19,980,846

101,730,696

121,711,542

_

404,919

14,275,010

_

105,819,682

120,499,611

1,211,931

18,487,052

118,748,095

323,709,455

_

_

11,669,345

251,103,556

_

723,717,503

109,144,209

622,811,730

93,428,333

_

2,119,664

827,503,936

(103,786,433)

_

393,504,957

31,445,061

14,574,700

_

_

428,551,685

_

868,076,403

396,222,071

292,298,933

_

_

2,727,400

691,248,404

176,827,999

_

101,269,397

4,020,346

_

_

_

_

_

105,289,743

108,763,386

_

_

_

_

108,763,386

(3,473,643)

3 to 5 years Other TotalUndetermined 

_

233,712,578

5,467,178

_

_

_

_

_

239,179,756

235,865,192

_

_

_

_

235,865,192

3,314,564

577,827

_

3,435,223

_

4,601,474

_

4,430,354

66,367,642

79,412,520

_

_

_

_

_

_

79,412,520

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

2,338,586

2,338,586

_

_

_

_

4,554.600

4,554,600

(2,216,014)

29,443,071

948,966,122

368,077,265

14,574,700

4,601,474

11,669,345

721,259,900

170,436,924

2,269,028,801

948,966,122

915,515,582

117,418,281

14,574,700

115,221,346

2,111,696,031

157,332,770

More than 

5 years 

10,378,192

101,731,095

2

_

_

_

17,193,459

_

129,302,748

98,971,264

_

9,714,938

14,574,700

_

123,260,902

6,041,846

2005

(Continues)

(Continuation)



The contents of the above referred to table were based on the following presuppositions:

the book value of fixed-rate instruments was classified in accordance with the respective period to maturity;

the book value of variable-rate instruments (e.g. indexed to Euribor), was classified in accordance with the
respective maturity until the next re-fixing of the rate;

the book value of instruments not subject to interest rate risk (e.g. shares) was included in the "undetermined"
column;

the book value included in the “other” column comprises amounts which have already been received or paid
which are being deferred; 

the notional purchase amounts (as assets) and sales (as liabilities) on interest rate swaps have been presented.

overdue loans to customers were not considered to be subject to interest rate risk, and; 

customers’ sight deposits, when no interest is paid, are considered as fixed-rate and are classified as “repayable
on demand“.

Fair value
The bank maintains a significant part of its assets, notably its securities and derivatives portfolio, recognised at fair value
through profit or loss.

Reference should be made to the following aspects as regards the principal financial assets and liabilities recognised at cost:

Interest at indexed rates and short re-fixing maturities is paid on almost all loans and advances to and resources
with other credit institutions;

As stated above, in the section on interest rate risk, the interest on almost all lending is indexed to Euribor, with
short re-fixing periods.The only long term operation at fixed interest rates is covered by a hedge derivative for
which reason the change in the fair value attributable to the interest rate risk has already been recognised in the
book value of lending (see Note 10);

As shown above, in the section on interest rate risk, the payment of interest on almost all customer deposits is
indexed to Euribor, with short re-fixing periods. A long term operation at fixed interest rates is covered by a
hedge derivative for which reason the change in the fair value attributable to the interest rate risk has already
been recognised in the deposit’s book (see Note 17);

In light of the above, the bank considers that the book value of its financial assets, net of provisions and its financial
liabilities comprises a reliable approximation of their respective fair value.
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To the Shareholders of Caixa – Banco de Investimento, S.A.

In conformity with current legislation and our instructions, we hereby submit, for your consideration, the report and
opinion on our activities and the consolidated accounting documents of Caixa – Banco de Investimento, S.A. (bank)
for the year ended 31 December 2006, which are the responsibility of the board of directors.

We have, with the frequency and to the extent considered adequate, monitored the evolution of the bank’s activity, in
addition to that of the principal companies included in the consolidation, the regularity of their accounting records and
compliance with legal and statutory regulations in force, having been provided with all clarifications to our inquiries by
the board of directors and the bank’s various departments and principal companies included in the consolidation.

In performing our tasks, we examined the consolidated balance sheet, at 31 December 2006, the consolidated income
statement, statement of consolidated cash flows and the statement of alterations to consolidated shareholders’ equity
for the year then ended and corresponding notes. We also examined the consolidated management report for 2006,
prepared by the board of directors. Based on our audit, we have, on this date, issued the statutory audit certificate on
the consolidated accounts which do not contain any reservations.

In light of the above, it is our opinion that the above referred to consolidated financial statements and consolidated
management report are in conformity with the applicable accounting and statutory dispositions and therefore merit
the approval of the general meeting of shareholders.

We also wish to express our gratitude for the assistance of the bank’s board of directors, various departments and
subsidiary companies.

Lisbon, 05 March 2007

DELOITTE & ASSOCIADOS, SROC S.A. 
Represented by Luís Augusto Gonçalves Magalhães
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Statutory Audit Certificate
Consolidated Accounts

Introduction
1. We have examined the attached consolidated financial statements of Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. (bank) and
its subsidiaries, comprising the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2006, evidencing a total balance sheet
worth of 1,909,504,470 and shareholders’ equity of 270,296,528 including net income of 30,045,764,
consolidated income statement, statement of consolidated cash flows and statement of alterations to consolidated
shareholders’ equity for the year then ended and corresponding notes.

Responsibilities
2. The bank’s board of directors is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial statements with a view to
presenting a true and appropriate description of the financial position of the companies included in the consolidation,
the consolidated income generated by their operations and their consolidated cash flows, in addition to using adequate
accounting policies and criteria and maintaining appropriate internal control systems. It is our responsibility to express
a professional, independent opinion thereon, based on our examination of the said financial statements.

Scope
3. Our examination was performed in conformity with the technical standards and revision/audit directives of the Order
of Statutory Auditors, which require that the examination be planned and performed with the objective of obtaining
an acceptable degree of assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements contain any materially relevant
distortions. Our examination included the verification of specimens of the supporting documents upon which the
amounts and information disclosed in the financial statements have been based and an assessment of estimates based
on judgements and criteria defined by the board of directors and used for the preparation thereof. The examination
also included verification of the consolidation operations and application of the equity accounting method and
whether the financial statements of the consolidated companies have been appropriately examined; an appraisal of the
adequacy of the accounting policies used, their uniform application and disclosure, based on the circumstances,
verification of the applicability of the going concern principle and whether the global presentation of the consolidated
financial statements is adequate. Our examination also included verification of concordance between the consolidated
financial information contained in the board of directors’ report and the consolidated financial statements. We consider
that our examination has provided us with an acceptable basis upon which to base our opinion.

Opinion
4. In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements, referred to in paragraph 1 above, provide a true and
appropriate description, in all materially relevant aspects, of the consolidated financial position of Caixa - Banco de
Investimento, S.A. and its subsidiaries at 31 December 2006, the consolidated income generated by their operations
and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards,
as adopted by the European Union.

Emphasis of Matters
5. The statutory audit certificate, dated 20 February 2006, on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2005, submitted for comparison purposes, included an emphasis of matters on the impact of the
adopting of the International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union, in 2005.

Lisbon, 05 March 2007

DELOITTE & ASSOCIADOS, SROC S.A. 
Represented by Luís Augusto Gonçalves Magalhães
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To the Shareholders of Caixa – Banco de Investimento, S.A.

In conformity with current legislation and our instructions, we hereby submit, for your consideration, the report and
opinion on our activities and the separate accounting documents of Caixa – Banco de Investimento, S.A. (bank) for the
year ended 31 December 2006, which are the responsibility of the board of directors.

We have, with the frequency and to the extent considered adequate, monitored the evolution of the bank’s activity,
the regularity of its accounting records and compliance with legal and statutory regulations in force, having been
provided with all clarifications to our inquiries by the board of directors and the bank’s various departments.

In performing our tasks, we examined the separate balance sheet, at 31 December 2006, the separate income
statement, separate statement of cash flows and statement of alterations to separate shareholders’ equity for the year
then ended and corresponding notes. We also examined the management report for 2006, and the proposal therein
included, prepared by the board of directors, pursuant to which we have, on this date, issued the statutory audit
certificate which contains an emphasis of matters on the effect of account consolidation.

The bank’s separate financial statements have been prepared to comply with current legislation, namely approval by
the general shareholders’ meeting, and the accounts presentation requirements determined by the Bank of Portugal.
The bank will be filing separate consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 December 2006. These financial
statements provide the most adequate reflection of the bank’s financial situation and income generated by its
operations.

In light of the above, it is our opinion that the above referred to financial statements and management report, in
addition to the proposal therein contained, are in conformity with applicable accounting and statutory dispositions and
therefore merit the approval of the general meeting of shareholders.

We also wish to express our gratitude for the assistance of the bank’s board of directors and various departments.

Lisbon, 05 March 2007

DELOITTE & ASSOCIADOS, SROC S.A. 
Represented by Luís Augusto Gonçalves Magalhães
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1. We have examined the attached financial statements of Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. (bank) comprising its
separate balance sheet at 31 December 2006, evidencing a total balance sheet worth of 1,579,744,031 and
shareholders’ equity of 186,543,176, including net income of 30,771,365, separate income statement, statement
of separate  cash flows and statement of alterations to separate shareholders’ equity for the year then ended and
corresponding notes.

Responsibilities
2. The bank’s board of directors is responsible for preparing the financial statements with a view to presenting a true
and appropriate description of the bank’s financial position, the results generated by its operations and cash flows, in
addition to using adequate accounting policies and criteria and maintaining an appropriate internal control system. It
is our responsibility to express a professional, independent opinion thereon, based on our examination of the said
financial statements.

Scope
3. Our examination was performed in conformity with the technical standards and revision/audit directives of the Order
of Statutory Auditors, which require that the examination be planned and performed with the objective of obtaining
an acceptable degree of assurance as to whether the financial statements contain any materially relevant distortions.
Our examination included the verification of specimens of the supporting documents upon which the amounts and
information disclosed in the financial statements have been based and an assessment of estimates based on
judgements and criteria defined by the board of directors and used for the preparation thereof. The examination also
included verification of whether the accounting policies used are adequate and their disclosure, based on the
circumstances, the verification of the applicability of the going concern principle and whether the global presentation
of the financial statements is adequate. Our examination also included the verification of concordance between the
financial information contained in the board of directors’ report and the financial statements. We consider that our
examination has provided us with an acceptable basis upon which to base our opinion.

Opinion 
4. In our opinion, the financial statements, referred to in paragraph 1 above, provide a true and appropriate
description, in all materially relevant aspects, for the purposes of the objectives specified in paragraph 5 below, of the
separate financial position of Caixa - Banco de Investimento, S.A. at 31 December 2006 and the separate results
generated by its operations and separate cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in Portugal for the banking sector.

Emphases of Matters
5. The attached financial statements refer to the bank’s separate activity and have been prepared for the approval of
the shareholders’ meeting and compliance with the presentation of accounts as determined by the Bank of Portugal.
In conformity with the accounting policies applicable to the bank’s separate activity, its controlling interests are recorded
at cost. The bank will be submitting separate consolidated accounts to provide a more adequate description of its
financial situation, results generated by its operations and cash flows. The effects of the account consolidation, at 
31 December 2006, consist of an increase in assets, liabilities, shareholders’ equity (excluding income for the year) and
a reduction in income for the year for the amounts of 329,760,439, 246,007,087, 84,478,953 and 725,601
respectively.

6. The separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 have been submitted with a view to
complying with Bank of Portugal regulations and requirements for the publishing of accounts. The respective statutory
audit certificate, dated 20 February 2006, included emphases of matters on the effect of the consolidation of accounts
and on the impact of the adopting of the Adjusted Accounting Standards, in 2005.

Lisbon, 05 March 2007

DELOITTE & ASSOCIADOS, SROC S.A. 
Represented by Luís Augusto Gonçalves Magalhães
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